IMPORTANT NOTICE
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION TO ANY PERSON OR ADDRESS IN THE UNITED STATES.

THIS OFFERING OF THE SECURITIES DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED PRELIMINARY
PLACEMENT DOCUMENT IS AVAILABLE ONLY TO INVESTORS WHO ARE QUALIFIED
INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS AS DEFINED UNDER REGULATION 2(1)(SS) OF THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2018, AS AMENDED (“SEBI ICDR REGULATIONS”).

IMPORTANT: This e-mail is intended for the named recipient(s) only. If you are not an intended recipient,
please delete this e-mail from your system immediately. You must read the following before continuing. The
following applies to the pre-numbered preliminary placement document of AXISCADES Technologies Limited (the
“Company”) dated January 10, 2024 in relation to the proposed qualified institutions placement of equity shares of X
5 each (“Equity Shares”) by the Company filed with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(the “Stock Exchanges”) (such document, the “Preliminary Placement Document”) attached to this e-mail, and you
are therefore advised to read this disclaimer carefully before reading, accessing or making any other use of the attached
Preliminary Placement Document. In accessing the Preliminary Placement Document, you acknowledge and agree to
be bound by the following terms and conditions, including any modifications to them, from time to time, each time
you receive any information from us as a result of such access. The information in the Preliminary Placement
Document is confidential and subject to updation, completion, revision, verification, amendment and change without
notice. None of IIFL Securities Limited, Ambit Private Limited and Centrum Capital Limited (the “Book Running
Lead Managers”) or any person who controls any of them or any of their respective affiliates, directors, officers,
employees, agents, representatives or advisers accepts any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
any use of this e-mail or the attached Preliminary Placement Document or their respective contents or otherwise arising
in connection therewith. You acknowledge that the Preliminary Placement Document is intended for use by you
only and you agree not to forward it to any other person, internal or external to your company, in whole or in
part, or otherwise provide access via e-mail or otherwise to any other person.

INVESTING IN THE EQUITY SHARES DESCRIBED IN THE PRELIMINARY PLACEMENT
DOCUMENT INVOLVES RISKS AND YOU SHOULD NOT INVEST ANY FUNDS IN THE EQUITY
SHARES, UNLESS YOU ARE PREPARED TO RISK LOSING ALL OR PART OF YOUR INVESTMENT.
YOU ARE ADVISED TO CAREFULLY READ THE SECTION TITLED “RISK FACTORS” AS WELL AS
INFORMATION CONTAINED ELSEWHERE IN THE ATTACHED PRELIMINARY PLACEMENT
DOCUMENT BEFORE MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION.

THE EQUITY SHARES OFFERED IN THE ISSUE HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED
UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “U.S. SECURITIES ACT”), OR ANY
STATE SECURITIES LAWS IN THE UNITED STATES, AND UNLESS SO REGISTERED, AND MAY
NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD IN THE UNITED STATES EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION
FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE
U.S. SECURITIES ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE U.S. STATE SECURITIES LAWS. YOU UNDERSTAND
THAT THE EQUITY SHARES OFFERED IN THE ISSUE ARE BEING OFFERED AND SOLD ONLY
OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN “OFFSHORE TRANSACTIONS”, AS DEFINED IN, AND IN
RELIANCE ON, REGULATION S UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT (“REGULATION S”) AND YOU
REPRESENT THAT YOU WERE OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES WHEN THE OFFER TO PURCHASE
THE EQUITY SHARES WAS MADE TO YOU AND YOU ARE CURRENTLY OUTSIDE THE UNITED
STATES AND THAT YOU ARE NOT ACQUIRING OR SUBSCRIBING FOR THE EQUITY SHARES AS
A RESULT OF ANY “DIRECTED SELLING EFFORTS” (AS DEFINED IN REGULATION S).

FOR A DESCRIPTION OF THESE AND CERTAIN FURTHER RESTRICTIONS ON OFFERS, SALES AND
TRANSFERS OF THE EQUITY SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND DISTRIBUTION OF THE PRELIMINARY
PLACEMENT DOCUMENT, SEE “SELLING RESTRICTIONS”, “NOTICE TO INVESTORS”, AND
“TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS”. THE ATTACHED PRE-NUMBERED PRELIMINARY PLACEMENT
DOCUMENT MAY NOT BE FORWARDED, DOWNLOADED, DELIVERED OR DISTRIBUTED, IN WHOLE
OR IN PART, ELECTRONICALLY OR OTHERWISE TO ANY OTHER PERSON AND MAY NOT BE



REPRODUCED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER, AND IN PARTICULAR, MAY NOT BE FORWARDED
TO ANY U.S. PERSON OR TO ANY U.S. ADDRESS. ANY FORWARDING, DISTRIBUTION OR
REPRODUCTION OF THE PRELIMINARY PLACEMENT DOCUMENT IN WHOLE OR IN PART IS
UNAUTHORIZED. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS DIRECTIVE MAY RESULT IN A VIOLATION OF
THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE APPLICABLE LAWS OF OTHER JURISDICTIONS. IF YOU HAVE GAINED
ACCESS TO THIS TRANSMISSION CONTRARY TO ANY OF THE FOREGOING RESTRICTIONS, YOU ARE
NOT AUTHORISED AND WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PURCHASE ANY OF THE EQUITY SHARES DESCRIBED
IN THE ATTACHED PRELIMINARY PLACEMENT DOCUMENT.

This Issue and the distribution of the Preliminary Placement Document is being done in reliance on Chapter VI of the
SEBI ICDR Regulations and Sections 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, each as amended and the rules framed
thereunder. The Preliminary Placement Document is personal to each prospective investor and does not constitute an
offer or invitation or solicitation of an offer to the public or to any other person or class of investors.

Confirmation of your Representation: You are accessing the attached Preliminary Placement Document on the
basis that you have confirmed your representation, agreement and acknowledgement to the Book Running Lead
Managers that: (1) the electronic mail address that you gave us and to which this e-mail has been delivered is not
located in the United States, its territories or possessions and to the extent that you purchase the securities described
in the attached Preliminary Placement Document, you will be doing so pursuant to Regulation S; (2) the securities
offered hereby have not been registered under the Securities Act; (3) you consent to delivery of the attached
Preliminary Placement Document and any amendments or supplements thereto by electronic transmission; (4) you are
a “Qualified Institutional Buyer” as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and are not
restricted from participating in the offering under the SEBI ICDR Regulations and other applicable laws and not
excluded pursuant to Regulation 179(2)(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations; (5) you are aware that your name will be
included in the Placement Document as proposed allottees along with the number of Equity Shares proposed to be
Allotted to you and the percentage of your post issue shareholding in the Company and you consent to such disclosure;
(6) you are aware that if you, together with any other Qualified Institutional Buyers belonging to the same group or
under common control, are Allotted more than 5% of the Equity Shares in this Issue, the Company shall be required
to disclose your name, along with the name of such other Allottees and the number of Equity Shares Allotted to you
and to such other Allottees, on the website of the Stock Exchanges, and you consent to such disclosure; (7) you are
aware that if you are circulated the Preliminary Placement Document or are Allotted any Equity Shares in the Issue,
the Company is required to disclose details such as your name, address, PAN, email-id and the number of Equity
Shares Allotted along with other relevant information as may be required, to the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka
at Bangalore and you consent to such disclosures; and (8) that you consent to delivery of the attached Preliminary
Placement Document and any amendments or supplements thereto and the final placement document for the Issue by
electronic transmission.

Except with respect to eligible investors in jurisdictions where such offer is permitted by law, nothing in this electronic
transmission constitutes an offer or an invitation by or on behalf of either the issuer of the securities or the Book
Running Lead Managers to subscribe for or purchase any of the securities described therein, and access has been
limited so that it shall not constitute a “general solicitation” or “general advertising” (each as defined in Regulation D
under the Securities Act) or “directed selling efforts” (as defined in Regulation S) in the United States or elsewhere.
You are reminded that the attached Preliminary Placement Document has been delivered to you on the basis that you
are a person into whose possession the attached Preliminary Placement Document may be lawfully delivered in
accordance with the laws of the jurisdiction in which you are located and you may not, nor are you authorised to,
deliver the attached Preliminary Placement Document to any other person.

The materials relating to the offering do not constitute, and may not be used in connection with, an offer or invitation
or solicitation in any place where offers, invitations or solicitations are not permitted by law. If a jurisdiction requires
that the offering be made by a licensed broker or dealer and Book Running Lead Managers or any affiliate of the Book
Running Lead Managers is a licensed broker or dealer in that jurisdiction, the offering shall be deemed to be made by
the Book Running Lead Managers or such affiliate on behalf of the Company in such jurisdiction. Further, nothing in
this electronic transmission constitutes an offer or an invitation or solicitation of an offer or an offer or invitation to
the public under the Companies Act, 2013, or any other applicable law, by or on behalf of either the Company or the
Book Running Lead Managers to subscribe for or purchase any of the equity shares described in the attached
Preliminary Placement Document. The attached Preliminary Placement Document has not been and will not be filed



as a prospectus with any registrar of companies in India and is not and should not be construed as an offer document
under the SEBI ICDR Regulations or any other applicable law. The attached Preliminary Placement Document has
not been and will not be reviewed or approved by any regulatory authority in India, including the Securities and
Exchange Board of India, the Reserve Bank of India, any registrar of companies in India or any stock exchange in
India. The attached Preliminary Placement Document is not and should not be construed as an invitation, offer or sale
of any securities to the public in India.

The Preliminary Placement Document been sent to you in an electronic form. You are reminded that documents
transmitted via this medium may be altered or changed during the process of electronic transmission and consequently
none of the Company, Book Running Lead Managers or any person who controls any of them or any director, officer,
employee or agent of any of them or affiliate of any of them accepts any liability or responsibility whatsoever in
respect of any difference between the Preliminary Placement Document distributed to you in electronic format and
the hard copy version available to you on request from the Book Running Lead Manager. Your use of this e-mail is at
your own risk and it is your responsibility to take precautions to ensure that it is free from viruses and other items of
a destructive nature. The attached Preliminary Placement Document is intended only for use by the addressee named
herein and may contain legally privileged and / or confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient of
the attached Preliminary Placement Document, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying
of the attached Preliminary Placement Document is strictly prohibited. If you have received the attached Preliminary
Placement Document in error, please immediately notify the sender or the Book Running Lead Managers by reply
email and destroy the email received and any printouts of it.

You are reminded that no representation or warranty, expressed or implied, is made or given by or on behalf of any
Book Running Lead Managers named herein, nor any person who controls them or any director, officer, employee or
agent of them, or affiliate or associate of any such person as to the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the
information or opinions contained in this document and such persons do not accept responsibility or liability for any
such information or opinions.

Actions That You May Not Take: You should not reply by e-mail to this announcement, and you may not purchase
any of the equity shares described in the attached pre-numbered Preliminary Placement Document by doing so. Any
reply e-mail communications, including those you generate by using the “Reply” function on your e-mail software,
will be ignored or rejected. You may not nor are you authorized to deliver or forward this document, electronically or
otherwise, to any other person.

YOU MAY NOT AND ARE NOT AUTHORIZED TO (1) FORWARD, DISTRIBUTE OR DELIVER THE
ATTACHED PRELIMINARY PLACEMENT DOCUMENT, ELECTRONICALLY OR OTHERWISE, OR
DISCLOSE THE CONTENTS OF THE PRELIMINARY PLACEMENT DOCUMENT TO ANY OTHER
PERSON OR (2) REPRODUCE IN WHOLE OR PART THE ATTACHED PRELIMINARY PLACEMENT
DOCUMENT IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER. ANY FORWARDING, DISSEMINATION,
DISTRIBUTION OR REPRODUCTION OF THIS DOCUMENT AND THE ATTACHED PRELIMINARY
PLACEMENT DOCUMENT IN WHOLE OR IN PART IS UNAUTHORIZED. FAILURE TO COMPLY
WITH THIS DIRECTIVE MAY RESULT IN A VIOLATION OF THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE
APPLICABLE LAWS OF OTHER JURISDICTIONS.

You are responsible for protecting against viruses and other destructive items. Your use of this e-mail is at your
own risk and it is your responsibility to take precautions to ensure that it is free from viruses and other items
of a destructive nature.

Capital terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the Preliminary
Placement Document attached hereto.
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NOTICE TO INVESTORS

Our Company has furnished and accepts full responsibility for all of the information contained in this Preliminary Placement
Document and confirms that to the best of its knowledge and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, this Preliminary
Placement Document contains all information with respect to our Company and its Subsidiaries, and the Equity Shares, which
we consider material in the context of the Issue. The statements contained in this Preliminary Placement Document relating to
our Company and its Subsidiaries, and the Equity Shares are in all material respects, true, accurate and not misleading, and the
opinions and intentions expressed in this Preliminary Placement Document with regard to our Company and its Subsidiaries,
and the Equity Shares are honestly held, have been arrived at after considering all relevant circumstances and are based on
reasonable assumptions and information presently available with our Company. There are no other facts in relation to our
Company and its Subsidiaries and the Equity Shares, the omission of which would, in the context of the Issue, make any
statement in this Preliminary Placement Document misleading in any material respect. Further, our Company has made all
reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts and to verify the accuracy of all such information and statements.

IIFL Securities Limited, Ambit Private Limited and Centrum Capital Limited (the “Book Running Lead Managers”) have
made reasonable enquiries but have not separately verified all of the information contained in this Preliminary Placement
Document (financial, legal, or otherwise). Accordingly, neither the Book Running Lead Managers, nor any of their respective
shareholders, employees, counsel, officers, directors, representatives, agents, associates or affiliates make any express or
implied representation, warranty or undertaking, and no responsibility or liability is accepted by the Book Running Lead
Managers or any of their respective shareholders, employees, counsel, officers, directors, representatives, agents, associates or
affiliates as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this Preliminary Placement Document or any other
information supplied in connection with the Issue of the Equity Shares or their distribution.

Each person receiving this Preliminary Placement Document acknowledges that such person has not relied on any of the Book
Running Lead Managers or on any of their respective shareholders, employees, counsel, officers, directors, representatives,
agents, associates or affiliates in connection with such person’s investigation of the accuracy of such information or such
person’s investment decision, and each such person must rely on its own examination of our Company and its Subsidiaries and
the merits and risks involved in investing in the Equity Shares issued pursuant to the Issue.

No person is authorised to give any information or to make any representation not contained in this Preliminary Placement
Document and any information or representation not so contained must not be relied upon as having been authorised by or on
behalf of our Company, or by or on behalf of the Book Running Lead Managers. The delivery of this Preliminary Placement
Document at any time does not imply that the information contained in it is correct as of any time subsequent to its date.

The Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to the Issue have not been approved, disapproved or recommended by any
regulatory authority in any jurisdiction, including the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, any other
federal or state authorities in the United States, the securities authorities of any non-United States jurisdiction and any
other United States or non-United States regulatory authority. No authority has passed on or endorsed the merits of the
Issue or the accuracy or adequacy of this Preliminary Placement Document. Any representation to the contrary is a
criminal offense in the United States and may be a criminal offence in other jurisdictions.

The Equity Shares offered in the Issue have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act, or the securities
laws of any state of the United States and may not be offered or sold in the United States except pursuant to an exemption from,
or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and any applicable state securities
laws. The Equity Shares offered in the Issue are being offered and sold only outside the United States in “offshore transactions”,
as defined in and with reliance on Regulation S of the U.S. Securities Act and the applicable laws of the jurisdiction where
those offers and sales are made. See “Selling Restrictions” on page 398 for information about eligible offerees for the Issue and
“Transfer Restrictions” on page 405 for information about transfer restrictions that apply to the Equity Shares sold in the Issue.

The information contained in this Preliminary Placement Document has been provided by our Company and from other sources
identified herein. This Preliminary Placement Document is being furnished on a confidential basis solely for the purpose of
enabling a prospective investor to consider subscribing for the particular securities described herein. The distribution of this
Preliminary Placement Document or the disclosure of its contents without the prior consent of our Company to any person,
other than Eligible QIBs whose names are recorded by our Company prior to the invitation to subscribe to the Issue in
consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers or their representatives, and those retained by Eligible QIBs to advise them
with respect to their subscription of the Equity Shares is unauthorized and prohibited. Each prospective investor, by accepting
delivery of this Preliminary Placement Document, agrees to observe the foregoing restrictions and to make no copies of this
Preliminary Placement Document or any documents referred to in this Preliminary Placement Document. Any reproduction or
distribution of this Preliminary Placement Document, in whole or in part, and any disclosure of its contents to any other person
is prohibited.

The distribution of this Preliminary Placement Document and the issue of the Equity Shares may be restricted in certain
jurisdictions by applicable laws. As such, this Preliminary Placement Document does not constitute, and may not be used for,
or in connection with, an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised
or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation. In particular, no action has been taken by our
Company and the Book Running Lead Managers which would permit an offering of the Equity Shares or distribution of this
Preliminary Placement Document in any jurisdiction, other than India, where action for that purpose is required. Accordingly,
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the Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Preliminary Placement Document, nor any
offering material in connection with the Equity Shares may be distributed or published in or from any country or jurisdiction,
except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable rules and regulations of any such country or
jurisdiction. For further details, see “Selling Restrictions” on page 405.

In making an investment decision, the prospective investors must rely on their own examination of our Company and its
Subsidiaries and the Equity Shares and the terms of the Issue, including the merits and risks involved. The prospective investor
should not construe the contents of this Preliminary Placement Document as legal, tax, accounting or investment advice. The
prospective investors should consult their own counsel and advisors as to business, legal, tax, accounting and related matters
concerning the Issue. In addition, neither our Company nor the Book Running Lead Managers are making any representation
to any investor, purchaser, offeree or subscriber to the Equity Shares in relation to this Issue regarding the legality of an
investment in the Equity Shares by such investor, purchaser, offeree or subscriber under applicable legal, investment or similar
laws or regulations. The prospective investors of the Equity Shares should conduct their own due diligence on the Equity Shares
and our Company. If you do not understand the contents of this Preliminary Placement Document, you should consult an
authorised financial advisor and/or legal advisor.

Each investor, purchaser, offeree or subscriber of the Equity Shares is deemed to have acknowledged, represented and agreed
that it is an Eligible QIB and it is eligible to invest in India and in our Company under Indian law, including under Chapter VI
of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 14 of the PAS Rules and other
provisions of the Companies Act, and that it is not prohibited by SEBI or any other statutory, regulatory or judicial authority in
India or any other jurisdiction from buying, selling or dealing in the securities including the Equity Shares or otherwise
accessing the capital markets in India.

Each subscriber of the Equity Shares also acknowledges that it has been afforded an opportunity to request from our Company
and review information pertaining to our Company and the Equity Shares.

This Preliminary Placement Document does not purport to contain all the information that any Eligible QIB may require. This
Preliminary Placement Document contains summaries of certain terms of documents, which summaries are qualified in their
entirety by the terms and conditions of such documents. Further, this Preliminary Placement Document has been prepared for
information purposes in relation to this Issue only and upon the express understanding that it will be used for the purposes set
forth herein.

Our Company does not undertake to update this Preliminary Placement Document to reflect subsequent events after the date of
this Preliminary Placement Document and thus it should not be relied upon with respect to such subsequent events without first
confirming the accuracy or completeness with our Company. Neither the delivery of this Preliminary Placement Document nor
any issue of Equity Shares made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, constitute a representation or create any implication
that there has been no change in the affairs of our Company since the date hereof.

Our Company and the Book Running Lead Managers are not liable for any amendment or modification or change to applicable
laws or regulations, that may occur after the date of this Preliminary Placement Document. The information on our Company’s
website, www.axiscades.com, any website directly and indirectly linked to the website of our Company or on the website of
SEBI or the Stock Exchanges or on the respective websites of the Book Running Lead Managers and of their affiliates, other
than this Preliminary Placement Document shall not constitute nor form part of this Preliminary Placement Document and no
investment decision should be made on the basis of such information. The prospective investors should not rely on any such
information contained in, or available through, any such websites.

NOTICE TO INVESTORS IN CERTAIN OTHER JURISDICTIONS

For information to investors in certain other jurisdictions, see “Selling Restrictions” and “Transfer Restrictions” on page 398
and 405, respectively.



REPRESENTATIONS BY INVESTORS

All references to “you” and “your” in this section are to the prospective investors in the Issue. By Bidding (hereinafter defined)
and/or subscribing to any Equity Shares under this Issue, you are deemed to have represented, warranted, acknowledged and
agreed to our Company and the Book Running Lead Managers, as follows:

1.

10.

11.

Your decision to subscribe to the Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to the Issue has not been made based on any
information relating to our Company which is not set forth in this Preliminary Placement Document;

You are a “Qualified Institutional Buyer” as defined in Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and not
excluded pursuant to Regulation 179(2)(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, having a valid and existing registration
under applicable laws and regulations of India, and undertake to (i) acquire, hold, manage or dispose of any Equity
Shares that are Allotted (hereinafter defined) to you in accordance with Chapter VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
the Companies Act, 2013 and all other applicable laws; and (ii) comply with all requirements under applicable law in
this relation, including reporting obligations, requirements/ making necessary filings, if any, in connection with the
Issue;

You are eligible to invest in India under applicable law, including the FEMA Rules (as defined hereinafter) and any
notifications, circulars or clarifications issued thereunder, and have not been prohibited by SEBI, RBI or any other
regulatory authority, statutory authority or otherwise, from buying, selling or dealing in securities or otherwise
accessing capital markets in India;

If you are not a resident of India, but are an Eligible QIB, (i) you are a foreign portfolio investor, and you confirm that
you are an Eligible FPI as defined in this Preliminary Placement Document and have a valid and existing registration
with SEBI under the applicable laws in India, or (ii) a multilateral or bilateral development financial institution and
can participate in the Issue only under Schedule Il of FEMA Rules and you are eligible to invest in India under
applicable law, including FEMA Rules, and any other notifications, circulars or clarifications issued thereunder. You
will make all necessary filings with appropriate regulatory authorities, including RBI, as required pursuant to
applicable laws. You have not been prohibited by SEBI, RBI or any other regulatory authority, from buying, selling
or dealing in securities or otherwise accessing the capital markets. Since FVCls are not permitted to participate in the
Issue, you confirm that you are not a FVCI;

You are eligible to invest in and hold the Equity Shares of our Company in accordance with the FDI Policy (as defined
hereinafter), read along with the press note no. 3 (2020 Series), dated April 17, 2020, issued by the Department for
Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Government of India and the related amendments to the FEMA Rules,
wherein if the beneficial owner of the Equity Shares is situated in or is a citizen of a country which shares land border
with India, foreign direct investments can only be made through the Government approval route, as prescribed in the
FEMA Rules;

You will make all necessary filings with appropriate regulatory authorities, including the RBI, as required pursuant to
applicable laws;

You acknowledge that Eligible FPIs may invest in such number of Equity Shares such that the individual investment
of the Eligible FPI or its investor group (multiple entities registered as FPIs and directly or indirectly, having common
ownership of more than 50% or common control) in our Company does not exceed 10% of the post-Issue paid-up
capital of our Company on a fully diluted basis;

You will provide the information as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the PAS Rules for record keeping
by our Company, including your name, complete address, phone number, e-mail address, permanent account number
and bank account details and such other details as may be prescribed or otherwise required even after the closure of
the Issue;

If you are Allotted Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue, you shall not sell the Equity Shares so acquired, for a period
of one year from the date of Allotment (hereinafter defined), except on the Stock Exchanges. For further details in this
regard, see “Selling Restrictions” and “Transfer Restrictions” on page 398 and 405, respectively;

You are aware that this Preliminary Placement Document has not been, and the Placement Document will not be, filed
as a prospectus with the RoC under the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI ICDR Regulations or under any other law in
force in India and, no Equity Shares will be offered in India or overseas to the public or any members of the public in
India or any other class of investors, other than Eligible QIBs. This Preliminary Placement Document has not been
reviewed, verified or affirmed by SEBI, the RBI, the Stock Exchanges or any other regulatory or listing authority and
is intended only for use by Eligible QIBs. This Preliminary Placement Document has been filed (and the Placement
Document) shall be filed with the Stock Exchanges for record purposes only and be displayed on the websites of our
Company and the Stock Exchanges;

You are entitled to subscribe for and acquire the Equity Shares under the laws of all relevant jurisdictions applicable
to you and that you have fully observed such laws and you have all necessary capacity and have obtained all necessary
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12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

consents and authorities, as may be required and complied and shall comply with all necessary formalities to enable
you to participate in the Issue and to perform your obligations in relation thereto (including without limitation, in the
case of any person on whose behalf you are acting, all necessary consents and authorizations to agree to the terms set
out or referred to in this Preliminary Placement Document), and will honor such obligations;

Neither our Company, the Book Running Lead Managers nor any of their respective shareholders, directors, officers,
employees, counsels, representatives, agents or affiliates are making any recommendations to you or advising you
regarding the suitability of any transactions it may enter into in connection with the Issue and your participation in the
Issue is on the basis that you are not, and will not, up to the Allotment of the Equity Shares, be a client of the Book
Running Lead Managers. Neither the Book Running Lead Managers nor any of their respective shareholders, directors,
officers, employees, counsels, representatives, agents or affiliates has any duty or responsibility to you for providing
the protection afforded to their clients or customers or for providing advice in relation to the Issue and are not in any
way acting in any fiduciary capacity;

All statements other than statements of historical fact included in this Preliminary Placement Document, including,
without limitation, those regarding our financial position, business strategy, plans and objectives of management for
future operations (including development plans and objectives relating to our business), are forward looking
statements. Such forward looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important
factors that could cause actual results to be materially different from future results, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by such forward looking statements. Such forward looking statements are based on numerous
assumptions regarding our present and future business strategies and environment in which we will operate in the
future. You should not place undue reliance on forward looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this
Preliminary Placement Document. Neither our Company, nor the Book Running Lead Managers or any of their
respective shareholders, directors, officers, employees, counsel, representatives, agents or affiliates assumes any
responsibility to update any of the forward looking statements contained in this Preliminary Placement Document;

You are aware that the Equity Shares are being offered only to Eligible QIBs on a private placement basis and are not
being offered to the general public, or any other category of investors other than the Eligible QIBs and the Allotment
shall be on a discretionary basis at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead
Managers;

You have made, or been deemed to have made, as applicable, the representations, warranties, acknowledgments and
undertakings as set out under “Selling Restrictions” and “Transfer Restrictions” on pages 398 and 405, respectively;

You have been provided a serially numbered copy of this Preliminary Placement Document, and have read it in its
entirety, including in particular the “Risk Factors” on page 35;

In making your investment decision, you have (i) relied on your own examination of our Company and its Subsidiaries
and the terms of the Issue, including the merits and risks involved, (ii) made and will continue to make your own
assessment of our Company and its Subsidiaries the Equity Shares and the terms of the Issue based on such information
asis publicly available, (iii) consulted your own independent counsels and advisors or otherwise have satisfied yourself
concerning, the effects of local laws (including tax laws), (iv) relied solely on the information contained in this
Preliminary Placement Document and no other disclosure or representation by our Company or any other party, (v)
received all information that you believe is necessary or appropriate in order to make an investment decision in respect
of our Company, its Subsidiaries and the Equity Shares, and (vi) relied upon your own investigation and resources in
deciding to invest in the Issue;

Neither the Book Running Lead Managers nor any of their respective shareholders, directors, officers, employees,
counsels, representatives, agents or affiliates, has provided you with any tax advice or otherwise made any
representations regarding the tax consequences of purchase, ownership and disposal of the Equity Shares (including
the Issue and the use of proceeds from the Equity Shares). You will obtain your own independent tax advice from a
reputable service provider and will not rely on the Book Running Lead Managers or any of their respective
shareholders, directors, officers, employees, counsels, representatives, agents or affiliates, when evaluating the tax
consequences in relation to the Equity Shares (including, in relation to the Issue and the use of proceeds from the
Equity Shares). You waive, and agree not to assert any claim against, either of the Book Running Lead Managers or
any of their respective shareholders, directors, officers, employees, counsels, representatives, agents or affiliates, with
respect to the tax aspects of the Equity Shares or as a result of any tax audits by tax authorities, wherever situated;

You are a sophisticated investor and have such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters as to be
capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the investment in the Equity Shares and you and any managed accounts
for which you are subscribing for the Equity Shares (i) are each able to bear the economic risk of the investment in the
Equity Shares, (ii) will not look to our Company and/or the Book Running Lead Managers or any of their respective
shareholders, directors, officers, employees, counsels, representatives, agents or affiliates, for all or part of any such
loss or losses that may be suffered, (iii) are able to sustain a complete loss on the investment in the Equity Shares, (iv)
have no need for liquidity with respect to the investment in the Equity Shares, and (v) have no reason to anticipate any
change in your or their circumstances, financial or otherwise, which may cause or require any sale or distribution by



20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

217.

28.

29.

30.

31.

you or them of all or any part of the Equity Shares. You are seeking to subscribe to the Equity Shares in the Issue for
your own investment and not with a view to resell or distribute;

If you are acquiring the Equity Shares for one or more managed accounts, you represent and warrant that you are
authorized in writing, by each such managed account to acquire the Equity Shares for each managed account and make
the representations, warranties, acknowledgements, undertakings and agreements herein for and on behalf of each such
account, reading the reference to ‘you’ to include such accounts;

You are not a ‘promoter’ of our Company (as defined under the SEBI ICDR Regulations), and are not a person related
to the Promoter, either directly or indirectly and your Bid does not directly or indirectly represent any Promoter or
Promoter Group (as defined under the SEBI ICDR Regulations) of our Company or persons or entities related thereto;

You have no rights under a shareholders’ agreement or voting agreement entered into with the Promoter or members
of the Promoter Group, no veto rights or right to appoint any nominee director on the Board of Directors of our
Company, other than the rights, if any, acquired in the capacity of a lender not holding any Equity Shares (a QIB who
does not hold any Equity Shares and who has acquired the said rights in the capacity of a lender shall not be deemed
to be a person related to our Promoter);

You are eligible to Bid for and hold Equity Shares so Allotted together with any Equity Shares held by you prior to
the Issue. You further confirm that your aggregate holding after the Allotment of the Equity Shares shall not exceed
the level permissible as per any applicable law;

To the best of your knowledge and belief, your aggregate holding, together with other Eligible QIBs in the Issue that
belong to the same group or are under common control as you, pursuant to the Allotment under the Issue shall not
exceed 50% of the Issue Size. For the purposes of this representation:

a. Eligible QIBs “belonging to the same group” shall mean entities where (a) any of them controls, directly or
indirectly, through its subsidiary or holding company, not less than 15% of the voting rights in the other; (b)
any of them, directly or indirectly, by itself, or in combination with other persons, exercise control over the
others; or (c) there is a common director, excluding nominee and independent directors, amongst an Eligible
QIBs, its subsidiary or holding company and any other Eligible QIB; and

b. ‘Control’ shall have the same meaning as is assigned to it under the SEBI Takeover Regulations;

You are aware that (i) applications for in-principle approval, in terms of Regulation 28 of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
for listing and admission of the Equity Shares and for trading on the Stock Exchanges, were made and approval has
been received from each of the Stock Exchanges, and (ii) final applications will be made for obtaining listing and
trading approvals from the Stock Exchanges, and that there can be no assurance that such approvals will be obtained
on time or at all. Neither our Company nor the Book Running Lead Managers nor any of their respective shareholders,
directors, officers, employees, counsels, representatives, agents or affiliates shall be responsible for any delay or non-
receipt of such final listing and trading approvals or any loss arising therefrom;

You shall not undertake any trade in the Equity Shares credited to your beneficiary account with the Depository
Participant until such time that the final listing and trading approvals for the Equity Shares are issued by the Stock
Exchanges;

You are aware that in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, upon Allocation, our Company will be
required to disclose names and percentage of post-Issue shareholding of the proposed Allottees in the Placement
Document. However, disclosure of such details in relation to the proposed Allottees in the Placement Document will
not guarantee Allotment to them, as Allotment in the Issue shall continue to be at the sole discretion of our Company,
in consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers;

You agree in terms of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the PAS Rules, that our Company shall
make necessary filings with the RoC as may be required under the Companies Act, 2013;

You acknowledge that this Preliminary Placement Document does not, and the Placement Document shall not confer
upon or provide you with any right of renunciation of the Equity Shares offered through the Issue in favour of any
person;

You are aware that if you, together with any other Eligible QIBs belonging to the same group or under common
control, are Allotted more than 5% of the Equity Shares in this Issue, our Company shall be required to disclose the
name of such Allottees and the number of Equity Shares Allotted to the Stock Exchanges and the Stock Exchanges
will make the same available on their website and you consent to such disclosures being made by our Company;

You are aware and understand that the Book Running Lead Managers have entered into a Placement Agreement with
our Company, whereby the Book Running Lead Managers have, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions set
out therein, severally and not jointly, undertaken to use their reasonable efforts to seek to procure subscription for the
Equity Shares on the terms and conditions set out therein;
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32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

The contents of this Preliminary Placement Document are exclusively the responsibility of our Company and that
neither the Book Running Lead Managers nor any person acting on its or their behalf or any of the counsels or advisors
to the Issue has or shall have any liability for any information, representation or statement contained in this Preliminary
Placement Document or any information previously published by or on behalf of our Company and will not be liable
for your decision to participate in the Issue based on any information, representation or statement contained in this
Preliminary Placement Document or otherwise. By accepting participation in the Issue, you agree to the same and
confirm that the only information you are entitled to rely on, and on which you have relied in committing yourself to
acquire the Equity Shares is contained in this Preliminary Placement Document, such information being all that you
deem necessary to make an investment decision in respect of the Equity Shares, and you have neither received nor
relied on any other information, representation, warranty or statement made by, or on behalf of, the Book Running
Lead Managers or our Company or any other person and neither the Book Running Lead Managers nor our Company
or any of their respective affiliates, including any view, statement, opinion or representation expressed in any research
published or distributed by them, and the Book Running Lead Managers and their respective affiliates will not be
liable for your decision to accept an invitation to participate in the Issue based on any other information, representation,
warranty, statement or opinion;

You understand that the Equity Shares issued pursuant to the Issue shall be subject to the provisions of the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of our Company and will be credited as fully paid and will
rank pari passu in all respects with the existing Equity Shares, including in respect of the right to receive dividend and
other distributions declared;

Neither the Book Running Lead Managers nor any of their respective affiliates have any obligation to purchase or
acquire all or any part of the Equity Shares purchased by you in the Issue or to support any losses directly or indirectly
sustained or incurred by you for any reason whatsoever in connection with the Issue, including non-performance by
our Company of any of its obligations or any breach of any representations and warranties by our Company, whether
to you or otherwise;

You acknowledge that (i) an investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk and that the Equity Shares
are, therefore, a speculative investment, (ii) you have sufficient knowledge, sophistication and experience in financial
and business matters so as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risk of the purchase of the Equity Shares, and
(iii) you are experienced in investing in private placement transactions of securities of companies in a similar stage of
development and in similar jurisdictions and have such knowledge and experience in financial, business and
investments matters that you are capable of evaluating the merits and risks of your investment in the Equity Shares;

You are subscribing to the Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to the Issue in accordance with applicable laws and by
participating in this Issue, you are not in violation of any applicable law, including but not limited to the SEBI Insider
Trading Regulations, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices
relating to Securities Market) Regulations, 2003, as amended, and the Companies Act, 2013;

You confirm that either (i) you have not participated in or attended any investor meetings or presentations by our
Company or its agents with regard to our Company or this Issue; or (ii) if you have participated in or attended any
Company presentations: (a) you understand and acknowledge that the Book Running Lead Managers may not have
the knowledge of the statements that our Company or its agents may have made at such company presentations and
are therefore unable to determine whether the information provided to you at such meetings or presentations included
any material misstatements or omissions, and, accordingly you acknowledge that Book Running Lead Managers have
advised you not to rely in any way on any such information that was provided to you at such meetings or presentations,
and (b) you confirm that, to the best of your knowledge, you have not been provided any material information that was
not publicly available;

You understand that the Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act or with
any securities regulatory authority of any state of the United States and accordingly, may not be offered or sold within
the United States, except in reliance on an exemption from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act.

You are outside the United States and are purchasing the Equity Shares in an ‘offshore transaction” within the meaning
of Regulation S and in compliance with laws of all jurisdictions applicable to you and are not our Company’s or the
Book Running Lead Manager’s affiliate or a person acting on behalf of such an affiliate;

You are not acquiring or subscribing for the Equity Shares as a result of any “general solicitation” or “general
advertising” (as those terms are defined in Regulation D under the U.S. Securities Act) or “directed selling efforts” (as
defined in Regulation S) and you understand and agree that offers and sales are being made in reliance on an exemption
to the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act. You understand and agree that the Equity Shares are
transferable only in accordance with the restrictions described under “Selling Restrictions” and “Transfer Restrictions”
on pages 398 and 405, respectively;

Each of the representations, warranties, acknowledgements and agreements set out above shall continue to be true and
accurate at all times up to and including the Allotment, listing and trading of the Equity Shares in the Issue. You agree
to indemnify and hold our Company and the Book Running Lead Managers and their respective affiliates and their
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42,

43.

44,

45,

46.

47.

respective directors, officers, employees and controlling persons harmless from any and all costs, claims, liabilities
and expenses (including legal fees and expenses) arising out of or in connection with any breach of the foregoing
representations, warranties, acknowledgements, agreements and undertakings made by you in this Preliminary
Placement Document. You agree that the indemnity set out in this paragraph shall survive the resale of the Equity
Shares by, or on behalf of, the managed accounts;

Our Company, the Book Running Lead Managers, their respective affiliates, directors, officers, employees and
controlling persons and others will rely on the truth and accuracy of the foregoing representations, warranties,
acknowledgements and undertakings, which are given to the Book Running Lead Managers on their own behalf and
on behalf of our Company, and are irrevocable;

You agree that any dispute arising in connection with the Issue will be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of Republic of India, and the courts in Bengaluru, India shall have sole and exclusive jurisdiction to settle any
disputes which may arise out of or in connection with this Preliminary Placement Document and the Placement
Document;

The Bid made by you would not result in triggering a tender offer under the SEBI Takeover Regulations; and

You have no right to withdraw your Application Form or revise your Bid downwards after the Issue Closing Date (as
defined hereinafter).

You confirm that neither is your investment as an entity of a country which shares land border with India nor is the
beneficial owner of your investment situated in or a citizen of such country (in each which case, investment can only
be through the Government approval route), and that your investment is in accordance with consolidated FDI Policy,
issued by the Department of Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Ministry of Commerce and Industry,
Government of India and Rule 6 of the FEMA Rules;

Your decision to subscribe to the Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to this Issue has not been made on the basis of
any information, which is not set forth in this Preliminary Placement Document.



OFFSHORE DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Subject to compliance with all applicable Indian laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and approvals in terms of Regulation 21
of the SEBI FPI Regulations, FPIs, including the affiliates of the Book Running Lead Managers, who are registered as category
| FPIs can issue, subscribe and deal in offshore derivative instruments (as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations, i.e., as any
instrument, by whatever name called, which is issued overseas by a FPI against securities held by it in India, as its underlying)
(all such offshore derivative instruments are referred to herein as “P-Notes™) and persons who are eligible for registration as
category | FPIs can subscribe to or deal in such P-Notes, provided that in the case of an entity that has an investment manager
who is from the Financial Action Task Force member country, such investment manager shall not be required to be registered
as a Category | FPI. The above-mentioned category | FPIs may receive compensation from the purchasers of such instruments.
In terms of Regulation 21 of SEBI FPI Regulations, P-Notes may be issued only by such persons who are registered as Category
| FPIs and they may be issued only to persons eligible for registration as Category | FPIs, subject to exceptions provided in the
SEBI FPI Regulations and compliance with ‘know your client’ requirements, as specified by SEBI and subject to compliance
with such other conditions as may be specified by SEBI from time to time. An Eligible FPI shall also ensure that no transfer of
any instrument referred to above is made to any person unless such FPIs are registered as Category | FPIs and such instrument
is being transferred only to person eligible for registration as Category | FPIs subject to requisite consents being obtained in
terms of Regulation 21 of SEBI FPI Regulations. P-Notes have not been, and are not being offered, or sold pursuant to this
Preliminary Placement Document and the Placement Document. This Preliminary Placement Document does not contain any
information concerning P-Notes or the issuer(s) of any P-Notes, including, without limitation, any information regarding any
risk factors relating thereto.

For further details relating to investment limits of FPIs, please see the section entitled “Issue Procedure” on page 383. P-Notes
may be issued only in favour of those entities which meet the eligibility criteria as laid down in Regulation 4 of the SEBI FPI
Regulations. Pursuant to its circular dated June 10, 2016, SEBI has introduced additional requirements applicable to P-Notes,
including (i) KYC norms for issuers of P-Notes which require identification and verification of beneficial owners of entities
subscribing to the P-Note holding more than a prescribed threshold; (ii) the requirement for issuers to file suspicious transaction
reports with the Indian Financial Intelligence Unit; and (iii) the requirement for the issuer to report details of intermediate
transfers in the monthly reports on P-Notes submitted to SEBI. An Eligible FPI shall also ensure that no further issue or transfer
of any instrument referred to above is made by or on behalf of it to any person other than such entities regulated by appropriate
foreign regulatory authorities. P-Notes have not been, and are not being offered, or sold pursuant to this Preliminary Placement
Document. This Preliminary Placement Document does not contain any information concerning P-Notes or the issuer(s) of any
P-notes, including, without limitation, any information regarding any risk factors relating thereto.

Subject to certain relaxations provided under Regulation 22(4) of the SEBI FPI Regulations, investment by a single FPI
including its investor group (multiple entities registered as FPIs and directly or indirectly, having common ownership of more
than 50% or common control) is not permitted to be 10% or above of our post-Issue Equity Share capital on a fully diluted
basis. The SEBI has, vide a circular dated November 5, 2019, issued the operational guidelines for FPIs, designated depository
participants and eligible foreign investors (the “FPI Operational Guidelines”), to facilitate implementation of the SEBI FPI
Regulations. In terms of such FPI Operational Guidelines, the above mentioned restrictions shall also apply to subscribers of
offshore derivative instruments and two or more subscribers of offshore derivative instruments having common ownership,
directly or indirectly, of more than 50% or common control shall be considered together as a single subscriber of the offshore
derivative instruments. Further, in the event a prospective investor has investments as an FPI and as a subscriber of offshore
derivative instruments, these investment restrictions shall apply on the aggregate of the FPI and offshore derivative instruments
investments held in the underlying company. Further, in accordance with Press Note No. 3 (2020 Series), dated April 17, 2020,
read with the FDI Policy, issued by the Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Government of India,
investments where the entity is of a country which shares land border with India or where the beneficial owner of the Equity
Shares is situated in or is a citizen of a country which shares land border with India, can only be made through the Government
approval route, as prescribed in the FDI Policy and FEMA rules. These investment restrictions shall also apply to subscribers
of offshore derivative instruments.

Affiliates of the BRLMs which are Eligible FPIs may purchase, to the extent permissible under law, the Equity Shares in the
Issue, and may issue P-Notes in respect thereof. Any P-Notes that may be issued are not securities of our Company and do not
constitute any obligation of, claims on or interests in our Company. Our Company has not participated in any offer of any P-
Notes, or in the establishment of the terms of any P-Notes, or in the preparation of any disclosure related to any P-Notes. Any
P-Notes that may be offered are issued by and are the sole obligations of, third parties that are unrelated to our Company. Our
Company, and, the BRLMs do not make any recommendation as to any investment in P-Notes and do not accept any
responsibility whatsoever in connection with any P-Notes. Any P-Notes that may be issued are not securities of the BRLMs
and does not constitute any obligations of or claims on the BRLMs.

Prospective investors interested in purchasing any P-Notes have the responsibility to obtain adequate disclosures as to
the issuer(s) of such P-Notes and the terms and conditions of any such P-Notes from the issuer(s) of such P-Notes. Neither
SEBI nor any other regulatory authority has reviewed or approved any P-Notes or any disclosure related thereto.
Prospective investors are urged to consult their own financial, legal, accounting and tax advisors regarding any
contemplated investment in P-Notes, including whether P-Notes are issued in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.



DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF THE STOCK EXCHANGES
Disclaimer clause of the Stock Exchanges

As required, a copy of this Preliminary Placement Document has been submitted to each of the Stock Exchanges. The Stock
Exchanges do not in any manner:

1. warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this Preliminary Placement
Document;
2. warrant that the Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue will be listed or will continue to be listed on the Stock

Exchanges; and

3. take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of our Company, our Promoter, our management or any
scheme or project of our Company.

It should not for any reason be deemed or construed to mean that this Preliminary Placement Document has been cleared or
approved by the Stock Exchanges. Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquires any Equity Shares may do so
pursuant to an independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim against the Stock Exchanges
whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to, or in connection with, such
subscription/acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or for any other reason whatsoever.



PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
Certain Conventions

In this Preliminary Placement Document, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise indicates or implies, references
to ‘you’, ‘your’, ‘offeree’, ‘purchaser’, ‘subscriber’, ‘recipient’, ‘investors’, ‘prospective investors’ and ‘potential investor’ are
to the Eligible QIBs who are the prospective investors in the Equity Shares issued pursuant to the Issue, references to the
‘Company’, ‘we’, ‘us’, ‘our’ or the ‘Issuer’ are to AXISCADES Technologies Limited together with its Subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis.

In this Preliminary Placement Document, references to ‘INR’, ?’, ‘Rs.’, ‘Indian Rupees’ and ‘Rupees’ are to the legal currency
of India. All references herein to ‘India’ are to the Republic of India and its territories and possessions and the ‘Government’
or the ‘Central Government’ or the ‘State Government’ are to the Government of India, central or state, as applicable.

References to the singular also refer to the plural and one gender also refers to any other gender, wherever applicable. All the
numbers in this Preliminary Placement Document have been presented in lakhs or whole numbers, unless stated otherwise.

Page Numbers

Unless otherwise stated, all references to page numbers in this Preliminary Placement Document are to page numbers of this
Preliminary Placement Document

Financial and Other Information

The financial year of our Company commences on April 1 of each calendar year and ends on March 31 of the following calendar
year, and, unless otherwise specified or if the context requires otherwise, all references to a particular “financial year’, ‘Fiscal
Year’, ‘Fiscal’ or ‘FY” are to the twelve month period ended on March 31 of that year and references to a particular ‘year’ are
to the calendar year ending on December 31 of that year.

In this Preliminary Placement Document, unless the context requires otherwise or unless stated otherwise, all financial
information for the six months period ended September 30, 2023 and for the Fiscal 2023, 2022 and 2021 is derived from the
Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, Fiscal 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements,
Fiscal 2022 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Fiscal 2021 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standard 34, “Interim Financial Reporting” prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

There are significant differences between Ind AS, U.S. GAAP and IFRS. The financial information included in this Preliminary
Placement Document comprise of our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for Fiscals 2023, 2022, 2021 and the
Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. The Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements for the six months ended September 30, 2023 have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard
34, “Interim Financial Reporting” prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. The financial information for the six months ended September 30, 2023 is not indicative of future operating
performance and are not comparable with annual financial information presented.

See “Risk Factors — Significant differences exist between Ind AS, U.S. GAAP and IFRS, which may be material to investors’
assessments of our financial condition. Accordingly, financial statements included in this Preliminary Placement Document
might not provide meaningful information to readers whose level of familiarity with Indian accounting practices is limited.”
on page 58.

Certain non-GAAP financial measures and certain other statistical information relating to our operations and financial
performance like EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin, PAT Margin, Return on Equity, current ratio, interest coverage ratio,
net working capital have been included in this Preliminary Placement Document. We compute and disclose such non-GAAP
financial measures and such other statistical information relating to our operations and financial performance as we consider
such information to be useful measures of our business and financial performance and because such measures are frequently
used by security analysts, investors and others to evaluate the operational performance of companies in our industry, many of
which provide such non-GAAP.

These non-GAAP measures are supplemental measure of our performance and liquidity that is not required by, or presented in
accordance with, Ind AS, Indian GAAP, IFRS or US GAAP. Further, these non-GAAP Measures are not a measurement of our
financial performance or liquidity under Ind AS, Indian GAAP, IFRS or US GAAP and should not be considered in isolation
or construed as an alternative to cash flows, profit/ (loss) for the years/ period or any other measure of financial performance
or as an indicator of our operating performance, liquidity, profitability or cash flows generated by operating, investing or
financing activities derived in accordance with Ind AS, Indian GAAP, IFRS or US GAAP. In addition, these non-GAAP
measures are not standardised terms, hence a direct comparison of these non-GAAP Measures between companies may not be
possible. Other companies may calculate these non-GAAP Measures differently from us, limiting its usefulness as a
comparative measure.
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For Fiscal 2023, Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2021 and the six month period ended September 30, 2023, our financials are prepared
in lakhs and have been presented in this Preliminary Placement Document in lakhs. In this Preliminary Placement Document,
references to “lakh(s)” represent “100,000”, “million” represents “10 lakhs” or <“10,00,000”, “crore(s)’represents
“1,00,00,0000r “10 million” or “100 lakhs™, and “billion™ represents “1,00,00,00,000” or “1,000 million” or “100 crore”.
Certain figures contained in this Preliminary Placement Document, including financial information, have been subject to
rounding adjustments. Any discrepancies in any table between the totals and the sum of the amounts listed are due to rounding
off. All figures in decimals have been rounded off to the second decimal. In certain instances, (i) the sum or percentage change
of such numbers may not conform exactly to the total figure given, and (ii) the sum of the figures in a column or row in certain
tables may not conform exactly to the total figure given for that column or row. Unless otherwise specified, all financial numbers
in parenthesis represent negative figures.
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INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

Information regarding market position, growth rates and other industry data pertaining to our businesses contained in this
Preliminary Placement Document consists of estimates based on data and reports compiled by government bodies, professional
organizations, industry publications and analysts, data from other external sources and knowledge of the markets in which we
compete. The statistical information included in this Preliminary Placement Document relating to the various sectors in which
we operate has been reproduced from various trade, industry and regulatory/ government publications and websites, more
particularly described in “Industry Overview” on page 326.

Unless stated otherwise, statistical information, industry and market data used throughout this Preliminary Placement Document
has been obtained from the report titled “Defence and ER&D Industry Report” dated January 2, 2024 (the “Lattice Report™),
which is a report exclusively commissioned and paid for by our Company and prepared by Lattice Technologies Private Limited
pursuant to an engagement letter dated December 7, 2023 in connection with the Issue.

The Lattice Report contains following disclaimer:

“This material has been prepared by 1Lattice, which is the trade name of Lattice Technologies Private Limited ( “1Lattice”,
“we” or “our”) with the intent to showcase our capability and disseminate learnings to potential partners/clients. The report
has been prepared as a general summary of matters on the basis of our interpretation of the publicly available information,
our experiences and the information provided to us, and should not be treated as a substitute for a specific business advice
concerning individual matters, situations or concerns. Procedures we have performed do not constitute an audit of the
Company ’s historical financial statements nor do they constitute an examination of prospective financial statements. We have
also not performed any procedures to ensure or evaluate the reliability or completeness of the information obtained from the
Company. Accordingly, we express no opinion, warranty, representation or any other form of assurance on the historical or
prospective financial statements, management representations, or other data of the Company included in or underlying the
accompanying information. We have not carried out any financial, tax, environmental or accounting due diligence with respect

to the Company.”

This data is subject to change and cannot be verified with complete certainty due to limits on the availability and reliability of
the raw data and other limitations and uncertainties inherent in any statistical survey. See also “Risk Factors — Industry
information included in this Preliminary Placement Document has been derived from an industry report exclusively
commissioned by us for such purpose. There can be no assurance that such third-party statistical, financial and other industry
information is complete, reliable or accurate ” on page 56.

Neither our Company, nor the Book Running Lead Managers have independently verified such third party and industry related
data and make any representation regarding the accuracy or completeness of such data. Similarly, while we believe that our
internal estimates are reasonable, such estimates have not been verified by any independent sources, and neither our Company
nor any of the Book Running Lead Managers can assure potential investors as to their accuracy. See also “Risk Factors —
Industry information included in this Preliminary Placement Document has been derived from an industry report exclusively
commissioned by us for such purpose. There can be no assurance that such third-party statistical, financial and other industry
information is complete, reliable or accurate ” on page 56.

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Preliminary Placement Document is meaningful depends on the
reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. Accordingly, investment
decisions should not be based solely on such information.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this Preliminary Placement Document that are not statements of historical fact constitute
forward looking statements. The prospective investors can generally identify forward looking statements by terminology such
as ‘aim’, ‘anticipate’, ‘believe’, ‘continue’, ‘can’, ‘could’, ‘estimate’, ‘expect’, ‘goal’, ‘intend’, ‘may’, ‘objective’, ‘plan’,
‘potential’, ‘project’, ‘pursue’, ‘shall’, ‘seek to’, ‘should’, ‘will’, ‘will continue’, ‘will pursue’, ‘would’, or other words or
phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe the strategies, objectives, plans or goals of our Company are also
forward looking statements. However, these are not the exclusive means of identifying forward looking statements.

The forward looking statements appear in a number of places throughout this Preliminary Placement Document and include
statements regarding the intentions, beliefs or current expectations of our Company concerning, amongst other things, the
expected results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, prospects, growth, strategies and dividend policy of our Company
and the industry in which we operate. In addition, even if the result of operations, financial conditions, liquidity and dividend
policy of our Company, and the development of the industry in which we operate, are consistent with the forward looking
statements contained in this Preliminary Placement Document, those results or developments may not be indicative of results
or developments in subsequent periods.

All statements regarding our expected financial conditions, results of operations, business plans and prospects are forward
looking statements. These forward looking statements include statements as to our Company’s business strategy, planned
projects, revenue and profitability (including, without limitation, any financial or operating projections or forecasts), new
business and other matters discussed in this Preliminary Placement Document that are not historical facts. These forward
looking statements contained in this Preliminary Placement Document (whether made by our Company or any third party), are
predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors that may cause the actual
results, performance or achievements of our Company to be materially different from any future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward looking statements or other projections. All forward looking statements
are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about our Company that could cause actual results to differ materially from
those contemplated by the relevant forward looking statement. Important factors that could cause the actual results,
performances and achievements of our Company to be materially different from any of the forward looking statements include,
among others:

e Our business largely depends upon our top 10 customers. For the six-months ended September 30, 2023 and in the Fiscal
2023, 2022, 2021, our revenue from top 10 customers was <34,718.46 lakhs, 61,370.85 lakhs, 345,883.29 lakhs and
340,018.81 lakhs representing 74.65%, 75.42%, 75.42%and 77.35% of our revenue from operations respectively. The loSs
of any of these customers could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows.

e  Our customers located in Europe and North America make up for a significant proportion of our total revenue. Worsening
economic conditions or factors that negatively affect the economic conditions of Europe and North America could
materially adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

e Our revenues are highly dependent on a limited number of industry verticals, and any decrease in demand for outsourced
services in these industry verticals could reduce our revenues and materially adversely affect our business, cash flows,
financial condition and results of operations.

e We do not have agreements having commitment on part of our customers to purchase or place orders with us. If our
customers choose not to source their requirements from us, there may be a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, cash flows and results of operations.

e Our products and solutions business which encompasses our defense offerings is largely dependent on contracts from the
Government of India and associated entities including defence public sector undertakings. A decline or reprioritisation of
the Indian defense budget, reduction in orders, termination of existing contracts, delay of existing or anticipated contracts
or programmes or any adverse change in the Gol ’s defense related budget and policies may have a material adverse impact
on our business.

Additional factors that could cause actual results, performance or achievements of our Company to differ materially include,
but are not limited to, those discussed under the sections titled “Risk Factors”, “Industry Overview”, “Our Business” and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on pages 35, 326, 352 and 292,
respectively.

By their nature, market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the
future. As a result, any future gains, losses or impact on net income and net income could materially differ from those that have
been estimated, expressed or implied by such forward looking statements or other projections. The forward looking statements
contained in this Preliminary Placement Document are based on the beliefs of the management, as well as the assumptions
made by, and information currently available to, the management of our Company. Although our Company believes that the
expectations reflected in such forward looking statements are reasonable at this time, it cannot assure the prospective investors
that such expectations will prove to be correct. Given these uncertainties, the prospective investors are cautioned not to place
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undue reliance on such forward looking statements. In any event, these statements speak only as of the date of this Preliminary
Placement Document or the respective dates indicated in this Preliminary Placement Document, and our Company or the Book
Running Lead Managers undertake no obligation to update or revise any of them, whether as a result of new information, future
events, changes in assumptions or changes in factors affecting these forward looking statements or otherwise. If any of these
risks and uncertainties materialise, or if any of our Company’s underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, the actual results
of operations or financial condition of our Company could differ materially from that described herein as anticipated, believed,
estimated or expected. All subsequent forward looking statements attributable to our Company are expressly qualified in their
entirety by reference to these cautionary statements. In accordance with SEBI and Stock Exchange requirements, our Company
and the Book Running Lead Managers’ will ensure that the Shareholders are informed of material developments until the time
of the grant of listing and trading permissions by the Stock Exchange.
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ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

Our Company is a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of India. Except for Abidali Zainuddin Neemuchwala
who is a resident of United States of America, all the Directors and Senior Management of our Company named herein are
resident citizens of India and all of the assets of our Company and of such persons are located in India. As a result, it may be
difficult or may not be possible for the prospective investors outside India to affect service of process upon our Company or
such persons in India, or to enforce against them judgments of courts outside India.

India is not a signatory to any international treaty in relation to the recognition or enforcement of foreign judgments. However,
recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments is provided for under Section 13 and Section 44A of the Civil Procedure
Code. Section 13 of the Civil Procedure Code provides that a foreign judgment shall be conclusive regarding any matter directly
adjudicated upon between the same parties or parties litigating under the same title, except:

a. where the judgment has not been pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction;
b. where the judgment has not been given on the merits of the case;
c. where it appears on the face of the proceedings that the judgment is founded on an incorrect view of international law

or a refusal to recognise the law of India in cases in which such law is applicable;

d. where the proceedings in which the judgment was obtained were opposed to natural justice;
e. where the judgment has been obtained by fraud; and
f. where the judgment sustains a claim founded on a breach of any law in force in India.

Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code provides that a foreign judgment rendered by a superior court (within the meaning of
that section) in any jurisdiction outside India which the Government has by notification declared to be a reciprocating territory,
may be enforced in India by proceedings in execution as if the judgment had been rendered by a district court in India. Under
Section 14 of the Civil Procedure Code, a court in India will, upon the production of any document purporting to be a certified
copy of a foreign judgment, presume that the foreign judgment was pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction, unless the
contrary appears on record but such presumption may be displaced by proving want of jurisdiction. However, Section 44A of
the Civil Procedure Code is applicable only to monetary decrees not being in the nature of any amounts payable in respect of
taxes or other charges of a like nature or in respect of a fine or other penalties and does not include arbitration awards. The
execution of a foreign decree under Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code is also subject to the exception under Section 13
of the Civil Procedure Code as mentioned above.

Each of the United Kingdom, Singapore, United Arab Emirates and Hong Kong, amongst others has been declared by the
Government to be a reciprocating territory for the purposes of Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code, but the United States
of America has not been so declared. A foreign judgment of a court in a jurisdiction which is not a reciprocating territory may
be enforced only by a new suit upon the foreign judgment and not by proceedings in execution. The suit must be brought in
India within three years from the date of the foreign judgment in the same manner as any other suit filed to enforce a civil
liability in India. Accordingly, a judgment of a court in the United States may be enforced only by a fresh suit upon the foreign
judgment and not by proceedings in execution.

It is unlikely that a court in India would award damages on the same basis as a foreign court if an action is brought in India.
Furthermore, it is unlikely that an Indian court would enforce foreign judgments if it viewed the amount of damages awarded
as excessive or inconsistent with public policy, and it is uncertain whether an Indian court would enforce foreign judgments
that would contravene or violate Indian law. Further, any judgment or award in a foreign currency would be converted into
Rupees on the date of such judgment or award and not on the date of payment. A party seeking to enforce a foreign judgment
in India is required to obtain approval from the RBI to repatriate outside India any amount recovered, and any such amount
may be subject to income tax in accordance with applicable laws. Our Company and the Book Running Lead Managers cannot
predict whether a suit brought in an Indian court will be disposed of in a timely manner or be subject to considerable delays.
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EXCHANGE RATES

Fluctuations in the exchange rate between the Rupee and foreign currencies will affect the foreign currency equivalent of the
Rupee price of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. These fluctuations will also affect the conversion into foreign
currencies of any cash dividends paid in Rupees on the Equity Shares.

The following table sets forth information with respect to the exchange rates between the Rupee and the U.S. dollar (in  per
USD), Euro (in X per EUR) and Canadian dollar (in X per CAD). The exchange rates are based on the reference rates released
by the RBI/ FBIL/ Exchangerates.org.uk, which are available on the website of the RBI/ FBIL/Exchangerates.org.uk. No
representation is made that any Rupee amounts could have been, or could be, converted into U.S. dollars, Euros and CAD at
any particular rate, the rates stated below, or at all.

1. US dollar
(% per USD)
| Period end® | Average® [ High® | Low®

Fiscal*
2023 82.22 80.39 83.20 75.39
2022 75.81 7451 76.92 72.48
2021 73.50 74.20 76.81 72.29
Month ended*
December 31, 2023* 83.12 83.28 83.40 83.02
November 30, 2023 83.35 83.30 83.39 83.13
October 31, 2023 83.27 83.24 83.27 83.15
September 30, 2023 83.06 83.05 83.26 82.66
August 31, 2023 82.68 82.79 83.12 82.28
July 31, 2023 82.25 82.15 82.68 81.81

(Source: www.rbi.org.in and www.fbil.org.in)

(1) The price for the period end refers to the price as on the last trading day of the respective fiscal year or monthly periods;
(2) Average of the official rate for each working day of the relevant period;

(3) Maximum of the official rate for each working day of the relevant period; and

(4) Minimum of the official rate for each working day of the relevant period.

Notes:
* If the RBI/ FBIL reference rate is not available on a particular date due to a public holiday, exchange rates of the previous working day have
been disclosed. The RBI/ FBIL reference rates are rounded off to two decimal places.

2. EURO
(X per EUR)
| Period end® | Average® | High® | Low®
Fiscal*
2023 89.61 83.72 90.26 78.34
2022 84.66 86.56 90.51 83.48
2021 86.10 86.67 90.31 81.50
Month ended*
December 31, 2023* 92.00 90.84 92.45 89.74
November 30, 2023 91.48 89.99 91.64 88.04
October 31, 2023 88.32 87.88 88.49 87.08
September 30, 2023 87.94 88.74 89.62 87.34
August 31, 2023 90.22 90.37 91.06 89.17
July 31, 2023 90.58 90.84 92.29 89.15

(Source: www.rbi.org.in and www.fbil.org.in)

(1) The price for the period end refers to the price as on the last trading day of the respective fiscal year or monthly periods;
(2) Average of the official rate for each working day of the relevant period;

(3) Maximum of the official rate for each working day of the relevant period; and

(4) Minimum of the official rate for each working day of the relevant period

Notes:
* If the RBI/ FBIL reference rate is not available on a particular date due to a public holiday, exchange rates of the previous working day have
been disclosed. The RBI/ FBIL reference rates are rounded off to two decimal places.

3. Canadian Dollar
(X per CAD)
| Period end® | Average® | High®) | Low®

Fiscal*
2023 60.76 60.71 62.37 59.02
2022 60.69 59.44 61.14 57.46
2021 58.28 56.19 58.34 53.17
Month ended*
December 31, 2023 62.82 62.08 63.06 61.29
November 30, 2023 61.48 60.75 61.48 60.18
October 31, 2023 60.00 60.69 61.33 60.00
September 30, 2023 61.20 61.30 62.06 60.69
August 31, 2023 61.18 61.44 62.05 60.65
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[July 31, 2023 | 62.35| 62.13] 62.57 | 61.86 |
(Source: https://www.exchangerates.org.uk/)

(1) The price for the period end refers to the price as on the last trading day of the respective fiscal year or monthly periods;

(2) Average of the official rate for each working day of the relevant period;

(3) Maximum of the official rate for each working day of the relevant period; and

(4) Minimum of the official rate for each working day of the relevant period

Notes:

* If the reference rate is not available on a particular date due to a public holiday, exchange rates of the previous working day have been
disclosed. The reference rates are rounded off to two decimal places.
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DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Preliminary Placement Document uses the definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider when
reading the information contained herein. The following list of certain capitalised terms used in this Preliminary Placement
Document is intended for the convenience of the reader/ prospective investor only and is not exhaustive.

Unless otherwise specified, the capitalised terms used in this Preliminary Placement Document shall have the meaning as
defined hereunder. Further any references to any agreement, document, statute, rules, guidelines, regulations or policies shall
include amendments made thereto, from time to time.

The words and expressions used in this Preliminary Placement Document but not defined herein, shall have, to the extent
applicable, the meaning ascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, 2013 the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SCRA, the
Depositories Act or the rules and regulations made thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms used in the sections titled
“Taxation”, “Industry Overview”, “Financial Statements” and “Legal Proceedings” on pages 412, 326, 76 and 425
respectively, shall have the meaning given to such terms in such sections.

General Terms

Term

Description

“our Company”, “the Company”,
“the Issuer”

AXISCADES Technologies Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 and
having its Registered and Corporate Office at Block C, Second Floor, Kirloskar Business Park,
Bengaluru, Karnataka, India, 560 024

“we” or “us” or “our” or “group”

Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company, its Subsidiaries and its
associate, on a consolidated basis.*

For the purpose of financial information, “we” or “us” or “our” or “group” would mean our Company,
its Subsidiaries and its associate as at or during the relevant period/ fiscal.

*On July 11, 2022, our Company sold the investment in its associate ASSYSTEMS AXISCADES Engineering
Private Limited (“AAEPL ) pursuant to which AAEPL has ceased to be an associate of our Company.

Company Related Terms

Term

Description

“Articles” or  “Articles of

Association” or “AocA”

Articles of association of our Company, as amended

Audit Committee

The audit committee of our Company, constituted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulations, and as described in “Board of Directors and
Senior Management” on page 364

Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements

Fiscal 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, Fiscal 2022 Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and Fiscal 2021 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

“Auditors” or “Statutory Auditors”

M/s S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

“Board of Directors” or “Board” or
“our Board”

The board of directors of our Company or any duly constituted committee thereof

Capital Raise Committee

Capital Raise Committee of our Company as disclosed in “Board of Directors and Senior
Management” on page 364

Directors The directors on the Board of our Company
Equity Shares Equity shares of our Company of face value of 5 each
ESOP Collectively, Axiscades ESOP 2018 — Series 1 and Axiscades ESOP 2018 — Series 2

Fiscal 2023 Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our audited consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2023 comprising the consolidated balance
sheet as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the consolidated statement
of cash flow and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
read along with the notes thereto, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information prepared in accordance with Ind AS

Fiscal 2022 Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our audited consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2022 comprising the consolidated balance
sheet as at March 31, 2022, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the consolidated statement
of cash flow and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
read along with the notes thereto, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information prepared in accordance with Ind AS

Fiscal 2021 Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our audited consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2021 of comprising the consolidated balance
sheet as at March 31, 2021, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the consolidated statement
of cash flow and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2021
read along with the notes thereto, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information prepared in accordance with Ind AS

Independent Director(s)

Non-Executive and Independent directors on the Board, as disclosed in “Board of Directors and Senior
Management” on page 364

“Key Managerial Personnel”

“KM Pn

or

Key managerial personnel of our Company in accordance with Regulation 2(1)(bb) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations as disclosed in “Board of Directors and Senior Management” on page 364

Lattice Report

“Defence and ER&D Industry Report” dated January 2, 2024, which is a report exclusively
commissioned and paid for by our Company and prepared by Lattice Technologies Private Limited

18




Term

Description

Material Subsidiaries

AXISCADES Aerospace and Technologies Private Limited, AXISCADES Aerospace Infrastructure
Private Limited, Enertec Controls Limited, Mistral Solutions Private Limited, AXISCADES Inc. and
AXISCADES Technology Canada Inc.

“Memorandum” or “Memorandum
of Association” or “MoA”

Memorandum of association of our Company, as amended

Mistral Mistral Solutions Private Limited
Nomination and Remuneration | Nomination and remuneration committee of our Company, constituted in accordance with the
Committee applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulations, as described in

“Board of Directors and Senior Management” on page 364

Preference Shares

Preference shares of our Company of face value of 100 each

Promoter

Our Promoter, namely Jupiter Capital Private Limited

Promoter Group

Individuals and entities constituting the promoter group of our Company in terms of Regulation
2(1)(pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

“Registrar of Companies” or “RoC”

Registrar of Companies, Karnataka at Bangalore

Registered and Corporate Office

Block C, Second Floor, Kirloskar Business Park, Bengaluru, Karnataka, India, 560 024

Risk Management Committee

The risk management committee of our Company, constituted in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations and as described in “Board
of Directors and Senior Management” on page 364

Senior Management

Key Managerial Personnel and senior management of our Company, as described in “Board of
Directors and Senior Management” on page 364

Shareholders

Shareholders of our Company

The stakeholders’ relationship committee of our Company, constituted in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations and as described
in “Board of Directors and Senior Management” on page 364

AXISCADES Inc., AXISCADES UK Limited, AXISCADES Technology Canada Inc., AXISCADES
GmbH, Axis Mechanical Engineering Design (Wuxi) Co. Ltd., Cades Studec Technologies (India)
Private Limited, AXISCADES Aerospace and Technologies Private Limited, AXISCADES
Aerospace Infrastructure Private Limited, Enertec Controls Limited, Mistral Solutions Private
Limited, Aero Electronics Private Limited, Mistral Technologies Private Limited, Mistral Solutions
Inc., Mistral Solutions Pte Limited, Explosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited, Add-solutions GmbH
and Epcogen Private Limited.

Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee
Subsidiaries
Unaudited Interim  Condensed

Consolidated Financial Statements

The unaudited interim condensed consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at September 30, 2023
and the related interim condensed consolidated statement of profit and loss (including the interim
condensed consolidated statement of other comprehensive income), interim condensed consolidated
statement of changes in equity and interim condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the six
months period ended September 30, 2023 and an interim condensed summary of material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information, prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standard 34, “Interim Financial Reporting” prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Issue Related Terms

Term

Description

“Allocated” or “Allocation”

Allocation of Equity Shares, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers, following the
determination of the Issue Price to Eligible QIBs on the basis of Application Forms submitted by
them, in compliance with Chapter V1 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

“Allotment” or “Allotted”

Allotment and issue of Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue

Allottees

Eligible QIBs to whom Equity Shares of our Company are issued pursuant to the Issue

Application Form

Form (including any revisions thereof) which will be submitted by the Eligible QIBs for registering a
Bid in the Issue

Bid Amount With respect to a Bidder shall mean the aggregate amount paid by such Bidder at the time of submitting
a Bid in the Issue, including any revisions thereof

Bid(s) Indication of an Eligible QIB’s interest including all revisions and modifications of interest, as
provided in the Application Form, to subscribe for the Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue. The term
“Bidding” shall be construed accordingly

Bidder(s) Any prospective investor, being an Eligible QIB, who makes a Bid pursuant to the terms of this

Preliminary Placement Document and the Application Form

“Book Running Lead Managers” or
“BRLMSs” or “Lead Managers”

Collectively IIFL Securities Limited, Ambit Private Limited and Centrum Capital Limited

BSE

BSE Limited

“CAN” or “Confirmation
Allocation Note”

of

Note, advice or intimation confirming the Allocation of Equity Shares to Successful Bidders
confirming Allocation of Equity Shares to such Successful Bidders after determination of the Issue
Price

Closing Date

The date on which Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue shall be made, i.e., on or about

[o]

Designated Date

The date on which the Equity Shares issued pursuant to the Issue, are listed on the Stock Exchanges
pursuant to receipt of the final listing and trading approvals for the Equity Shares from the Stock
Exchanges or the date on which Form PAS-3 is filed by our Company with the RoC, whichever is
later
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Term

Description

Eligible FPIs FPIs that are eligible to participate in this Issue in terms of applicable laws, other than individuals,
corporate bodies and family offices

Eligible QIBs QIBs, as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations that are eligible to
participate in the Issue and which are not excluded pursuant to Regulation 179(2)(b) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations. However, FVCls are not permitted to participate in the Issue.

Escrow Account Special non-interest bearing, no-lien, current bank account without any cheque or overdraft facilities,

opened with the Escrow Bank, subject to the terms of the Escrow Agreement

Escrow Bank

RBL Bank Limited

Escrow Agreement

Agreement dated January 10, 2024, entered into by and amongst our Company, the Escrow Bank and
the Book Running Lead Managers for collection of the Bid Amount and remitting refunds, if any, of
the amounts collected, to the Bidders

Floor Price

Floor price of 696.70, for each Equity Share, calculated in accordance with Chapter VI of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations. Our Company may offer a discount of not more than 5% on the Floor Price in
accordance with the special resolution of our Shareholders passed by way of a postal ballot dated
December 18, 2023, the results of which were declared on December 19, 2023 and in terms of
Regulation 176(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Issue

The offer, issue and Allotment of up to [e] of the Equity Shares to Eligible QIBs, pursuant to Chapter
VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder

Issue Closing Date

[e], 2024, the date after which our Company (or Book Running Lead Managers on behalf of our
Company) shall cease acceptance of Application Forms and the Bid Amount

Issue Opening Date

January 10, 2024 the date on which our Company (or the Book Running Lead Managers on behalf of
our Company) shall commence acceptance of the Application Forms and the Bid Amount

Issue Period Period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date, inclusive of both days during
which Eligible QIBs can submit their Bids along with the Bid Amount

Issue Price A price per Equity Share of 3[e]

Issue Size The Issue of [@] Equity Shares aggregating to [e] lakhs

Monitoring Agency CRISIL Ratings Limited

Mutual Fund A mutual fund registered with the SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual

Funds) Regulations, 1996

Net Proceeds

The net proceeds from the Issue, after deducting fees, commissions and expenses of the Issue

NSE

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Placement Agreement

Placement agreement dated January 10, 2024 entered into by and among our Company and the Book
Running Lead Managers

Placement Document

Placement document to be issued in accordance with Chapter V1 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder

Preliminary Placement Document

This preliminary placement document along with the Application Form, dated January 10, 2024 issued
in accordance with Chapter VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder

“QIB” or “Qualified Institutiona| Qualified institutional buyer, as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations
Buyer”
QIP Qualified institutions placement under Chapter VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the applicable rules of the PAS Rules

Refund Amount

The aggregate amount to be returned to the Bidders who have not been Allocated Equity Shares for
all or part of the Bid Amount submitted by such Bidder pursuant to the Issue

Refund Intimation

The intimation from the Company to relevant Bidders confirming refund of the Refund Amount to
their respective bank accounts

Relevant Date

January 10, 2024 which is the date of the meeting in which the Capital Raise Committee decided to
open the Issue

Successful Bidders

The Bidders who have Bid at or above the Issue Price, duly paid the Bid Amount and who will be
Allocated Equity Shares in the Issue

Stock Exchanges

BSE and NSE

Working Day

Any day other than second and fourth Saturday of the relevant month or a Sunday or a public holiday
or a day on which scheduled commercial banks are authorized or obligated by law to remain closed
in Mumbai, India

Business and Industry Related Terms

Term Description
“3D” 3-Dimensional
“4D” 4-Dimensional
“ADA” Aeronautical Development Agency

“Adjusted EBITDA”

Adjusted Earnings Before Interest Tax Depreciation & Amortization

“Adjusted EBITDA Margin”

Adjusted Earnings Before Interest Tax Depreciation & Amortization Margin

“ADS”

Aerospace, Defence and Security

“AEW&C” Airborne Early Warning and Control System
“Al” Artificial Intelligence

“ALH” Advanced Light Helicopters

“AMCA” Advanced Medium Combat Aircraft
“APAC” Asia Pacific Region
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“APEC” Asia-Pacific Economic Cooperation

“AR/VR” Augmented Reality/Virtual Reality

“ATAGS” Advanced Towed Artillery Gun System
“ATUFS” Amended Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme
“B” Billion

“BAM” Battlefield Management System

“BEL” Bharat Electronics Limited

“BFSI” Banking, Financial Services and Insurance
“BIMSTEC” Bay of Bengal Initiative for Multi-Sectoral Technical and Economic Cooperation
“BIW” Body-In -White

“BPO” Business Process Outsourcing

“BRICS” Brazil, Russia, India, China, South Africa
“C4I1SR” Command, Control, Communications, Computers, Intelligence, Surveillance, and Reconnaissance
“CAD” Computer Aided Design

“CAGR” Compound Annual Growth Rate

“CEMA” Cyber Electromagnetic Activities

“CEMILAC” Centre For Military Airworthiness & Certification
“CIW” Cabin-In-White

“COTS” Commercial Off The Shelf

“DAP” Defence Acquisition Procedure

“DBF” Digital Beam Forming

“DEWSs” Directed Energy Weapons

“DGAQA” Directorate General of Aeronautical Quality Assurance
“DIH” Defence Innovation Hub

“DISC” Defence India Start-Up Challenge

“DPIIT” Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade
“DPSUs” Defence Public Sector Undertakings

“DRDO” Defence Research and Development Organization
“E” Estimated

“E-bombs” Electronic Bombs

“EMS” Electromagnetic Spectrum

“ER&D” Engineering, Research and Development

“ESM” Electronic Support Measures

“ESPs” Engineering Service Providers

“EW” Electronic Warfare

“FDI” Foreign Direct Investment

“FOC” Firm Order Commitment

“FPGA” Field Programmable Gate Array

“G20” Group of Twenty

“GCCs” Global Capability Centres

“HAL” Hindustan Aeronautics Limited

“HEAUV” High Endurance Autonomous Underwater Vehicle
“HMI” Human Machine Interface

“HRMS” Human Resources Management System

“HX” Human Experience

“lAF” Indian Air Force

“|ICDP” Integrated Capability Development Plan

“iDEX” Innovations for Defence Excellence

“IDMM” Indigenously Designed Developed and Manufactured
“110T” Industrial Internet of Things

“INS” Indian Naval Ship

“loP” Internet of People

“loT” Internet of Things

“1SO” International Organization for Standardization
“ISRO” Indian Space Research Organization

“ISTAR” Intelligence, Surveillance, Target Acquisition, and Reconnaissance
“17” Information Technology

“L&T” Larsen & Toubro

“LCA” Light Combat Aircraft

“LLTR” Low Level Transportable Radar

“M” Million

“MDL” Mazagaon Dock Shipbuilders Limited

“MH” Maritime Helicopter

“MK” Mark

“ML” Machine Learning

“MoD” Ministry of Defence, India

“MPR” Medium Power Radars

“MRFA” Multirole Fighter Aircraft

“MRSAM” Medium Range Surface-to-Air Missile

“MSIPS” Modified Special Incentive Package
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“MSMEs” Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises
“NATO” North Atlantic Treaty Organization

“NEP” National Electronic Policy

“Qceania” Region comprising Australia, Melanesia, Micronesia, and Polynesia
“OEM” Original Equipment Manufacturer

“p Projection

“PB”IDT Profit Before Interest Depreciation and Tax
“PIB” Press Information Bureau, Government of India
“PIL” Positive Indigenization List

“PPE” Property, Plant and Equipment

“PLI” Production Linked Incentive

“PLM” Product Lifecycle Management

“PoK” Pakistan Occupied Kashmir

“PSU” Public Sector Undertaking

“Quad” Quadrilateral Security Dialogue

“R&D” Research and Development

“RowW” Rest of the World

“ROU” Right of Use

“SAM” Surface-to-Air Missile

“SCO” Shanghai Cooperation Organization

“SEZs” Special Economic Zones

“SoC” System-on-Chip

“SRIJAN” System for Real-time Inspection with the Help of Jig on the Assembly Line
“SwaP” Size, Weight, and Power

“T” Trillion

“TPM” Total Productive Maintenance

“UAVs” Unmanned Aerial Vehicle

“UGVs” Unmanned Ground Vehicles

“VR” Virtual Reality

Conventional and General Terms/ Abbreviations

Term

Description

“INR” or “Rupees” or “I” or
“Indian Rupees” or “Rs.”

Indian Rupees

AED United Arab Emirate Dirham

AGM Annual general meeting

AIF(s) Alternative investment funds, as defined and registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate

CAD Canadian Dollar

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CEO Chief executive officer

CFO Chief financial officer

CIN Corporate identity number

Civil Procedure Code The Code of Civil Procedure, 1908

CNY Chinese Yuan

CY Calendar Year

Companies Act, 1956

The erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder

Companies Act, 2013

The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996

Depository

A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories
and Participant) Regulations, 1996

Depository Participant

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act

DKK Danish Krone

EBITDA Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation

EGM Extraordinary general meeting

EPS Earnings per share

EU European Union

EUR Euro

FBIL Financial Benchmarks India Private Limited

FDI Foreign direct investment

FDI Policy Consolidated FDI policy issued by the Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade
Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Government of India, with effect from October 15, 2020

FEMA The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the regulations issued thereunder

FEMA Rules The Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019

“Financial Year” or “Fiscal | Period of 12 months ended March 31 of that particular year, unless otherwise stated

Year(s)” or “Fiscal”

Form PAS-4 Form PAS-4 as prescribed under the PAS Rules
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Term Description

FPI Foreign portfolio investors as defined under the SEBI FP1 Regulations and includes a person who has
been registered under the SEBI FPI Regulations

FVCI Foreign venture capital investors as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign
Venture Capital Investors) Regulations, 2000 and registered with SEBI thereunder

FY Financial Year

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

GBP Great British Pound

GDP Gross domestic product

Gol or Government or Central | Government of India, unless otherwise specified

Government

GST Goods and services tax

ICAI The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

Ind AS Indian accounting standards as per Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015, notified by

the MCA under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013

Income Tax Act

The Income Tax Act, 1961

MCA The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India

MD Managing director

NRI Non-resident Indian

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

PAN Permanent account number

PAS Rules The Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014

PAT Profit After Tax

PAT Margin PAT Margin means profit/(loss) for the period/year divided by revenue from contracts with
customers

RBI The Reserve Bank of India

Regulation S Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act

SCR (SECC) Regulations

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) (Stock Exchanges and Clearing Corporations) Regulations,
2018, as amended

SCRA The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended
SCRR The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended
SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India

SEBI Act The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended

SEBI FPI Regulations

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2019, as
amended

SEBI ICDR Regulations

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018, as amended

SEBI Insider Trading Regulations

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as
amended

SEBI Listing Regulations

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended

SEBI Takeover Regulations

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)
Regulations, 2011, as amended

SEC United States Securities and Exchange Commission

SFA The Securities and Futures Act Chapter 289 of Singapore
SGD Singapore Dollar

SI-NBFC Systemically important non-banking financial companies

Stock Exchanges

BSE and NSE

Total Borrowings

Total borrowings includes current borrowings and non-current borrowings

UK

United Kingdom

“U.S.$” or “U.S. dollar” or “USD”

United States Dollar, the legal currency of the United States of America

“USA” or “U.S.” or “United States”

The United States of America

U.S GAAP

Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America

U.S. Securities Act

The United States Securities Act of 1933

VCF Venture capital fund
VIP Very Important Person
Y-0-Y Year-over-Year
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SUMMARY OF BUSINESS

Overview

We are one of the leading, end-to-end engineering and technology solutions company with expertise that caters to the digital,
engineering and smart manufacturing needs of large global enterprises. (Source: Lattice Report). Our offerings include product
design and development, embedded hardware and software, digital engineering, system installation and integration,
manufacturing engineering, enterprise solutions, Industry 4.0 and 11OT solutions and aftermarket support. We provide cutting
edge technology solutions in order to address the futuristic business needs of our clients in verticals such as products and
solutions (encompassing the defence business of our Company), aerospace, automaotive, heavy engineering, product engineering
services (encompassing the semiconductor business of our Company) and energy. (Source: Lattice Report). Our domain
expertise ranges from product design, testing and development, engineering analysis, manufacturing engineering solutions
design and optimization.

Our Company has been in operation for over three decades and we have built a strong presence in key markets worldwide
through strategic partnerships. We have a notable domestic and international footprint through our subsidiaries in six countries
viz., India, USA, UK, Canada, Germany, and China. Further, we operate through a comprehensive network of offices spread
across North America, Europe, UK and the Asia Pacific regions. Our global engineering centres leverage the skills and
capabilities of our employees from our various offices, delivering value to our clients. As of September 30, 2023, we had a
global workforce of over 3,000 employees serving multiple global clients from 17 global engineering centres spread across
North America, Europe and Asia Pacific regions. We believe that our globally distributed execution model ensures balance
between onshore client proximity and offshore efficiency. Our customers include global OEMs across verticals such as products
and solutions (encompassing the defence business of our Company), aerospace, automotive, heavy engineering, product
engineering services (encompassing the semiconductor business of our Company) and energy.

Our full-service offerings encompassing the entire product lifecycle can be categorized as depicted below:

| Product Design & Definition
3D CAD Modeling & Detailing
Packaging ~ Plastics, Sheet Metal
DFM / DFx / FMEA Studies
Design Automation

— Engineering Analysis & Certification
4 @ I\ Structural Analysis — Linear & Non-Linear,
i Feasibility w 2/ Thermal and Electro Mechanical Coupled Analysis
Analysis &

=, CFD, Multi Body Dynamics & Kinematics Studies
N Optimization — Light Weighting & Performance

Embedded Electronics Concept Manufacturing Engineering Services
Firmware Development Development Virtual Manufacturing & Facility Layout Design
Hardware Engineering Prototyping & Manufacturing Support
Application S/W & Mobile Apps Development Non-Conformance Engineering (Concessions)
V&V and Testing Tool & Mold Design

loT Analytics, Al, Advanced Analytics NC & CNC Programming

Supply Chain Management

Detailed
Design

[ Systems Installation
Harness Layout Design and Installation
System Integration & Validation
Flammability Reports

Design

Digital Engineeri
{ Optimization g ngineering

IIOT & Industry 4.0 solutions
Al / ML based solutions

Mechanical / Electrical Routings ;. Application Development
Plumbing and Tubing Pr(\nltlxr)tuain Industrial Automation
Design Automation . typing | Advanced analytics

W \erification After Sales Product Support Services
& Validation Technical PUDligation
1 - Structural Repair & Modifications
Upgradation & Life Extension

PLM & Engineering IT
PLM - Implementation, Integration & Operations
CAX Packages — Customization, Functionality
Enhancement & Maintenance

Platf Mi ti
Custom Engineering Application Development & Y Aftertmarkat . R:V;:;r: El%l?\éi?ng

Maintenance ;
Design Automation Eggneermg Change Management — ECO/

Durability and Warranty Study

We completed the acquisition of Mistral in Fiscal 2023. Through Mistral, our subsidiary we offer product engineering services,
encompassing the semiconductor business of our Company and products and solutions, encompassing the defence business of
our Company.

Our range of services, through Mistral forming a part our products and solutions offerings include product design and product
deployment of radar, sonars integrated hardware for underwater acoustic imaging system and telemetry modules, and integrated
logistics support tailored specifically for defense applications. Further, as a part of our product engineering services portfolio
(encompassing the semiconductor business of our Company) through Mistral, we provide design and fabrication facilities
electrical items and electronic items.

We have received quality and standard certifications such as AS 9100D, 1SO 9001:2015, ISO 27001:2013 and ISO 14001:2015.

The engineering, research and development services space (“ER&D?) is at an early stage of penetration with a large total
addressable market. (Source: Lattice Report) Rapid advancement of technology and faster innovation has translated to a drastic
reduction in product development timelines. (Source: Lattice Report) This has increased the need for outsourcing ER&D to
third-parties with end-to-end capabilities in traditional as well as new-age products. (Source: Lattice Report) India has emerged
as a favourable destination for outsourced ER&D spend by global enterprises due to its large talent pool, innovation ecosystem,
affordable costs, maturing in-house research and development centres landscape and geopolitical support. (Source: Lattice
Report) The global ER&D spend through GCCs was USD 82 billion in CY23, growing at a CAGR of 10% from CY23 to
CY28, translating to USD 132 hillion in CY28. The outsourced market of Indian ESPs has grown significantly over the years
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and has a share of 23% in the outsourced ER&D spending through ESPs. India has shown significant growth due to the
availability of a next-generation digital talent pool and attractive billing rates when compared to other nations. (Source: Lattice
Report) Key drivers for growth within the ER&D market include smaller innovation cycles, cost optimization, widening skill
gap, Industry 4.0 and overcoming challenges in manufacturing engineering and Digital twin. (Source: Lattice Report) We intend
to continue leveraging our strengths to address the opportunities in the ER&D industry generally and more specifically in the
automotive and aerospace industries.

We have a diversified and a professional Board, which is supplemented by our strong management team. Our CEO and MD,
Arun Krishnamurthi joined our Company in November 2021 We believe that, we are well positioned to harness market
opportunities, develop and execute business plans, oversee customer relationships, and adapt dynamically to evolving market
conditions.

In Fiscals 2021, 2022 and 2023, our total income was X 53,830.73 lakhs, ¥ 61,940.02 lakhs and X 82,758.05 lakhs respectively
and grew at a CAGR of 23.99% between Fiscal 2021 and Fiscal 2023. Our adjusted EBITDA was X 6,400.01 lakhs, X 7,063.60
lakhs and X 14,556.52 lakhs, respectively, in Fiscals 2021, 2022 and 2023 and grew at a CAGR of 50.81% between Fiscal 2021
and Fiscal 2023. In addition, our (loss)/profit after tax for the years was % (2,120.55) lakhs, X 2,267.91 lakhs and  (479.82)
lakhs, in Fiscals 2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively.

Performance parameters

In evaluating our business, we consider and use certain performance parameters that are presented below as supplemental
measures to review and assess our operating performance. The presentation of these performance parameters is not intended to
be considered in isolation or as a substitute for the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Unaudited Interim
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Preliminary Placement Document. Further, this information may
differ from the similar information used by other companies, including peer companies, and hence their comparability may be
limited. Therefore, these performance parameters should not be considered in isolation or construed as an alternative to GAAP
measures of performance or as an indicator of our operating performance, liquidity, profitability or results of operation.

The following table sets forth certain of our performance parameters for the period/ years indicated below:
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(All amounts in % lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars As at and for the Fiscal
six-months ended 2023 2022 2021
September 30, 2023

Revenue from contracts with 46,510.10 81,360.47 60,840.77 51,738.61
customers®

Other Income 284.01 595.84 909.43 1,446.07
(Loss)/profit after tax for the 1,688.15 (479.82) 2,267.91 (2,120.55)
period/year @

PAT Margin for the period/year 3.63% (0.59%) 3.73% (4.10%)
(%)(3)

EBITDA® 7,360.20 8,344.21 7,757.87 3,811.04
Adjusted EBITDA® 7,076.19 14,556.52 7,063.60 6,400.01
Adjusted EBITDA Margin 15.21% 17.89% 11.61% 12.37%
(%)©

Return on Equity(%)® 4.60% (1.40%) 6.74% (6.99%)
Profit/(loss) before tax and non- 2,607.31 2,102.40 3,676.40 (1,037.94)
controlling interests ®

Total Equity® 36,659.99 34,386.27 33,661.07 30,351.12
Total Income®® 46,992.11 82,758.05 61,940.02 53,830.73
Total assets?) 1,02,772.23 90,438.45 79,440.20 74,236.04
Notes:
(1) Revenue from contracts with customers is the revenue generated by the Group and is comprised of ((i) Technology services & Solutions and (ii) Strategic

2
©)

Q]

®)

Technology solutions).

(Loss)/profit after tax for the period/year is the Group’s (loss)/profit after tax for the period/year.

PAT Margin represents the profit/(loss) for the period/year as a percentage of our revenue from contracts with customers. For a detailed calculation of
PAT Margin, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Reconciliation of Revenue from contracts
with customers to PAT Margin ” on page 296.

EBITDA is calculated as profit/(loss) for the period/year plus tax expense, finance costs, depreciation and amortisation expenses. For a detailed
calculation of EBITDA, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Reconciliation of Profit/(loss)
after tax for the period/year to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin ” on page 295.

Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as EBITDA plus exceptional items and share of (profit)/loss of an associate less other income. For a detailed calculation
of Adjusted EBITDA, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Reconciliation of Profit/(loss)
after tax for the period/year to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin ” on page 295.

Adjusted EBITDA Margin is the percentage of adjusted EBITDA divided by revenue from contracts with customers. For a detailed calculation of Adjusted
EBITDA Margin, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Reconciliation of Profit/(loss) after
tax for the period/year to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin ” on page 295.

Return on equity is computed as profit/ (loss) after tax for the period/ year divided by total equity.

Profit/(loss) before tax and non-controlling interests is profit/(loss) after exceptional items and before total income tax expense

Total equity is total of equity share capital, other equity and non-controlling interest, if applicable.

(10) Total income comprises of revenue from contracts with customers, other operating income and other income.
(11) Total assets comprises of current assets and non-current assets.

Please also see, Risk Factors — “Certain non-GAAP financial measures and certain other statistical information relating to our
operations and financial performance like EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin, PAT Margin, Return on
Equity have been included in this Preliminary Placement Document. These non-GAAP financial measures are not measures of
operating performance or liquidity defined by Ind AS and may not be comparable ” on page 57.

For EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin, PAT Margin, Return on Equity reconciliation, see
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Non-GAAP Measures” on page

295.

Our Competitive Strengths

o Differentiated expertise across verticals enabling us to provide high quality end-to end integrated solutions to our
customers globally;

e Proven ability to move up the value chain through organic and inorganic initiatives;

Long-standing and deep customer relationships;

Global delivery model enabling intimate client engagement and scalability;

Significant improvement in performance of our Company; and
Strong and seasoned Board and senior management team.

Our Strategies

Deepen engagement with existing client base;

Enhance domain capabilities by strategically growing through both organic and inorganic channels;
Further reduce operating costs and improve operating efficiencies; and

Strengthen service delivery through capacity and capability building and optimizing delivery processes.
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SUMMARY OF THE ISSUE

The following is a general summary of the terms of the Issue. This summary should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified
in its entirety by, the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Preliminary Placement Document, including the
sections titled “Risk Factors”, “Use of Proceeds”, “Placement”, “Issue Procedure” and “Description of the Equity Shares” on

pages 35, 66, 396, 383 and 410, respectively.

Issuer AXISCADES Technologies Limited

Face Value %5 per Equity Share

Issue Price Z[e®] per Equity Share (including a premium of %[ e] per Equity Share)

Floor Price %696.70 per Equity Share, calculated in accordance with Regulation 176 under Chapter VI of the
SEBI ICDR Regulations.
In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Issue Price cannot be lower than the Floor Price.
However, our Company may offer a discount of not more than 5% on the Floor Price in accordance
with the special resolution of our Shareholders passed by way of a postal ballot dated December 18,
2023 the results of which were declared on December 19, 2023 and in terms of Regulation 176(1) of
the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Issue Size Issue of up to [e] Equity Shares, at a premium of Z[e] each, aggregating up to approximately Z[e]

lakhs.

A minimum of 10% of the Issue Size i.e., up to [e] Equity Shares, shall be available for Allocation to
Mutual Funds only and the balance [e] Equity Shares will be available for Allocation to all Eligible
QIBs, including Mutual Funds. In case of under-subscription in the portion available for allocation
only to Mutual Funds, such minimum portion or part thereof may be Allotted to other Eligible QIBs.

Date of Board resolution

November 8, 2023

Date of Shareholders’ resolution

December 18, 2023 through a postal ballot, the results of which were declared on December 19, 2023

Eligible Investors

Eligible QIBs as defined in Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and not excluded
pursuant to Regulation 179 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, to whom this Preliminary Placement
Document and the Application Form is circulated and who are eligible to Bid and participate in the
Issue. FVCls are not permitted to participate in the Issue. The list of Eligible QIBs to whom this
Preliminary Placement Document and Application Form is delivered shall be determined by our
Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers at its discretion. For further details,
see “Issue Procedure — Qualified Institutional Buyers” on page 383

Dividend

See “Description of the Equity Shares” and “Dividends” on pages 410 and 75, respectively

Indian taxation

For the statement of possible tax benefits available to our Company and its Shareholders under the
applicable laws in India, see “Taxation” on page 412

Equity Shares issued, subscribed,
paid-up and outstanding
immediately prior to the Issue

38,508,081 Equity Shares of which 38,456,981 Equity Shares are subscribed and paid-up

Equity Shares issued, subscribed,
paid-up and outstanding
immediately after the Issue

[®] Equity Shares

Issue Procedure

The Issue is being made only to Eligible QIBs in reliance on Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with rules made thereunder and Chapter V1 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. For further details,
see “Issue Procedure” on page 383

Listing and trading

Our Company has obtained in-principle approvals dated January 10, 2024 in terms of Regulation
28(1)(a) of the SEBI Listing Regulations from the Stock Exchanges, for listing of the Equity Shares
to be issued pursuant to the Issue. Our Company will make applications to each of the Stock
Exchanges after Allotment to obtain final listing and trading approval for the Equity Shares after the
Allotment and after the credit of the Equity Shares to the beneficiary account of the Depository
Participant, respectively. The trading of the Equity Shares would be in dematerialized form and only
in the cash segment of each of the Stock Exchanges.
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Lock-up

60 days from the date of Allotment. For details, see “Placement — Lock-up” on page 396

Transferability restrictions

The Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to this Issue shall not be sold for a period of one year from
the date of Allotment, except on the Stock Exchanges. For details in relation to other transfer
restrictions, please see “Transfer Restrictions” on page 405

Use of Proceeds

The gross proceeds from the Issue will be approximately Z[e] lakhs. The net proceeds from the Issue,
after deducting fees, commissions and expenses of the Issue, will be approximately Z[e] lakhs.

See “Use of Proceeds” on page 66 for additional information regarding the use of net proceeds from
the Issue

Risk Factors

See “Risk Factors” on page 35 for a discussion of risks you should consider before investing in the
Equity Shares

Closing Date

The Allotment of the Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue is expected to be made on or about [e], 2024

Ranking

The Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to the Issue shall be subject to the provisions of the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association and shall rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing Equity Shares of our Company, including in respect of voting rights and dividends.

The holders of Equity Shares (as on the record date) will be entitled to participate in dividends and
other corporate benefits, if any, declared by our Company after the Closing Date, in compliance with
the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable laws and regulations.
Shareholders may attend and vote in Shareholders’ meetings in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

For further details, see “Dividends” and “Description of the Equity Shares” on pages 75and 410,
respectively

Security codes for the Equity ISIN INE555B01013
Shares BSE Code 532395
BSE Symbol AXISCADES
NSE Symbol AXISCADES
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SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The following selected financial information is derived from and should be read in conjunction with:

a) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements prepared in accordance with the Ind AS and Companies Act, 2013;
and

b) Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of our Company prepared in accordance with the

Indian Accounting Standard 34, “Interim Financial Reporting” prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

For further details, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
“Financial Statements” on pages 292 and76, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at September 30, | As at March | As at March | As at March
2023 31, 2023 31, 2022 31, 2021
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6,887.51 5,683.68 5,780.73 5,200.05
Capital work in progress 42.43 - - -
Right-of-use assets 15,131.07 11,568.96 8,745.61 9,618.67
Goodwill 13,466.00 11.347.76 11,157.93 10,470.79
Other intangible assets 3,251.50 2.619.85 2,898.23 3,524.99
Investment in an associate 627.71 - 187.41 233.23
Financial assets
Investments 124.24 446.19 203.81 697.39
Loans - - - 832.50
Other financial assets 1,621.06 975.53 925.31 859.44
Deferred tax assets, net 2,232.23 1,980.33 2,802.94 2,806.34
Non-current tax assets 2,228.04 1,969.68 1,462.77 1,464.76
Other non-current assets 77.29 42.27 2,034.58 2,109.97
45,689.08 36,634.25 36,199.32 37,818.13
Current assets
Inventories 7,052.09 6,585.39 5,157.70 2,330.30
Financial assets
Investments 3,243.36 2,899.98 1,526.59 4,059.06
Trade receivables 22,237.53 17,902.93 14,516.65 12,754.68
Loans - - - 241.79
Cash and cash equivalent 5,115.43 7,506.73 7,109.49 5,269.93
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 2,205.21 2,456.16 3,427.40 3,208.31
Other financial assets 5,411.56 5,876.19 7,595.35 5,434.22
Other current assets 11,817.97 10,576.82 3,907.70 3,119.62
57,083.15 53,804.20 43,240.88 36,417.91
Total assets 1,02,772.23 90,438.45 79,440.20 74,236.04
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 1,924.38 1,911.50 1,897.23 1,889.51
Other equity 34,135.64 31,895.57 31,229.08 27,971.44
Non-controlling interests 599.97 579.20 534.76 490.17
Total equity 36,659.99 34,386.27 33,661.07 30,351.12
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 24,735.01 17,091.32 45.32 2,082.74
Lease liabilities 6,249.13 2,248.00 1,109.87 2,094.36
Other financial liabilities 1,021.49 - - 4,707.52
Provisions 1,287.61 984.57 1,055.56 985.26
Deferred tax liabilities, net 377.44 - - -
33,670.68 20,323.89 2,210.75 9,869.88
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 10,931.11 14,309.03 4,835.79 3,061.45
Lease liabilities 1,437.68 947.85 1,214.67 1,038.40
Trade Payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 276.88 295.89 218.16 119.52
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 9,066.76 7,213.44 6,735.00 4,941.98
and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 1,635.10 3,636.45 22,966.01 19,436.27
Provisions 2,113.42 1,690.12 1,310.60 961.86
Current tax liability, net 1,222.62 1,131.26 161.10 106.67
Other current liabilities 5,757.99 6,504.25 6,127.05 4,348.89
32,441.56 35,728.29 43,568.38 34,015.04
Total liabilities 66,112.24 56,052.18 45,779.13 43884.92
Total equity and liabilities 1,02,772.23 90,438.45 79,440.20 74,236.04
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the six month | For the year For the | For the year
Particulars period ended ended year ended ended
September 30, 2023 | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
2023 2022 2021

Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 46,510.10 81,360.47 60,840.77 51,738.61
Other operating income 198.00 801.74 189.82 646.05
Other income 284.01 595.84 909.43 1,446.07
Total income 46,992.11 82,758.05 61,940.02 53,830.73
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 9,963.66 17,918.63 11,666.82 9,849.61
Employees benefits expense 23,269.80 36,089.20 31,214.39 26,661.40
Finance costs 3,175.00 3,589.98 1,575.41 2,250.40
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,577.89 2,651.83 2,506.06 2,598.58
Other expenses 6,398.45 13,597.86 11,085.78 9,473.64
Total expenses 44,384.80 73,847.50 58,048.46 50,833.63
Profit before share in profit/(loss) of an associate, exceptional 2,607.31 8,910.55 3,891.56 2,997.10
items and tax
Share in profit/(loss) of an associate, net of tax - (4.41) (45.82) 44.76
Profit before exceptional items and tax 2,607.31 8,906.14 3,845.74 3,041.86
Exceptional items - (6,803.74) (169.34) |  (4,079.80)
Profit before tax and non-controlling interests 2,607.31 2,102.40 3,676.40 (1,037.94)
Income tax expense:

- Current tax 1,140.85 2,085.61 1,360.14 951.19

- Adjustment of current tax relating to earlier years - (368.00) - -

- Deferred tax (credit)/charge (221.69) 864.61 48.35 131.42
Total income tax expense 919.16 2,582.22 1408.49 1,082.61
Profit/(loss) after tax for the period/years 1,688.15 (479.82) 2,267.91 (2,120.55)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (230.01) 5.50 (15.67) (30.68)
Income tax effect 61.90 (1.43) 3.03 7.60
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or (168.11) 4.07 (12.64) (23.08)
loss in subsequent periods
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges 49.94 (28.72) 53.39 318.35
Income tax effect (12.52) 8.00 (14.87) (82.08)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 212.93 528.68 298.08 160.29
Income tax effect - - - -
Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss 250.35 507.96 336.60 396.56
in subsequent periods
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 82.24 512.03 323.96 373.48
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period/year, net of tax 1,770.39 32.21 2,591.87 (1,747.07)
Total profit/(loss) attributable to
Equity holders of the Company 1,667.38 (523.25) 2,223.32| (2,166.39)
Non-controlling interest 20.77 43.43 44.59 45.84
Other comprehensive income attributable to
Equity holders of the Company 82.24 511.02 323.96 373.48
Non-controlling interest - 1.01 - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to
Equity holders of the Company 1,749.62 (12.23) 2,547.28 (1,792.91)
Non-controlling interest 20.77 44.44 44.59 45.84
Earnings/(loss) per equity share in X [nominal value of ¥ 5]
a) Basic 4.36" (1.37) 5.86 (5.74)
b) Diluted 3.96" (1.37) 5.76 (5.74)

"not annualised
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the six month | For the year For the For the
period ended ended year ended | year ended
September 30, 2023 | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
2023 2022 2021
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax 2,607.31 2,102.40 3,676.40| (1,037.94)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Exceptional items, net - 6,803.74 169.34 4,079.80
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,577.89 2,651.83 2,506.06 2,598.58
Impairment of property, plant and equipment - 203.79 - -
Loss incurred on loss of control on subsidiary 317.34 -
Interest income (including fair value change in financial instruments) (126.67) (322.13) (334.15) (420.13)
Gain on sale of investment in mutual funds (55.87) - - -
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit - (88.77) (136.45) (431.34)
and loss
Dividend income from mutual funds (14.73) (32.51) (17.89) (10.29)
Finance costs 3,175.00 3,589.98 1,575.41 2,250.40
Gain on lease modification/ lease rental concession - (7.05) - -
Lease rental concession - - (75.41) -
Gain on termination of Right to use assets - - (61.63) -
Gain on sale of investment in associate - (39.55) - -
Share of loss/(profit) of an associate - 441 45.82 (44.76)
Provision/liabilities no longer required written back (36.08) (6.44) (62.39) (140.99)
Recovery of bad debts written off (1.27) (25.12) - -
Provision for doubtful debts and advances and bad debts written off 76.35 153.44 134.35 52.88
Advances written off 13.40 - 115.45
Share based payment expense 379.70 542.75 636.33 140.89
Provision for foreseeable loss on contracts - 19.37 - -
Loss on export incentive receivable - 17.29 - -
(Gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 2.72 (1.50) 22.81 (6.55)
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative (565.18) 565.18 -
Net unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) 33.94 (126.96) 127.60 (230.70)
Operating profit before working capital changes 7,370.45 16,017.54 8,206.20 6,915.30
Movements in working capital
(Increase) in inventories (462.06) (1,396.02) |  (2,827.40) (368.87)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (3,056.25) (3,223.48) |  (2,659.92) 3,751.01
Decrease in loans and advances - - - 233.86
(Increase)/decrease in other assets including financial assets (666.95) (4,129.35)| (2,857.31) 2,741.72
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, other liabilities and financial (790.24) 871.96 4,234.31| (1,196.20)
liabilities
Increase in provisions 238.86 189.35 325.63 55.09
Cash generated from operating activities 2,633.81 8,330.00 4,421.51 12,131.91
Direct taxes paid, net (1,249.52) (1,266.32) | (1,303.72) 80.31
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 1,384.29 7,063.68 3117.79 12,212.22
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (819.18) (1,088.13) | (1,361.69) (566.61)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 8.97 27.31 2.20 6.55
Interest received 81.96 111.81 364.71 339.14
Payment of deferred purchase consideration (66.92) | (19,036.36) - -
(Investment)/redemption in units of mutual funds and other funds 6.50 (1,497.10) 3,171.34| (1,031.79)
Proceeds from disposal of stake in associate - 222.55 - -
Redemption of fixed deposits, net (432.89) 1,179.04 763.57 (934.78)
Investment in shares of subsidiary, net of cash acquired (3,024.36) - - -
Dividend received - - 17.89 10.29
Net cash (used in)/generated from investment activities (B) (4,245.92) | (20,080.88) 2,958.02| (2,177.20)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of principal portion and interest portion of lease (891.95) (1,441.81)| (1,325.38)| (1,287.64)
liabilities
Proceeds of long term borrowings 20,882.30 16,081.40 - -
Repayment of long term borrowings (20,845.18) (2,252.34) | (2,037.42)| (1,609.12)
Proceeds/(repayment) of short term borrowings, net 3,822.19 6,463.38 (364.17)| (5,146.92)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 139.98 150.25 81.56 -
Interest paid (2,639.58) (5,720.82) (584.72) | (1,250.10)
Net cash from generated from/(used in) financing activities (C) 467.76 13,280.06 | (4,230.13)| (9,293.78)
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(All amounts in X lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the six month | For the year For the For the year

period ended ended year ended ended

September 30, 2023 | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,

2023 2022 2021
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C) (2,393.87) 262.86 1845.68 741.24
Effect of exchange rate changes, net 2.57 134.38 (6.12) 51.00
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period/years 7,506.73 7109.49 5,269.93 4,477.69
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period/years 5,115.43 7,506.73 7,109.49 5,269.93
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For details of the related party transactions for the six months period ended September 30, 2023 and during the Financial Years
ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, as per the requirements under Related Party Disclosures (Ind AS
24) as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Ind AS rules, as amended for, see “Financial Statements
— Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 17, Financial Statements - Fiscal 2023 Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 33, Financial Statements - Fiscal 2022 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
— Note 35 and “Financial Statements - Fiscal 2021 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 36 “on pages 102, 157,

215 and 275, respectively.
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in equity shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information disclosed in
this Preliminary Placement Document, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment in
the Equity Shares. The risks described below are not the only risks relevant to us or the Equity Shares or the industry in which
we currently operate. Additional risks and uncertainties, not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may
also impair our business prospects, cash flows, results of operations and financial condition.

If any of the risks described below, or other risks that are not currently known or are currently deemed immaterial actually
occur, our business prospects, cash flows, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected, the trading
price of the Equity Shares could decline, and investors may lose all or part of the value of their investment. In making an
investment decision with respect to this Issue, you must rely on your own examination of our Company and the terms of this
Issue, including the merits and risks involved. In order to obtain a more detailed understanding about our Company and our
business, prospective investors should read this section in conjunction with the sections “Our Business”, “Industry Overview ”,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Legal Proceedings” on
pages 352, 226, 293 and 425, respectively, as well as the other financial information included in this Preliminary Placement
Document.

This Preliminary Placement Document also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors,
including the considerations described below and elsewhere in this Preliminary Placement Document. See “Forward-Looking
Statements” on page 13. Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify
the financial or other implications of any of the risks described in this section. Unless otherwise indicated or the context
otherwise requires, in this section, referencesto “we”, “us” and “our” are to the Company together with its subsidiaries and
associate (both as at and during the relevant fiscal/ period), on a consolidated basis.

Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, the financial information for the six-months period ended
September 30, 2023 and Fiscal 2021, 2022 and 2023 included herein is derived from the Unaudited Interim Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements respectively included in this Preliminary
Placement Document. For further information, see “Financial Statements” on page 76. Our Company’s Fiscal commences on
April 1 and ends on March 31 of the immediately subsequent year, and references to a particular Fiscal are to the 12 months
ended March 31 of that particular year.

Unless stated otherwise, statistical information, industry and market data used in this section has been derived from the industry
report titled “Defense and ER&D Industry Report ” dated January 2, 2024, (the “Lattice Report”) which is a report exclusively
commissioned and paid for by our Company and prepared by Lattice Technologies Private Limited pursuant to an engagement
letter dated December 7, 2023 in connection with the Issue. For details, see “Industry and Market Data ” on page 12.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS
Risks related to our Business

. Our business largely depends upon our top 10 customers. For the six-months ended September 30, 2023 and in the Fiscals
2023, 2022, 2021, our revenue from top 10 customers was ¥34,718.46 lakhs, ¥61,370.85 lakhs, &45,883.29 lakhs and
¥40,018.81 lakhs representing 74.65%, 75.42%, 75.42% and 77.35% of our revenue from operations respectively. The loss
of any of these customers could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from our top 10 customers. As of September 30, 2023, our relationship with our
top 10 customers ranges from 5 years to 15 years. Of the top 10 customers, two are Indian customers and eight are international
customers. Loss of all or a substantial portion of sales to any of our top 10 customers, in particular for any reason (including,
due to loss of contracts or failure to negotiate acceptable terms, loss of market share of these customers in their industries,
disputes with these customers, adverse change in the financial condition of these customers, decline in their sales, plant
shutdowns, labour strikes or other work stoppages affecting production of these customers), could have an adverse impact on
our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. While there has been no loss of any of our top 10
customers during the six-months period ended September 30, 2023 and in the last three Fiscals, there is no assurance that such
instance will not arise in the future.

The following table sets forth revenue from contracts with customers from our top five and top 10 customers in the period/
years indicated:
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(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Six months ended September 30, 2023
Customers Consolidated
Revenue from contracts with customers Percentage of revenue from contracts with
customers
Top Five 26,185.54 56.30%
Top Ten 34,718.46 74.65%
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022 Fiscal 2021
Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated

Revenue from Percentage of Revenue from Percentage of Revenue from Percentage of

Customers contracts with revenue from contracts with revenue from contracts with revenue from

customers contracts with customers contracts with customers contracts with

customers customers customers

Top Five 44,819.39 55.09% 34,963.47 57.47% 30,757.39 59.45%
Top Ten 61,370.85 75.42% 45,883.29 75.42% 40,018.81 77.35%

Further, the volume and timing of sales to our top 10 customers may vary due to variation in demand for such customers’
products or on account of their manufacturing and growth strategy. Thus, any decrease in the demand for our products from
our top 10 customers, or a termination of our arrangements altogether, would adversely impact our results of operations,
financial condition and cash flow. These customers may change their outsourcing strategy by moving more work in-house,
establishment of GCCs, replace us with our competitors, or replace their existing products with alternative products which we
do not supply. Also, these customers may demand price reductions and there is no assurance that we will be able to offset any
reduction of prices to these customers with reductions in our costs or by acquiring new customers.

. Our customers located in Europe and North America make up for a significant proportion of our total revenue. Worsening
economic conditions or factors that negatively affect the economic conditions of Europe and North America could materially
adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

For the six-months period ended September 30, 2023 and in Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021, our customers located in Europe and
North America contributed 70.31%, 71.70%, 75.70% and 78.90% of our revenue from contracts with customers, respectively.

Existing and potential competitors to our businesses may increase their focus on these markets, which could reduce our market
share. The concentration of our revenues in these markets heightens our exposure to adverse developments related to
competition, as well as economic, political, regulatory and other changes. Political campaigns and any related transitions may
also bring a degree of political and social uncertainty which may cause capital flows and domestic investment to become more
volatile. Adoption of anti-sourcing laws in these jurisdictions may also limit the ability of our customers to engage us.

For instance, one of our strategic customers in the aerospace vertical is headquartered in Canada and there have been recent
political tensions between India and Canada. If the political situation worsens, it could possibly have an adverse impact on the
business received from this customer.

Our reliance on a select group of customers located in Europe and North America may constrain our ability to negotiate our
arrangements, which may have an impact on our profit margins and financial performance. The deterioration of the financial
condition or business prospects of these customers could reduce their requirement for our services and result in a significant
decrease in the revenues we derive from these customers. We cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain historic levels
of business from our customers located in these markets or that we will be able to significantly reduce customer concentration
in the future.

. Our revenues are highly dependent on a limited number of industry verticals, and any decrease in demand for outsourced
services in these industry verticals could reduce our revenues and materially adversely affect our business, cash flows,
financial condition and results of operations.

A substantial portion of our customers are concentrated in a few specific industry verticals, namely, aerospace, products and
solutions (defence) and heavy engineering. For the six-months period ended September 30, 2023 and in the Fiscals 2023, 2022
and 2021, 73.49%, 77.80%, 78.80% and 82.40% of our revenue from contracts with customers came from our customers in
these verticals collectively. Our business growth largely depends on continued demand for our services from customers in these
industry verticals.

A downturn in any of our targeted industry verticals, a slowdown or reversal of the trend to outsource ER&D services in any
of these industries or the introduction of regulations that restrict or discourage companies from outsourcing could result in a
decrease in the demand for our services and adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of
operations.

Other developments in these industries may also lead to a decline in the demand for our services in these industry verticals, and
we may not be able to successfully overcome the same. For example, consolidation in any of these industries or acquisitions
may decrease the potential number of buyers of our services. External risks such as global pandemics could also adversely
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affect the industry verticals that we operate in. Further, our customers may experience rapid changes in their prospects,
substantial price competition and pressure on their profitability. This, in turn, may result in increasing pressure on us from
customers in these key industries to lower our prices, which could materially adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

. We do not have agreements having commitment on part of our customers to purchase or place orders with us. If our
customers choose not to source their requirements from us, there may be a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, cash flows and results of operations.

We typically rely on master service agreements to engage with our customers from time to time that set out the broad terms the
arrangement with our customers. We also provide services to our customers based on purchase orders/ work orders issued by
them. These agreements set forth the terms of sales and are binding on parties. However, termination can be with or without
cause depending on the clauses as outlined in the agreement. Under the agreements, there is no commitment on the part of the
customer for specific volumes or to place new orders with us and as a result, our sales from period to period may fluctuate as a
result of changes in our customers’ supplier preference.

Further, some of the agreements that we have entered into with our customers are governed by foreign laws, which may create
both legal and practical difficulties in the case of disputes and affect our ability to enforce our rights under these agreements or
to collect damages, if awarded. Such legal and practice difficulties may arise due to the different legal systems and procedures
in those jurisdictions, challenges in interpreting the terms of the agreements, and enforcing judgments and awards in those
foreign countries. While there has been no instance in the last three Fiscals and during the six-months period ended September
30, 2023 where we have been subject to legal proceedings with any of our international customers, there is no assurance that
such instance will not arise in the future or if arises, we cannot assure that we will face challenges in enforcing our rights which
could have a material adverse effect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations. Further, since our
arrangement with our customers is not exclusive, it entitles the customers to replace us with another supplier which could have
a material adverse effect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

. Our products and solutions business which encompasses our defense offerings is largely dependent on contracts from the
Government of India and associated entities including defence public sector undertakings. A decline or reprioritisation of
the Indian defense budget, reduction in orders, termination of existing contracts, delay of existing or anticipated contracts
or programmes or any adverse change in the Gol ’s defense related budget and policies may have a material adverse impact
on our business.

We are a prominent player in the products and solutions vertical for our comprehensive capabilities that contribute significantly
to the advancement of defence technologies. We possess a sound portfolio encompassing an array of services embedded with
the latest cutting-edge technology for strategic advantage of clients.

Consequently, our business is dependent on projects and programmes undertaken by Gol and associated entities, such as defence
public sector undertakings (collectively, the “Gol Entities”). We derived % 13,527.50 lakhs, X 23,826.91 lakhs, X 15,740.96
lakhs and % 15,420.37 lakhs amounting to 29.00%, 29.30%, 25.90% and 29.80% of our revenue from contracts with customers
during the six-months period ended September 30, 2023, Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021 respectively, from sales made to our
various customers in our products and solutions (defence) vertical.

Further, our contracts depend upon the continuing availability of budgets extended to government organisations towards
military modernisation and research initiatives focussed on defence sector. The level of defence spending and changes in the
tax policies by the Gol in the future are difficult to predict and may be impacted by numerous factors such as the evolving
nature of the national security concerns, foreign policy, domestic political environment and macroeconomic conditions. The
Gol’s defence related policies will have a material impact on our business. For instance, our revenue from contracts with
customers from sales made to our various customers in our products and solutions (defence) vertical during Fiscal 2022 had
reduced to 25.90% as compared to 29.80% in Fiscal 2021. Given the significant reliance on Gol Entities as a source of revenue
for our products and solutions (defence) vertical, we cannot assure you that our future earnings under this vertical will be
consistent with our present or past earnings.

The nature of our products and solutions (defence) vertical is such that it is difficult to calibrate on a quarter-on-quarter basis
and that it is more effective to measure this on a year-on-year basis. Some of the factors which influence this are:

Delays in completion of inspections, tests by the certifying authorities which are government departments;
Proportion of production to design business in that specific quarter;

Investments in materials, inventory and research and development for specific products;

Delays caused by the public sector undertakings in manufacturing products for which our subsystems are required;
Risk of obsolescence and stocking of components which reach end of life; and

Dependencies of partners for design, production which could impact the completion of a product.

Given the significant reliance on the Gol Entities as a source of revenue for our products and solutions (defence) vertical, we
cannot assure you that our future earnings under this vertical will be in consistence with our present or past earnings.
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Additionally, given that we derive a significant portion of our total sales from contracts with Gol Entities and that we will
continue to cater to Gol Entities, we are exposed to various risks inherent in doing business with Gol Entities which may
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. These risks include:

e participation in Gol Entities contracts could subject us to stricter regulatory requirements which may increase our
compliance costs;

e Gol Entities tenders are awarded to the lowest bidder that meets the technical conditions of the tender, which makes
winning Gol Entities tenders difficult;

e scrapping of defense programs/initiatives for which investments have been made and significant time and money has
been spent for developing prototypes.

e Delays in payments due to the time taken to complete internal processes of Gol Entities, time and/or cost overruns on the
contracts and levy of liquidated damages due to execution delays;

e Change in specifications which affect our final product could happen at later stages of the project and this could impact
inspections and clearances;

e political and economic factors such as pending elections, changes in government policies or initiatives; revisions to tax
policies, reduced tax revenues and changes in budgetary allocation; and

e terms and conditions of Gol Entities contracts, including requests for proposals and tenders tend to be more onerous and
are often more difficult to negotiate than those for other commercial contracts;

Gol Entities’ contracts with us or with our consortium partners may not include a cap on liquidated, direct or consequential
damages, which could cause us directly, or through our consortium partners, to assume additional risks and incur additional
expenses in servicing these contracts. If any such contract is terminated due to breach of contractual terms or for any reason,
apart from direct losses resulting from such termination, we may be subjected to such liquidated, direct or consequential
damages, either directly or through our consortium partners, and such circumstances, may have a material adverse impact on
our business and profitability.

A decline or reprioritisation of the Indian defence budget, reduction in orders, termination of existing contracts, delay of existing
or anticipated contracts or programmes or any adverse change in the Gol Entities’ defence requirements and geo-political
circumstances, may have a material adverse impact on our business and profitability.

. Our Company has grown through organic growth as well as through strategic acquisitions. We may be unable to effectively
manage such rapid growth, which could place significant demands on our management personnel, systems and resources.
We may not be able to achieve anticipated growth, which could materially adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

We have experienced rapid growth and significantly expanded our business in the last three Fiscals. Our total income grew
from ¥ 53,830.73 lakhs in Fiscal 2021 to X 82,758.05 lakhs in Fiscal 2023. As of March 31, 2021, we had a global workforce
of 1,886 employees, which increased to 2,300 as of March 31, 2022 and was 2,685 as of March 31, 2023. As of September 30,
2023, we had a global workforce of more than 3,000 employees. We intend to continue our expansion in the foreseeable future
to pursue existing and potential opportunities. We have also grown through strategic acquisitions, such as the acquisition of
Mistral Solutions Private Limited, add-solutions GmbH and Epcogen Private Limited. For further information, see “Our
Business — Our Strategies - Enhance domain capabilities by strategically growing through both organic and inorganic
channels” on page 358.

Our rapid growth has placed and will continue to place significant demands on our management and our administrative,
operational and financial infrastructure. Continued expansion increases the challenges we face in:

e recruiting, training and retaining sufficiently skilled professionals and management personnel, both offshore and onsite;

e adhering to and further improving our high-quality and process execution standards and maintaining high levels of
customer satisfaction;

e managing a larger number of customers in a greater number of industries and locations;

o technological infrastructure required in place to provide management oversight to such complex operations in the form of
integrated MIS, sales oversight and insights, HRMS;

e developing and improving our internal administrative infrastructure, particularly our financial, operational,
communications, real estate facilities / locations and other internal systems;

e  preserving our innovative culture, values and entrepreneurial environment by conducting an investment analysis to justify
capital expenditure for such initiatives; and.

e  keeping pace with technological developments in the sectors we service.

Moreover, as we expand our basket of offerings or enter into new markets, we may face new market, technological and
operational risks and challenges with which we are unfamiliar, and it may require substantial management efforts and skills to
mitigate these risks and challenges. Furthermore, we may not be able to achieve anticipated growth. As a result of any of these
problems associated with rapid expansion, our management personnel may face significant demands which in turn could
materially adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.
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7. The global nature of our operations exposes us to numerous risks that could materially adversely affect our business, results
of operations, financial condition, cash flows and future prospects.

We cater to customers in India and overseas, including in North America, Europe, UK and the Asia Pacific regions. As a result,
we are subject to several and complex legal and regulatory requirements in these jurisdictions. The table below sets out the

details of our revenue from contracts with customers outside India:
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Six months period Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022 Fiscal 2021
ended September
30, 2023

Revenue ~ from  contracts  with 31,865.80 56,409.52 45,316.36 37,667.21
customers outside India (a)
Revenue ~ from  contracts  with 46,510.10 81,360.47 60,840.77 51,738.61
customers (b)
Percentage of revenue from contracts
with customers from out_3|de India to 68.51% 69.33% 74.48% 72 .80%
revenue from contract with customers
(©)=(a)/(b)

As evidenced above, the majority of our revenue from contracts with customers is from geographical locations outside India
which could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, cash flows and future prospects in case of
risks that are specific to each country where our customers operate. Our customers, suppliers and we are subject to risks that
are specific to each country in which we operate, as well as risks associated with carrying out business operations on an
international scale, including the following, the occurrence of any of which may adversely affect our business, results of
operations, financial condition, cash flows and future prospects:

e Import and export regulations that could among others erode profit margins or restrict imports or exports, changes in
foreign exchange controls and tax rates, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, including devaluations;

e Changes in regional and local economic conditions, including local inflationary pressures, economic cycle and demand
for products in the international markets;

o Difficulty of enforcing agreements and collecting receivables through certain foreign systems;

e Variations in protection of intellectual property and other legal rights;

e Changes in laws and regulations, changes in labour conditions/ related regulations and difficulties in staffing and managing
international operations;

e Issues pertaining to language skills in the regions we operate;

e Our customers’ decision to move operations to a market / economy where we do not operate or do not have a stronghold;

e Unsettled political conditions and possible terrorist attacks against countries where we sell our products or have other
interests;

e Availability and terms of financing; and

e Compliance with overseas taxation laws

While we have not faced any such risks during the six-months period ended September 30, 2023 and in the Fiscals 2023, 2022
and 2021, we cannot assure you that we will not be susceptible to any such risks in the future. In the event that we are unable
to anticipate and effectively manage these and other risks, it could have a material and adverse effect on our business, results
of operations, financial condition, cash flows and future prospects.

8. Our success depends largely on the strength of our skilled professionals and management team. If we fail to attract, retain,
train and optimally utilize these personnel, our business may be unable to grow and our revenue and profitability could
decline.

As we grow our business, it is crucial for us to be able to set up and operationalize large teams of qualified senior managers
and skilled professionals to service our clients’ requirements. Our ability to create innovative offerings and execute our project
engagements depends in large part on our ability to attract, train, motivate and retain skilled professionals. Our ability to bid on
and obtain new engagements and to continue to expand our service offerings will be impaired if we cannot hire and retain
adequate qualified personnel. This could, in turn, lead to a decline in our revenue. We believe that there is significant
competition for technology professionals with skills necessary to perform the services we offer, particularly in the locations in
which we have operations.

Over the last few years, we have been investing towards attraction, engagement, retention and development of key talent, to
keep pace with continuing changes in technology, evolving standards and changing client preferences. However, we may not
be able to hire, train and retain skilled and experienced professionals/employees to meet our business requirements.
Additionally, if any of our senior executives or key personnel joins a competitor, we may lose clients, suppliers, know-how and
key talent to them which may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. There could
also be unauthorised disclosure or use of our technical knowledge, practices or procedures by such personnel.
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If any dispute arises between our senior executives or key personnel and us, any non-competition, non-solicitation and non-
disclosure provisions in our employment agreements we have with our senior executives or key personnel might not provide
effective protection to us. We may be subject to litigation or administrative actions resulting from claims against us by current
or former employees individually or as part of class actions, including claims of wrongful terminations, discrimination,
misclassification or other violations of labour law or other alleged conduct. From time to time, we may enter into settlement
agreements with employees in relation to any such potential litigation. We may also, from time to time, be subject to litigation
resulting from claims against us by third parties, including for non-adherence to the code of conduct or employment terms by
our employees. If the courts or tribunals rule against us in any such matters, we may face monetary losses and may have to
make provisions in our financial statements as per Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, which
could increase our expenses and our liabilities. Any adverse publicity associated with such cases may also harm our reputation.

Additionally, we have quite a few personnel who are deployed to our overseas operations among whom some are local nationals
of those countries. Our employment contracts with such personnel are governed by local law and are quite complex in nature.
We may be subjected to various monetary penalties in case non compliances and breaches in relation to such contracts.
Moreover, we may not be able to estimate the financial liability until such circumstances actually arise.

9. Ifwe fail to attract and retain highly skilled professionals, we may not have the necessary resources to properly staff projects,
and failure to successfully compete for such professionals could materially adversely affect our business, cash flows,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our success depends largely on the contributions of our professionals and our ability to attract and retain qualified professionals.
While our attrition rates are in line with industry standards today, we may encounter higher attrition rates in the future driven
by competitor actions, technology and skillset shift. A significant increase in the attrition rate among skilled professionals with
specialised skills could decrease our operating efficiency and productivity on existing work packages which could lead to a
decline in demand for our offerings. The competition for highly skilled professionals may require us to increase salaries, and
we may be unable to pass on these increased costs to our customers. This would increase our operational costs which may
adversely affect our business, cash flows, results of operations and financial condition and capital allocation decisions.

In addition, our ability to maintain and renew existing engagements and obtain new business will depend, in large part, on our
ability to attract, train and retain a skilled workforce, including experienced management professionals, which enables us to
keep pace the evolving industry standards and changing customer preferences. If we are unable to attract and retain the highly
skilled workforce we need, we may have to forgo projects for lack of resources or be unable to staff projects optimally.
Moreover, we may be unable to manage knowledge developed internally, which may be lost in the event of our inability to
retain employees.

As of September 30, 2023, our total global workforce comprised 3,113 employees compared to 1,886 employees as of March
31, 2021. Our business is people driven and, accordingly, our success depends upon our ability to attract, develop, motivate,
retain and effectively utilise highly-skilled professionals. We believe that there is significant competition for skilled
professionals in India and that such competition is likely to continue for the foreseeable future. Internationally, we encounter
talent challenges, including a shortage of the required skillset, immigration-related constraints, local regulations, and other
macro-economic factors.

The following table describes our attrition rates for full-time employees for the six-months period ended September 30, 2023
and for Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021 and the total number of employees as at September 30, 2023, March 31, 2023, March 31,
2022 and March 31, 2021:

Six-months period Fiscal
Employees ended 2023 2022 2021
September 30, 2023
Attrition Rates®®? 16.80% 22.64% 27.34% 20.94%
Total as of the end of the 3,113 2,685 2,300 1,886
period/year®

(1) Attrition only relates to voluntary attrition of full-time employees during the respective period/ years.
(2) Attrition percentage = (Cumulative voluntary attrition during the period / average headcount during the period) x 100.
(3) Includes full-time employees and contractors.

Further, we believe that there is a limited pool of individuals who have the skills and training needed to help us grow our
Company. We compete for such talented individuals not only with other companies in our industry but also with companies in
other industries. High attrition rates would increase our hiring, reskilling, upskilling and training costs and could have an adverse
effect on our ability to complete existing contracts in a timely manner, meet customer objectives and expand our business.

10. Our Company is required to comply with the various requirements prescribed under the SEBI Listing Regulations. Failure
to comply with the same by our Company may result in certain adverse consequences.

We had received emails dated May 20, 2023 and August 22, 2022 from BSE and emails dated May 20, 2023 and August 22,
2022 from NSE, each imposing a fine of 20.59 lakhs on our Company for the quarter ending March 31, 2022 and a fine of %3.77
lakhs for the quarter ending June 30, 2022 for non-compliance with Regulation 17(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. We also
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11.

received an email dated December 14, 2023, from BSE and NSE each imposing a fine of 20.11 lakhs for non-compliance of
Regulation 29(2) and Regulation 29(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. We have paid the aforesaid fines. There can be no
assurance that similar fines will not be levied or any other action (as set out in the applicable SEBI Listing Regulations) will
not be taken by the Stock Exchanges. Any such instances in future could impact our reputation.

We operate in rapidly evolving industries, which makes it difficult to evaluate our future prospects and may increase the
risk that we will not continue to be successful. If we are not successful, it could materially adversely affect our business,
reputation and cash flows.

The industries we operate in are competitive and continuously evolving, subject to rapidly changing demands and constant
technological developments. As a result, success and performance metrics are difficult to predict and measure. Because services
and technologies are rapidly evolving and each company within the industry can vary greatly in terms of its offerings, its
business model, and its results of operations, it can be difficult to predict how any company’s services, including ours, will be
received in the market. While businesses have been incurring significant expenditure in the past to adopt emerging technologies
and related technological trends, there can be no assurance that they will continue to do so in the future. Further, we have
developed offerings in emerging technologies such as Al enabled manufacturing engineering, generative Al, industrial
automation, engineering and digital transformation and we intend to continue our investment in such technologies. However,
there is no assurance that we will be able to recoup our investments in these technologies as commercial viability of these
technologies are subject to factors such as evolving market dynamics, technological advancements by competitors, regulatory
changes, and customer adoption rates. We may also encounter unforeseen obstacles during the development, implementation,
and commercialization of these technologies, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, cash flows, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our revenues, operating results and profitability have varied in the past and are likely to vary in the future. Factors that are
likely to cause these variations include:

o the number, timing, scope and contractual terms of the projects in which we are engaged;

o delays in project commencement or staffing delays due to difficulty in assigning appropriately skilled or experienced
professionals;

e the accuracy of estimates of resources, time and fees required to complete fixed-price projects and costs incurred in the
performance of each project;

o delivery delays and project delays or cancellations, particularly in relation to the products and solutions (defense) business;

e design, manufacturing, and/or any other development-related failures associated with the products we collaborate on with
our customers;

e changes in pricing in response to customer demand and competitive pressures;

e changes in the allocation of onsite and offshore staffing;

o the business decisions of our customers regarding the use of our offerings;

o the ability to further grow revenues from existing customers;

e seasonal trends, primarily our hiring cycle and the budget and work cycles of our customers;

o the ratio of fixed-price contracts to time-and-materials contracts in process;

o employee wage levels and increases in compensation costs, including timing of promotions and annual pay increases;

e unexpected changes in the attrition rate of our professionals;

e unanticipated contract or project terminations;

¢ the timing of collection of accounts receivable;

e the continuing financial stability of our customers; and

e general economic conditions and/or macroeconomic factors pertaining to specific industries and verticals we serve.

Our future profits may vary substantially from those of other companies and those we have achieved in the past. One or any
combination of the above factors may cause our customers’ demand for our offerings to decline as a result of which our business
may suffer and our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Further, given that the technology services industry is subject to rapidly changing demands and constant technological
developments, our failure to promptly upgrade our technology may result in disruptions to or lower quality of our services and
our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be materially and adversely affected.

12. We are subject to strict quality requirements, customer inspections and quality audits, and any failure to comply with quality

standards may lead to cancellation of existing and future orders and could negatively impact our reputation and our cash
flows, financial condition, business and results of operations and future prospects.

We have design capabilities across the entire spectrum of products and solutions (encompassing our defence business),
aerospace, heavy engineering, automotive, product engineering services (encompassing our semiconductor business) and
energy verticals.

Therefore, we design, develop, analyse and provide engineering solutions for complex and specialised products and systems

41



13.

14.

for customers based on specific requirements stipulated by them. Given the nature of our solutions, and the sectors in which we
operate, our customers typically have high standards for product quality and delivery schedules. Adherence to quality standards
is a critical factor as a defect or failure to comply with the specifications of our customers may, in turn, lead to cancellation of
purchase orders or non-renewal of agreements by our customers and at certain instances may impose additional costs. Further,
any failure to adhere to timelines as per our customers’ requirements could result in cancellation or non-renewal of purchase
orders and at certain instances may also result in us bearing additional financial exposure.

We have put in place quality control procedures and processes to ensure that our products will be able to satisfy our customers’
quality standards. However, it is possible that our procedures and processes may fail to test for all possible conditions of use or
identify all defects in the design or specifications of the components. Any negative publicity regarding our Company, or our
products could adversely affect our reputation, our operations and our results from operations.

Prior to awarding us contracts, certain of our customers undertake a detailed review process, which involves inspection of our
facilities, review of our processes, technical review of the designs and specification of the proposed product and solutions,
inspection and review of prototypes of the product and solutions. Further, our customers generally have the right to inspect and
audit our facilities and processes and conduct pre-delivery inspections after reasonable notice to ensure that our products and
services are meeting their internal and notified standards. If we fail to perform our services in accordance with best practices
stipulated by our customers and/or our customers are dissatisfied with the quality of our facilities, products and services in any
manner, our products may get rejected, our reputation could be harmed and our customers may terminate/modify their
contractual arrangements and/ or refuse to renew their contractual arrangements or purchase orders. This may have an adverse
impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations and future prospects.

Undetected design defects, errors or failures may result in loss of or delay in market acceptance of our services or in liabilities
that could materially adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

Our development solutions involve a high degree of technological complexity and have unique specifications which could
contain design defects or software errors such as errors in coding or configuration that are difficult to detect and correct. Errors
or defects may result in the loss of current customers and loss of, or delay in, revenues, loss of market share, loss of customer
data, a failure to attract new customers or achieve market acceptance, diversion of development resources and increased support
or service costs. For instance, we have faced repeated delays in the execution and delivery of our man portable counter drone
system due to issues flagged during pre-delivery inspections. The issues flagged during the previous inspections have been
resolved and we currently await pre-delivery inspection. We cannot assure you that, despite testing by us and our customers,
errors will not be found in new product development solutions, which could result in litigation and other claims for damages
against us and thus could materially adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

If we fail to integrate or manage acquired companies or businesses efficiently, or if the acquired companies or businesses
are difficult to integrate, divert management resources or do not perform to our expectations, we may not be able to realize
the benefits envisioned for such acquisitions, and our overall profitability and growth plans could be materially adversely
affected.

In the past, we have expanded our capabilities and gained new customers through selective acquisitions. We completed the
acquisition of Mistral in Fiscal 2023 with a view to diversifying our offerings, unlocking potential, generating incremental value
and achieving sustained growth in the future. We also recently completed the acquisition of Epcogen Private Limited and add-
solutions GmbH. For details in relation to these acquisitions, see “Our Business — Our Strategies - Enhance domain capabilities
by strategically growing through both organic and inorganic channels” on page 358. In the future, while we may acquire
additional businesses that we believe could complement and expand our business, enhance our geographic foot print, strengthen
capabilities and service offerings, integrating the operations of acquired businesses successfully or otherwise realising any of
the anticipated benefits of acquisitions, including operational efficiencies and additional revenue opportunities, involves a
number of potential challenges. These integration activities are complex and time-consuming, and we may encounter
unexpected difficulties or incur unexpected costs, including:

e retaining key senior management, founding members and key sales and marketing and research and development
personnel, particularly those of the acquired operations;

e disengaging with or relieving key senior management, founding members and key sales and marketing and research and
development personnel, particularly those of the acquired operations;

e our inability to achieve the operating synergies anticipated in the acquisitions;

o diversion of management attention from on-going business performance and associated concerns to integration matters;

e consolidating and rationalising IT platforms and administrative infrastructures;

e complexities associated with managing the geographic separation of the combined businesses and consolidating multiple
physical locations;

e integrating personnel from different corporate cultures while maintaining focus on providing consistent, high quality
service to both existing and newly acquired customers;

e demonstrating to both existing and newly acquired customers that the acquisition will not result in adverse changes in
customer service standards or business focus;

e possible cash flow interruption or loss of revenue as a result of transitional matters;
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16.

e incurring liabilities from the acquired businesses for infringement of intellectual property rights or other claims for which
we may not be successful in seeking indemnification;

e incurring debt, amortisation expenses related to intangible assets, large and immediate write-offs, or issuing common stock
that would dilute our existing stockholders’ ownership;

e generating sufficient revenues and net income to offset acquisition costs;

e potential loss of, or harm to, employee or customer relationships;

e properly structuring our acquisition consideration and any related post-acquisition earn-outs and successfully monitoring
any earn-out calculations and payments;

o failing to realise the potential cost savings or other financial benefits and/or the strategic benefits of the acquisition;

e integrating and documenting processes and controls; and

e entry into unfamiliar markets;

Additionally, our acquisitions comprise of companies having individual founders and in the normal course of business, we may
experience attrition of some of these founders. There may also be situations where we decide to bring in new leadership either
for integration purposes or succession planning and this may result in attrition of some of the founding members in the
companies we acquire.

Acquired businesses may have liabilities or adverse operating issues that we may have failed to discover through due diligence
prior to the acquisition. In particular, to the extent that prior owners of any acquired businesses or properties failed to comply
with or otherwise violated applicable laws or regulations, or failed to fulfil their contractual obligations to customers, we, as
the successor owner, may be financially responsible for these violations and failures and may suffer financial or reputational
harm or otherwise be adversely affected. Similarly, our acquisition targets may not have as robust internal controls over financial
reporting as would be expected of a public company. Acquisitions also frequently result in the recording of goodwill and other
intangible assets which are subject to potential impairment in the future that could harm our financial results. We may also
become subject to new regulations as a result of an acquisition, including if we acquire a business serving customers in a
regulated industry or acquire a business with customers or operations in a country in which we do not already operate.

As a result, if we fail to properly evaluate acquisitions or investments, we may not achieve the anticipated benefits of any such
acquisitions, and we may incur costs in excess of what we anticipate. The failure to successfully integrate the operations or
otherwise to realise any of the anticipated benefits of the acquisition could seriously harm our cash flows and results of
operations.

We rely on certain third-party software to conduct our business. We may face intellectual property infringement claims that
could be time-consuming and costly to defend. If we fail to defend ourselves against such claims, we may lose significant
intellectual property rights and may be unable to continue providing our existing services.

Our success largely depends on our ability to use and develop our technology, tools, code, methodologies and services without
infringing the intellectual property rights of third parties, including patents, copyrights, trade secrets and trademarks. We may
be subject to litigation involving claims of patent infringement or violation of other intellectual property rights of third parties.
These claims may require us to initiate or defend protracted and costly litigation on behalf of our customers, regardless of the
merits of these claims. If any of these claims succeed, we may be forced to pay damages on behalf of our customers, redesign
or cease offering our infringing services or solutions, or obtain licenses for the intellectual property such services or solutions
infringe. If we cannot obtain all necessary licenses on commercially reasonable terms, our customers may be forced to stop
using our services or solutions. While we have not faced any such occurrence during the six-months period ended September
30, 2023 and in the Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021, we cannot assure you that we will not face such occurrences in the future.

The holders of patents and other intellectual property rights potentially relevant to our service offerings may make it difficult
for us to acquire a license on commercially acceptable terms or at all, which could have a material adverse impact on our ability
to deliver the relevant service offerings and hence on our business. Also, we may be unaware of intellectual property
registrations or applications relating to our services that may give rise to potential infringement claims against us. There may
also be technologies licensed to and relied on by us that are subject to infringement or other corresponding allegations or claims
by third parties which may damage our ability to rely on such technologies.

Uncertain and lengthy vendor selection process may have an adverse impact on our business, cash flows, financial
conditions and results of operations.

We undergo through a vendor selection process with our customers, which can take up to several months or years from the date
of issue of a Request For Quote (“RFQ”) to secure business. During this process, we are required to submit a technical proposal
that includes features, performance specifications, proposed development timeline, performance and durability expectations.
We are also required to develop and supply concept prototypes for the customer based on initial design plans. Once our
prototype is confirmed to have met the customer’s specifications and clears the testing phase, we may receive firm orders. This
vendor selection and prototype development process is both lengthy and costly. If we fail to convert the RFQ process into firm
orders, we may not recover these costs. Additionally, there is no assurance that we will be successful in securing new customer
relationships or that these relationships will result in long-term business. The uncertain and lengthy vendor selection process
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could adversely impact our business, cash flows, financial conditions and results of operations.

17. Our profitability will suffer if we are not able to maintain our resource utilisation levels and productivity levels.

Our profitability is significantly impacted by our utilisation levels of fixed-cost resources, including human resources as well
as other resources such as computers and office space, and our ability to increase our productivity levels. We have expanded
our operations significantly in recent years through organic growth and strategic acquisitions, which has resulted in a significant
increase in our headcount and fixed overhead costs.

Our ability to manage our utilisation levels depends significantly on our ability to hire and train high-performing professionals
and to staff projects appropriately and on the general economy and its effect on our customers and their business decisions
regarding the use of our services. If we experience a slowdown or stoppage of work for any customer or on any project for
which we have dedicated professionals or facilities, we may not be able to efficiently reallocate these professionals and facilities
to other customers and projects to keep their utilisation and productivity levels high. If we are not able to maintain high resource
utilisation levels without corresponding cost reductions or price increases, our profitability will suffer. In the event of a
slowdown due to external factors, or if the number of our customers reduce, we may be over-staffed and required to carry excess
employee-related expenses which could affect our financial condition.

Our utilisation rates are affected by a number of factors, including:

e our ability to promptly transition our employees from completed projects with adequate training and cross skilling required
to new assignments;

e our ability to forecast demand for our services and thereby maintain an appropriate number of employees in each of our
industry verticals;

e our ability to deploy employees with appropriate skills and seniority to projects;

e our ability to manage the attrition of our employees and to hire and integrate new employees;

e our need to devote time and resources to training, professional development and other activities that cannot be billed to our
customers; and

Employee shortages could prevent us from completing our contractual commitments in a timely manner, taking up new
contracts and cause us to lose contracts or customers. Further, to the extent that we lack sufficient employees with lower levels
of seniority and daily or hourly rates, we may be required to deploy more senior employees with higher rates on projects without
the ability to pass such higher rates to our customers, which could adversely affect our profit margin and profitability.

18. We operate in a competitive business environment. Failure to compete effectively against our competitors and new entrants
to the industry in any of our business verticals may adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results
of operations.

Our end-to-end basket of solutions spread across industry verticals is competitive, and it experiences rapid technological
developments and changes in customer requirements. Our ability to meet the qualification criteria in our various business areas
is critical to being considered for any project. We compete on the basis of our ability to fulfil our contractual obligations
including the quality and timely delivery of our offerings. Additionally, while these are important considerations, price is a
major factor, and our business is subject to intense price competition. Our competitors may have substantially greater financial,
management, research and marketing resources than we have as a result of which they may be able to utilise their resources and
economies of scale to develop improved products, divert sales away from us by winning broader contracts or hire our employees
by offering more lucrative compensation packages and/or quality of work. Our competitors may be able to provide our
customers, including the Government of India entities, with different or greater capabilities or benefits than we can provide in
areas such as technology, technical qualifications, post contract performance, price and availability of key professional
personnel. Our failure to compete effectively with respect to any of these or other factors could have a material adverse effect
on our business, prospects, financial condition or operating results. In such a scenario, we may find difficulties in maintaining
our position in the market.

Going forward, in order to remain competitive, we must consistently provide products and/or services with superior
performance and capability to our customers, advanced technology solutions and service at an affordable cost and with the
agility that our customers require to satisfy their mission objectives. Our inability to successfully do so could have a material
adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and/ or operating results. Moreover, if we are not able to further
develop our proximity to our customers and make our vendor-supplier ecosystem more efficient or as efficient as our
competitors, there can be no assurance we will be able to grow or effectively compete in the industry.

19. We may not qualify for or win bids to further expand our business, which may have an adverse effect on our business, cash
flows, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Our business and growth depend on our ability to qualify for and win bids for securing contracts. Our Company obtains a
substantial portion of its business through a competitive bidding process in which it competes for project awards based on,
among other things, pricing, technical and technological expertise, reputation for quality, financing capabilities and track record.
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The bidding and selection process is affected by a number of factors, including factors which may be beyond our control, such
as market conditions, project delays, scope adjustments, or external economic factors. Any increase in competition during the
bidding process or reduction in our competitive capabilities could have a material adverse effect on our market share.

In addition to meeting bid capacity requirements, we may also be required to pre-qualify for the orders involving Gol Entities
such as in relation to background checks and prior experience of the bidders. However, we cannot assure that we shall always
maintain our bid capacity and our pre-qualification capabilities, and that we shall be able to continually secure projects so as to
enhance our business operations, financial performance and results of operations. Further, such pre-qualification criteria may
also change from time to time. Our inability to fulfil and maintain the bid and pre- qualification capabilities may materially
impact our operating revenue and profitability.

There can be no assurance that our current or potential competitors will not offer solutions comparable or superior to those that
we offer at the same or lower prices, adapt more quickly to industry challenges, or expand their operations at a faster pace than
we do. Increased competition may result in price reductions, reduced profit margins and loss of market share, thereby causing
an adverse effect on our operations, prospects and financial condition.

We design, develop and provide solutions that incorporate advanced technologies. If we are not successful in managing
increasingly large and complex projects, we may not achieve our financial goals and our results of operations and cash
flows could be materially adversely affected.

To successfully market our service offerings and obtain larger and more complex projects, we need to establish close
relationships with our customers and develop a thorough understanding of their operations. In addition, we may face a number
of challenges managing larger and more complex projects, including:

e maintaining high-quality control and process execution standards;

e maintaining planned resource utilisation rates on a consistent basis;

e maintaining productivity levels and implementing necessary process improvements;
e controlling costs; and

e maintaining close customer contact and high levels of customer satisfaction.

Our ability to successfully manage large and complex projects depends significantly on the skills of our management personnel
and skilled professionals, some of whom do not have experience managing large-scale or complex projects. In addition, large
and complex projects may involve multiple engagements or stages, and there is a risk that a customer may choose not to retain
us for additional stages or may cancel or delay additional planned engagements. Such cancellations or delays may make it
difficult to plan our project resource requirements. If we fail to successfully obtain engagements for large and complex projects,
we may not achieve our revenue growth and other financial goals. Even if we are successful in obtaining such engagements, a
failure by us to effectively manage these large and complex projects could damage our reputation, cause us to lose business,
impact our margins and materially adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

We propose to develop new solutions and there can be no assurance that new solutions developed by us will be acceptable
to customers or that we would be able to develop commercially viable products in a timely manner or at all.

As part of our expansion strategy, we intend to design, develop and create newer varieties of existing solutions which may or
may not utilise building blocks for these solutions already created by us. There can be no guarantee that we will be able to
design, develop or provide engineering solutions at a commercially viable scale or in a timely manner or at all. Further, our
solutions may require extensive testing or evaluation trials or design and development approvals by different government
agencies prior to commercialisation, which may not render the results desired by us. Our solutions may not perform up to
expectations or requirements of various agencies during such trials, leading to requirement to make further changes.

Particularly, we provide complex and specialised solutions for customers in the defence sector based on specific requirements
stipulated by them. Given the nature of our solutions, and the sector in which we operate, our customers typically have high
standards for product quality and delivery schedules.

Accordingly, there can be no assurance that our future solutions will be commercially viable or that investments made by us
towards development or commercialisation of any new solutions would lead to future profits. We may experience difficulties
that could delay or hinder the successful development, introduction and marketing of our solutions. There can be no assurance
that our solutions will be readily accepted in the market, become commercially successful or that our competitors will not be
able to provide similar solutions at a lower price than we can, which would have an adverse effect on our solutions’ competitive
position. If we are unable to achieve the anticipated returns in such new growth areas, it could have a material adverse effect
on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We have had negative cash flows in the past and may continue to have negative cash flows in the future, which could
adversely affect our liquidity and operations.

We experienced the cash flows, both positive and negative, set forth in the table below for the six-months period ended
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September 30, 2023 and in the Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021:

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Six-months period Fiscal
ended 2023 2022 2021
September 30, 2023
Net cash generated from 1,384.29 7,063.68 3117.79 12,212.22
operating activities
Net cash (used in)/generated (4,245.92) (20,080.88) 2,958.02 (2,177.20)
from investing activities
Net cash generated from/(used 467.76 13,280.06 (4,230.13) (9,293.78)
in) financing activities
Net (decreasg) / increase in cash (2,393.87) 262 86 1845.68 74124
and cash equivalent

We cannot assure you that our operating cash flows or net cash flows will be positive in the future.

If we are unable to collect our receivables from, or bill our unbilled offerings to, our customers, our results of operations
and cash flows could be materially adversely affected.

Our business depends on our ability to successfully obtain payment from our customers of the amounts they owe us for work
performed. We usually bill and collect on relatively short cycles. As per our agreements, our payment terms are 60 to 90 days
from the date when the customer receives the invoice. Our average debtor cycle was 88 days, 80 days, 87 days and 90 days for
the six-months period ended September 30, 2023 and in the Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

We maintain allowances against receivables and unbilled services. Actual losses on customer balances could differ from those
that we currently anticipate and, as a result, we might need to adjust our allowances. There is no guarantee that we will accurately
assess the creditworthiness and carryout an accurate due diligence of our customers. Weak macroeconomic conditions and
related turmoil in the global financial system could also result in financial difficulties, including limited access to the credit
markets, insolvency, or bankruptcy for our customers, and, as a result, could cause customers to delay payments to us, request
modifications to their payment arrangements that could increase our receivables balance, or default on their payment obligations
to us. Timely collection of customer balances also depends on our ability to complete our contractual commitments and bill and
collect our contracted revenues. If we are unable to meet our contractual requirements, we might experience delays in collection
of and/or be unable to collect our customer balances in time, and if this occurs, our results of operations and cash flows could
be materially adversely affected. In addition, if we experience an increase in the time to bill and collect for our services, our
cash flows could be adversely affected.

Data networks are vulnerable to attacks, unauthorised access and disruptions. Losses or liabilities that are incurred as a
result of any of the foregoing could materially adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of
operations.

Data networks are also vulnerable to attacks, unauthorised access and disruptions. For example, in a number of public networks,
hackers have bypassed firewalls and misappropriated confidential information, including personally identifiable information.
It is possible that, despite existing safeguards, an employee could misappropriate our customers’ proprietary information or
data, exposing us to a risk of loss or litigation and possible liability. There have been instances in the past of usage of licenced
tools and software by resigned/relieved employees, without authorization. While we have undertaken procedural and technical
measures to prevent such incidents, there can be no assurance that such incident may not occur in future.

In such cases, if our services cause disruptions to our customers’ businesses or result in us providing inadequate service, our
customers may have claims for substantial damages against us, which could materially adversely affect our business, cash
flows, financial condition and results of operations.

Our computer networks may be vulnerable to unauthorised access, computer hackers, computer viruses, worms, malicious
applications and other security problems caused by unauthorised access to, or improper use of, systems by third parties or
employees. Although we have not experienced such attacks in the past other than instances of phishing, malware and virus
attacks that we handled effectively, we cannot assure you that our security systems in place can prevent any such attacks in the
future or that we will be able to handle such attacks effectively. A hacker who circumvents security measures could
misappropriate proprietary information, including personally identifiable information, or cause interruptions or malfunctions in
our operations. Further, computer attacks or disruptions may jeopardise the security of information stored in and transmitted
through our computer systems. Actual or perceived concerns that our systems may be vulnerable to such attacks or disruptions
may deter our customers from using our solutions or services. As a result, we may be required to expend significant resources
to protect against the threat of these security breaches or to alleviate problems caused by these breaches.

We are subject to laws, rules and regulations and may be liable to our clients for damages caused by system failures,
disclosure of confidential information or data security breaches, which could require us to incur additional expenses and
also harm our reputation, damage our relationship with clients and cause us to lose clients.

We often have access to, or are required to collect and store, confidential client data. We face a number of threats to our networks
such as unauthorized access, security breaches, computer hacks, computer viruses, worms, malicious applications, interruptions
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or malfunctions in our operations, computer attacks, disruptions or other security problems caused by unauthorized access to,
improper use or misappropriation of systems by third parties or our personnel. While we have in place an established process
for actively monitoring related risks, the evolving nature of cyber-threats is an ever-present risk of disruption and we are
dependent upon the optimum functioning of telecommunications software and hardware to ensure efficient and secure transfer
of datasets between our clients, sites, and global teams. Any failure in a client’s system using our services or solutions could
result in a claim for substantial damages against us, regardless of our responsibility for such failure, exposing us to a risk of
loss or litigation and possible liability, including for breach of contractual confidentiality provisions or privacy laws.

In addition, our business activities are also vulnerable to damage or interruption from human error or negligence, intentional
bad acts, terrorist attacks, power losses, hardware failures, systems failures, telecommunication failures and similar events. It
is critical to our business that our infrastructure remains secure and is perceived by clients to be secure.

A successful assertion of one or more large claims against us that exceeds our available insurance coverage or results in changes
to our insurance policies could adversely affect our revenues and results of operations. Even if such assertions against us are
unsuccessful, we may incur reputational harm and substantial legal fees. We may also be liable to our clients for damages or
termination of contract if we are unable to address disruption in services to them with adequate business continuity plans and/or
for non-compliance with our clients’ information security policies and procedures, which may adversely affect our business
and results of operations.

We face risks relating to compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to the collection, storage, use, sharing,
disclosure, protection and security of personal information, as well as requests from regulatory and government authorities
relating to such data. These laws, rules, and regulations evolve frequently and their scope may continually change, through new
legislation, amendments to existing legislation, and changes in enforcement. For instance, in order to ensure data privacy, our
Company is required to ensure compliance with the Information Technology Act, 2000 (“IT Act”) and the rules notified
thereunder which prescribe, inter alia, directions for the collection, disclosure, transfer and protection of sensitive personal data.
The Government of India recently enacted the Digital Personal Data Protection Act, 2023 (“Data Protection Act”). The Data
Protection Act requires data fiduciaries (persons who alone or in conjunction with other persons determine purpose and means
of processing of personal data), to implement organizational and technical measures to ensure compliance with obligations
imposed under the Data Protection Act, protect personal data and impose reasonable security safeguards to prevent breach of
personal data and establish mechanism for redressal of grievances of data principals. In case we are notified as a significant
data fiduciary under the Data Protection Act, we may have additional obligations imposed on us. Overall, changes in laws or
regulations relating to privacy, data protection, and information security, particularly any new or modified laws or regulations,
such as the General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”) adopted by the European Union (“EU”), or changes to the
interpretation or enforcement of such laws or regulations, that require enhanced protection of certain types of data or new
obligations with regard to data retention, transfer, or disclosure, could require us to modify our existing systems or invest in
new technologies to ensure compliance with such applicable laws, which may require us to incur additional expenses. Any
failure or perceived failure by us to prevent information security breaches or to comply with privacy policies or privacy-related
legal and contractual obligations could cause our clients to lose trust in us and our services. Any perception that the privacy of
information is unsafe or vulnerable when using our services, could damage our reputation and substantially harm our business.

If we incur serious uninsured loss that significantly exceeds the limit of our insurance policies, it would have an adverse
effect on our financial conditions, results of operation and cash flows.

We maintain customary insurance policies for our business premises, workers’ compensation insurance, cyber liability
insurance and commercial general liability insurance. As of September 30, 2023, our total assets were adequately insured as
per management risk assessment. For further information, see “Our Business — Insurance” on page 361.

While we believe that the insurance coverage which we maintain would be reasonably adequate to cover the normal risks
associated with the operation of our business, we cannot assure you that any claim under the insurance policies maintained by
us will be honoured fully, in part or on time, or that we have taken out sufficient insurance to cover all our losses. We are also
required to maintain certain insurance policies under our customer agreements, such as workers’ compensation, professional
liability insurance and commercial liability insurance under our customer agreements. Our insurance policies may not provide
adequate coverage and cover all perceivable risks in certain circumstances and are subject to certain deductibles, exclusions
and limits on coverage. In addition, our insurance coverage expires from time to time. We apply for the renewal of our insurance
coverage in the normal course of our business, but we cannot assure you that such renewals will be granted in a timely manner,
at acceptable cost or at all. To the extent that we suffer loss or damage for which we did not obtain or maintain insurance, and
which is not covered by insurance or exceeds our insurance coverage or where our insurance claims are rejected, the loss would
have to be borne by us and our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected.

We will continue to be controlled by our Promoter after the completion of the Issue and any substantial change in our
Promoter’s shareholding will have an impact on the trading price of our Equity Shares.

Our Promoter, Jupiter Capital Private Limited holds and will continue to hold a significant percentage of our Equity Share
capital. Our Promoter will, therefore, be able to control the outcome of matters submitted to our Board or shareholders for
approval. Our Promoter will continue to exercise significant control or influence over our business and major policy decisions.
Our Promoter may also pledge the ownership interest in our Company for its business or borrowings. Accordingly, the interests
of our Promoter in capacity of a shareholder may conflict with your interests and the interest of our other shareholders. The
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trading price of our Equity Shares could be adversely affected if potential new investors are disinclined to invest in us because
they perceive disadvantages to a large shareholding being concentrated in our Promoter.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, we may not be able to successfully manage or accurately report
our financial risk.

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to prepare reliable financial reports and effectively avoid fraud. Moreover, any
internal controls that we may implement, or our level of compliance with such controls, may deteriorate over time, due to
evolving business conditions. Our internal controls are effective as of date. However, if internal control weaknesses are
identified in future, our actions may not be sufficient to correct such internal control weakness. There can be no assurance that
additional deficiencies in our internal controls will not arise in the future, or that we will be able to implement and continue to
maintain adequate measures to rectify or mitigate any such deficiencies in our internal controls. Such instances may also
adversely affect our reputation, thereby adversely impacting our business, cash flows, results of operations and financial
condition.

Our business depends on a strong brand and corporate reputation and if we are not able to maintain and enhance our brand,
our ability to grow our business and our results of operations, cash flows, and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Since many of our specific customer engagements involve highly tailored solutions, our corporate reputation is a significant
factor in our customers’ and prospective customers’ determination of whether to continue engaging us or hire us for prospective
services. We believe that our brand name and reputation are important corporate assets that help distinguish our offerings from
those of our competitors and also contribute to our efforts to recruit and retain talented professionals. However, our corporate
reputation is susceptible to damage by various factors such as actions or statements made by current or former employees or
customers, competitors, Promoter, vendors and adversaries in legal proceedings, as well as members of the investment
community and the media. There is a risk that negative information about our company, even if based on false rumours or
misunderstandings, could adversely affect our business. Any negative news affecting us might also affect our reputation and
brand value. In particular, damage to our reputation could be difficult and time-consuming to repair, especially due to the
competitiveness in our industry, which could make potential or existing customers reluctant to select us for new engagements,
resulting in a loss of business, and could adversely affect our employee recruitment and retention efforts. Damage to our
reputation could also reduce the value and effectiveness of our brand name, could reduce investor confidence in us, affect the
price of our Equity Shares and adversely affect our ability to grow our business and our results of operations, cash flows and
financial condition.

Our Company, our Promoter and our Directors are involved in certain legal proceedings, any adverse developments related
to which could adversely affect our reputation, business and cash flows.

There are outstanding legal proceedings involving our Company, our Promoter and our Directors. These proceedings are
pending at different levels of adjudication before various courts, tribunals and appellate tribunals. We cannot assure you that
these proceedings will be decided in our favour. Brief details of material outstanding litigation that have been initiated by and
against our Company, our Promoter and our Directors, as applicable, are set forth below:

Name of entity Criminal Tax proceedings Statutory or Material civil Aggregate amount

proceedings regulatory litigations involved R in
proceedings lakhs)

Company

By our Company Nil N.A. N.A. 1 186.28

Against our Nil 14 Nil Nil 1,356.03

Company

Directors

By our Directors Nil N.A. N.A. Nil N.A.

Against our Nil Nil Nil Nil N.A.

Directors

Promoter

By our Promoter 2 N.A. N.A. 3 4,167.27

Against our Nil 7 Nil Nil 3,512.00

Promoter

Subsidiaries

By our subsidiaries Nil N.A. N.A. Nil N.A.

Against our Nil 24 Nil Nil 4,037.48

subsidiaries

The amounts claimed in these proceedings have been disclosed to the extent ascertainable and include amounts claimed jointly
and severally. If any new developments arise, such as a change in Indian law or rulings against us by appellate courts or
tribunals, we may need to make provisions that could increase our expenses and current liabilities. Further, such legal
proceedings could divert our management’s time and attention and cause us to incur expenses. Any adverse decision in any of
these proceedings may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. For
further information, see “Legal Proceedings” on page 425.
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markets and face numerous legal and regulatory requirements while operating and expanding and violation of these
regulations could harm our business.

We conduct our business in various jurisdictions globally, including across emerging and developed markets and serve clients
primarily in APAC, Europe, and North America. We operate on a global scale and as of September 30, 2023, we served clients
across several countries spanning Europe, North America and Asia.

The table below sets forth our revenue from contracts with customers by end market geography (based on location of the
specific customer site that we serve, irrespective of the location of the headquarters of the customer) for the period/ years
indicated:

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Region Six-months period Fiscal
ended 2023 2022 2021
September 30,
2023
APAC
Percentage of revenue from contracts with 29.69% 28.30% 24.30% 21.10%

customers in APAC to total revenue from
contract with customers

Europe

Percentage of revenue from contracts with 35.61% 34.30% 32.10% 33.40%
customers in Europe to total revenue from
contract with customers

North America

Percentage of revenue from contracts with 34.70% 37.40% 43.60% 45.50%
customers in North America to total revenue
from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers | 46,510.10 | 81,360.47 | 60,840.77 | 51,738.61

The markets in which we operate are diverse and fragmented, with varying levels of economic and infrastructure development
and distinct legal and regulatory systems, and do not operate seamlessly across borders as a single or common market. The
costs involved in entering and establishing ourselves in new markets, and operating and expanding such operations, may be
higher than expected and we may face significant competition in these regions. Moreover, breaking the incumbency of local or
global competition among clients may require us to make investments that may adversely affect our results of operations. We
may also face additional risks in setting up operations in new markets in which we have no prior operating history or have no
experience of conducting business. These factors may have an adverse effect on our ability to expand into emerging markets
and thus on our business and financial condition.

Since we provide services to clients across various regions, we are also subject to numerous legal requirements and are
vulnerable to shifts in global trade laws and regulations and economic policies on matters as diverse as import/export controls,
content requirements, trade restrictions, trade pacts, the environment (including electronic waste), tariffs, transfer pricing
regulations, duties, taxation, sanctions, government affairs, anti-corruption, whistle blowing, internal and disclosure control
obligations, data protection and privacy and labour relations, security service regulations and certain regulatory requirements
that are specific to our clients’ industries. Non-compliance with these regulations in the conduct of our business could result in
termination of client contracts, fines, penalties, criminal sanctions against us or our officers, prohibitions on doing business and
have an adverse impact on our reputation.

We are subject to risks relating to compliance with a variety of national and local laws including multiple tax regimes, labour
laws, and employee health, safety, wages and benefits laws. For instance, the election and composition of the board of directors
of one of our material subsidiary, AXISCADES Inc. may have been in non-compliance with its by-laws. Our failure to comply
with applicable regulatory requirements could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Our business, cash flows, results of operations and financial condition could be negatively affected if we incur legal liability,
including with respect to our indemnification obligations, in connection with providing our solutions and services.

If we fail to meet our contractual obligations or otherwise breach obligations to our customers, we could be subject to legal
liability. We may enter into non-standard agreements because we perceive an important economic opportunity or because our
personnel did not adequately adhere to our guidelines. In addition, the contracting practices of our competitors may cause
contract terms and conditions that are unfavourable to us to become standard in the marketplace. If we cannot or do not perform
our obligations, we could face legal liability and our contracts might not always protect us adequately through limitations on
the scope and/or amount of our potential liability. If we cannot, or do not, meet our contractual obligations to provide solutions
and services, and if our exposure is not adequately limited through the terms of our agreements, we might face significant legal
liability and our business could be materially adversely affected.

In the normal course of business, we have entered into contractual arrangements through which we may be obligated to
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indemnify customers or other parties with whom we conduct business with respect to certain matters. These arrangements can
include provisions whereby we agree to defend and hold the indemnified party and certain of their affiliates harmless with
respect to claims related to matters including our breach of certain representations, warranties or covenants made by us, or out
of our intellectual property infringement, our gross negligence or wilful misconduct, and certain other claims It is not possible
to determine the maximum potential amount under these indemnification agreements due to the unique facts and circumstances
involved in an agreement, and any claims under these agreements may not be subject to liability limits or exclusion of
consequential, indirect or punitive damages. During the six-months period ended September 30, 2023 and in the Fiscals 2023,
2022 and 2021, we have not made payments under these indemnification agreements. However, if events arise requiring us to
make payment for indemnification claims under our indemnification obligations in contracts we have entered, such payments
could have a material impact on our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

Failure or delays in obtaining third party certifications and accreditations may cause delays in our delivery schedules and
disruptions in our business which may adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of
operations.

We are required to obtain several third party certifications and accreditations in relation to our products and services. For
instance, we have received AS 9100D, 1SO 14001:2015, ISO 27001:2013 and 1SO 9001:2015 certifications for our management
systems. Depending on the product and requirements of our customers, we may need to obtain specific certifications from a
particular agency which may not be forthcoming in a timely manner or at all. As a result, we may experience delays and
disruptions in our products and services capability which may adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and
results of operations.

Our international sales and operations are subject to many uncertainties and we are exposed to foreign currency exchange
rate fluctuations.

We may be subject to risks inherently associated with international operations, including risks associated with foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuations, which may cause volatility in our reported income, and risks associated with the application and
imposition of protective legislation and regulations relating to import or export or otherwise resulting from foreign policy or
the variability of foreign economic conditions.

We transact business in various currencies other than the Indian rupee and have significant customers abroad, which subject us
to currency exchange risks. Any fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may have an asymmetric impact on our profits,
results of operations and cash flows and consequently on our business condition and profitability. As of September 30, 2023,
the net foreign currency exposure of the Group was X 4,103.27 lakhs. Although in order to minimize our exposure to fluctuations
in foreign currency exchange, we have entered into hedging arrangements, there can be no assurance that our hedging measures
will enable us to avoid the effect of any adverse fluctuations in the value of the Indian rupee against the USD, Euro or GBP, or
other foreign currencies in which we may transact business in the future.

As we provide technology solutions to customers throughout the world, we are subject to numerous, and sometimes conflicting,
legal rules on matters as diverse as import/export controls, content requirements, trade restrictions, tariffs, taxation, sanctions,
government affairs, internal and disclosure control obligations, transfer pricing, data privacy and labour relations, particularly
in India where we operate. A significant portion of our systems and operations are located in India and laws and regulations
that are applicable to us, but not to our competitors, may impede our ability to develop and offer services that compete
effectively with those offered by our non-India based competitors and generally available worldwide. Violations of laws or
regulations in the conduct of our business could result in fines, criminal sanctions against us or our officers, prohibitions on
doing business, damage to our reputation and other unintended consequences such as liability for monetary damages, fines
and/or criminal prosecution, unfavourable publicity, restrictions on our ability to process information and allegations by our
customers that we have not performed our contractual obligations. Due to the varying degrees of development of the legal
systems of the countries in which we operate, local laws might be insufficient to protect our rights. Our failure to comply with
applicable legal and regulatory requirements could materially adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and
results of operations.

Additional risks associated with international operations include difficulties in enforcing intellectual property and/or contractual
rights, the burdens of complying with a wide variety of foreign laws, potentially adverse tax consequences, tariffs, quotas and
other barriers and potential difficulties in collecting accounts receivable. In addition, we may face competition in other countries
from companies that may have more experience with operations in such countries or with international operations. Additionally,
such competitors may have long-standing or well-established relationships with customers, which may put us at a competitive
disadvantage. We may also face difficulties integrating new operations in different countries into our existing operations, as
well as integrating employees that we hire in different countries into our existing corporate culture. There can be no assurance
that these and other factors will not impede the success of our international expansion plans, limit our ability to compete
effectively in other countries or otherwise materially adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results
of operations.

Increases in wages and other employee benefits expense for our professionals could prevent us from sustaining our
competitive advantage.

Wage costs for professionals in India are lower than comparable wage costs in more developed countries. However, wage costs
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in the Indian engineering services industry may increase at a faster rate than in the past, either generally or as a result of
establishment of GCCs by global corporations we serve, which ultimately may make us less competitive unless we are able to
increase the efficiency and productivity of our professionals as well as the prices we can charge for our services. Increases in
wage costs may reduce our profitability. Further, there can be no assurance that the Government of India will not impose wage
regulations on professionals. In addition, the issuance of equity-based compensation to our professionals would also result in
additional dilution to our shareholders.

The following table sets out our employee benefit expenses as a percentage of our total expenses and our revenue from contracts
with customers for the period/ years indicated:

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Six-months period Fiscal
ended September 30, 2023 2022 2021
2023
Employee benefits expense (a) 23,269.80 36,089.20 31,214.39 26,661.40
Total expenses (b) 44,384.80 73,847.50 58,048.46 50,833.63
Percentage of employee benefits 52.43% 48.87% 53.77% 52.45%
expense to total expenses (c) =
(a)/(b)
Revenue from contracts with 46,510.10 81,360.47 60,840.77 51,738.61
customers (d)
Percentage of employee benefits 50.03% 44.36% 51.31% 51.53%
expense to revenue from contracts
with customers (e) = (a)/(d)

36. Our contracts may become unprofitable. This may materially adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition
and results of operations.

We perform our services primarily under fixed price contracts. About 66.50% of our revenue from contracts with our customers
are fixed price contracts and about 33.50% are based on time and material as on September 30, 2023. The rates and other pricing
terms negotiated with our customers are highly dependent on our internal forecasts of our operating costs, effort involved,
utilization rates, offsite/onshore mix and predictions of increases in those costs influenced by wage inflation and other
marketplace factors, as well as the volume of work provided by the customer. Our predictions are based on limited data and
could turn out to be inaccurate, resulting in contracts that may not be profitable. Typically, we do not have the ability to increase
the rates established at the outset of a customer project, other than as specified in the agreements with our customers which are
often subject to caps. Moreover, customer expectations regarding the anticipated cost of a project may limit our practical ability
to increase our rates for on-going work.

Revenue from our fixed-price contracts represented 66.50% 61.60%, 54.40% and 55.30% of our revenue from contracts with
customers for the six-months period ended September 30, 2023 and in the Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Our
pricing in fixed-price contracts is highly dependent on our assumptions and forecasts about the costs we expect to incur to
complete the related project, which are based on limited data and could turn out to be inaccurate. Any failure by us to accurately
estimate the employee pyramid and other resources such as cost of material, IT, administrative and facility infrastructure
required to complete a fixed-price contract on time and on budget or meet a service level on a managed service contract, or any
unexpected increase in the cost of our employees assigned to the related project, error or miscalculation of efforts involved,
office space or materials could expose us to risks associated with cost overruns and could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. In addition, any unexpected changes in economic conditions
that affect any of the foregoing assumptions and predictions could render contracts that would have been favourable to us when
signed unfavourable.

We may not be able to fulfil the time and material contracts or staffing contracts or realize the estimated margins due to non-
availability of required skills and resources, mismatch between pay rates and bill rates, resource attrition and various other
factors.

In addition, a number of our contracts/ purchase orders contain pricing terms that condition a portion of the payment of fees by
the customer on our ability to meet defined performance goals, service levels and completion schedules set forth in the contracts/
purchase orders. Our failure to meet such performance goals, service levels or completion schedules or our failure to meet
customer expectations in such contracts may result in less profitable or unprofitable engagements.

Our profitability and operating results are dependent on the rates we are able to charge for our services. We believe our rates
are affected by a number of factors, including:

e our customers’ perception of our ability to add value through our services;
e our competitors’ pricing policies;

e  bid practices of customers and their use of third-party advisors;

o the ability of large customers to exert pricing pressure;

o employee wage levels and increases in compensation costs;
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o employee utilisation levels;

e cost of material, IT, software’s and licenses, office space and any other resource critical to delivery of services or
products to our customers;

e computation of effort with respect to statement of work;

e our ability to charge premium prices when justified by market demand or the type of service; and

e general economic conditions.

If we are not able to maintain favourable pricing for our services, our profitability could suffer. This may materially adversely
affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

37.We may not be able to recognize revenues in the period in which our services are performed, which may cause our margins
to fluctuate.

Our services are performed primarily under fixed-price contract arrangements. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control
of products or services to customers to the extent of an amount that reflects the consideration that we expect to receive in
exchange for these offerings.

In instances where final acceptance of the system or solution is specified by the customer, revenues and related costs are deferred
until all acceptance criteria have been met.

38. Our ability to expand our business and procure new contracts or enter into beneficial business arrangements could be
affected by non-competition clauses in our agreements with existing customers.

Some of our agreements with customers may contain time-based restrictions on reassigning personnel from those customers’
accounts to the accounts of competitors of such customers. These clauses may restrict our ability to offer services to different
customers in a specific industry or market. Moreover, we may in the future enter into agreements with customers that restrict
our ability to accept assignments from, or render similar services to, those customers’ customers, require us to obtain our
customers’ prior written consent to provide services to their customers or restrict our ability to compete with our customers, or
bid for or accept any assignment which our customer is bidding for or is negotiating. These restrictions may hamper our ability
to compete for and provide services to other customers in a specific industry in which we have expertise and could materially
adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

39. Our Company was incorporated in 1990 and we are unable to trace some of our historical records. We cannot assure you
that no legal proceedings or regulatory actions will be initiated against our Company in the future in relation to the missing
filings and corporate records, which may impact our financial condition and reputation.

We are unable to trace some of our historical records, including the form filings made with the RoC, and corresponding
resolution maintained by our Company. We may be unable to obtain copies of these documents in the future to ascertain details
of the relevant transactions. For instance, we have been unable to trace the following corporate records and regulatory filings
of our Company:

0] return of allotment filed with RoC, with respect to allotments of equity shares made by our Company dated March 30,
1991, April 1, 1993 and March 31, 1996;
(ii) form for filing of resolutions along with the Board resolution approving the allotment and shareholders’ resolution for

the allotment dated July 28, 1999;

(iii) notice of consolidation, division, etc. or increase in share capital or increase in number of members with respect to the
split of equity shares dated July 5, 2000;

(iv) Shareholders’ resolution for the allotment dated December 7, 2005 and May 4, 2000;

(V) Board resolution approving the issuance with respect to allotments dated March 30, 1991, April 1, 1993, March 31,
1996 and March 27, 1997; and

(vi) copy of the erstwhile employee stock purchase scheme.

While certain information in relation to these allotments has been disclosed in the section “Capital Structure” on page 71 based
upon the details provided in the search report dated January 9, 2024, prepared by Sameer Kishore Bhatnagar, Practicing
Company Secretary. We may not be able to furnish any further information, other than what is already disclosed in “Capital
Structure” beginning on page 71.

Additionally, we are unable to identify the allotments for which Form FC-GPR was required to be filed. While no legal
proceedings or regulatory action has been initiated against our Company in relation to the unavailable filings and statutory
lapses as of the date of this Preliminary Placement Document, we cannot assure you that such proceedings or regulatory actions
will not be initiated against our Company in the future in relation to the missing filings and corporate records. While the amount
of penalty is not likely to be material, the actual amount of the penalty which may be imposed or loss which may be suffered
by our Company cannot be ascertained at this stage and depends on the circumstances of any potential action which may be
brought against our Company.
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40.

41.

We have incurred indebtedness and an inability to comply with repayment and other covenants in our financing agreements
could adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We have entered into various financing arrangements with various lenders for short-term and long terms facilities. As of
September 30, 2023, our Total Borrowings amounted to X 35,666.12 lakhs. Our ability to pay interest and repay the principal
for our indebtedness is dependent upon our ability to generate sufficient cash flows to service such debt. Any additional
indebtedness we incur may have significant consequences, including, requiring us to use a significant portion of our cash flow
from operations and other available cash to service our indebtedness, thereby reducing the funds available for other purposes
and reducing our flexibility in planning for or reacting to changes in our business, competition pressures and market conditions.
Moreover, some of our existing borrowings are and our future borrowings may be at an interest rate higher than the prevailing
market rate. We cannot assure you that we will be successful in negotiating favourable terms for our future borrowings.

Some of our borrowings are secured, among others, by way of lien on our assets. As these assets are hypothecated or mortgaged,
our rights in respect of transferring or disposing of these assets are restricted except in the normal course of business. Further,
in the event we fail to service our debt obligations, the lenders have the right to enforce the security created in respect of our
secured borrowings and take possession of and/or transfer the assets comprised within the security. If the lenders choose to
enforce security and dispose our assets to recover the amounts due from us, our business, results of operations, financial
condition, cash flows and future prospects may be adversely affected.

Some of the financing arrangements entered into by us include conditions that require us to obtain respective lenders’ consent
prior to carrying out certain activities and entering into certain transactions. Failure to meet these conditions or obtain these
consents could have significant consequences on our business and operations. These covenants vary depending on the
requirements of the financial institution extending such loan and the conditions negotiated under each financing agreement.

Some of the corporate actions that require prior consents from certain lenders include, amongst others, altering our capital
structure, dilution in shareholding of our Promoter of our Company and mobilising capital markets.

While all necessary consents required under the terms of the financing arrangements for the Issue have been obtained, a failure
to observe the covenants under our financing arrangements or to obtain necessary waivers may lead to the termination of our
credit facilities, acceleration of amounts due under such facilities and suspension of further access/ withdrawals, either in whole
or in part, for the use of the facility. If the obligations under any of our financing documents are accelerated, we may have to
dedicate a portion of our cash flow from operations to make payments under such financing documents, thereby reducing the
availability of cash for our long term working capital requirements and other general corporate purposes. In addition, during
any period in which we are in default, we may be unable to raise, or face difficulties raising, further financing.

We have working capital requirements and may require additional financing to meet those requirements, which could have
an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, cash flows and future prospects.

Our Company requires working capital to finance our direct costs and indirect costs before payment is received from customers.
As of September 30, 2023, our borrowings in respect of our working capital facilities was X 6,904.41 lakhs. In addition, set out
below are the certain details pertaining to our working capital requirements, including our, current ratio, and net working capital
for the six-months period ended September 30, 2023 and Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021:
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(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated )

Particulars As at and for the six- Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022 Fiscal 2021
months ended
September 30, 2023
Current ratio® 1.76 1.51 0.99 1.07
Net working capital® 24,641.59 18,075.91 (327.50) 2,402.87
Total Borrowings® 35,666.12 31,400.35 4,881.11 5,144.19
Current assets 57,083.15 53,804.20 43,240.88 36,417.91
Current liabilities 32,441.56 35,728.29 43,568.38 34,015.04
Total liabilities 66,112.24 56,052.18 45,779.13 43,884.92
Finance costs 3,175.00 3,589.98 1,575.41 2,250.40

Notes:(1) Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities. For a detailed calculation of current ratio, see “ Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Reconciliation of current assets to current ratio ” on page 296.

(2) Net working capital = (current assets —current liabilities). For a detailed calculation of net working capital, see “ Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Reconciliation of current assets to net working capital ” on page 296.

(3) Total Borrowings include current and non-current borrowings.

The actual amount and timing of our future working capital requirements may differ from estimates as a result of, among other
factors, unforeseen delays or cost overruns, unanticipated expenses, regulatory changes, larger inventory and receivables
holding, economic conditions, engineering design changes, weather related delays, technological changes and additional market
developments and new opportunities in the industries in which we operate. Our sources of additional financing, required to
meet our working capital requirements and capital expenditure pans, may include the incurrence of debt or the issue of equity
or debt securities or a combination of both. If we decide to raise additional funds through the incurrence of debt, our interest
and debt repayment obligations will increase, and could have a significant effect on our profitability and cash flows and we
may be subject to additional covenants, which could limit our ability to access cash flows from operations. Any issuance of
equity, on the other hand, could result in a dilution of your shareholding. Accordingly, continued increases in our working
capital requirements may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, cash flows and
future prospects.

42.Our funding requirements and proposed deployment of the proceeds from this Issue are based on management estimates
and have not been independently appraised.

We intend to use the Net Proceeds for the purposes described in “Use of Proceeds” on page 66. As on the date of this
Preliminary Placement Document, our funding requirements are based on management estimates and have not been appraised
by any bank or financial institution. These are based on current conditions and are subject to changes in external circumstances
or costs, or in other financial condition, business or strategy, as discussed further below. Our management, in accordance
with the policies established by our Board of Directors from time to time, will have flexibility in deploying the Net Proceeds
of the Issue. Based on the competitive nature of our industry, we may have to revise our business plan and/ or management
estimates from time to time and consequently our funding requirements may also change. We may have to revise our funding
requirement on account of various factors, such as financial and market conditions, delay in procuring and operationalizing
assets or necessary licenses and approvals, competition, price fluctuations, interest rate fluctuations and other external factors,
which may not be within the control of our management. This may also entail rescheduling of the proposed deployment of
the Net Proceeds at the discretion of our management, subject to compliance with applicable laws. Further, in the event, the
Net Proceeds are not utilized (in full or in part) for the objects of the Issue during the period stated above due to any reason,
including (i) the timing of completion of the Issue; (ii) market conditions outside the control of our Company; and (iii) any
other economic, business and commercial considerations, the remaining Net Proceeds shall be utilized in subsequent periods
in such manner as may be determined by our Company, in accordance with applicable laws. Our management estimates may
differ from the value that would have been determined by third party appraisals, which may require us to reschedule or
reallocate our expenditure, subject to applicable laws, and may have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows. Accordingly, investors in the Equity Shares will be relying on the judgment of our
management regarding the application of the Net Proceeds.

Further, CRISIL has been appointed as the monitoring agency for monitoring the utilization of Proceeds in accordance with
the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the monitoring agency will submit its report to us on a quarterly basis in accordance with
the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Further, the application of the Net Proceeds in our business may not lead to an increase in the value of your investment.
Various risks and uncertainties, including those set forth in this section “Risk Factors”, may limit or delay our efforts to use
the Net Proceeds to achieve profitable growth in our business.

43. Any failure to protect or enforce our rights to own or use trademarks and brand name and identity could have an adverse
effect on our business and competitive position.

We have no registered trademarks, including the trademark for our trade name or the corporate logo appearing on the cover
page of this Preliminary Placement Document. If we are unable to register our trademark for various reasons including our
inability to remove objections to any trademark application, or if any of our unregistered trademark are registered in favour of
or used by a third party in India or abroad, we may not be able to claim registered ownership of such trademark and
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consequently, we may not be able to seek remedies for infringement of those trademarks by third parties other than relief against
passing off by other entities, causing damage to our business prospects, reputation and goodwill in India and abroad. Apart
from this, any failure to register or renew registration of our registered trademark may affect our right to use such trademark in
future. Further, our efforts to protect our intellectual property in India and abroad may not be adequate and any third party claim
on any of our unprotected intellectual property may lead to erosion of our business value and our reputation, which could
adversely affect our operations. We may not be able to detect any unauthorized use or take appropriate and timely steps to
enforce or protect our trademarks in India and abroad.

Further, if we do not maintain our brand name and identity, we may not be able to maintain our competitive edge in India and
abroad. If we are unable to compete successfully, we could lose our customers, which would negatively affect our financial
performance and profitability. Moreover, our ability to protect, enforce or utilize our brand name is subject to risks, including
general litigation risks. Furthermore, we cannot assure you that such brand name will not be adversely affected in the future by
actions that are beyond our control, including customer complaints or adverse publicity from any other source in India and
abroad. Any damage to our brand name, if not immediately and sufficiently remedied, could have an adverse effect on our
business and competitive position in India and abroad.

44. Our Registered and Corporate Office and certain properties from which we operate are not owned by us and we have only
leasehold rights. If we are unable to renew our current leases or if we renew them on terms which are detrimental to us, we
may suffer a disruption in our operations or increased relocating costs, or both, which could adversely affect our business,
results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our Registered and Corporate Office is located in Bengaluru, Karnataka, India on a leased premises. Further, some of our global
engineering centres are also on leased premises. For further information, see “Our Business - Properties” on page 361.

There is no guarantee that these leases/ licenses will be renewed or extended once their terms are complete. If we are unable to
renew or extend our current leases/ licenses, or if we renew or extend them on terms which are detrimental to us, we may suffer
a disruption in our operations or increased relocating costs, or both, which could adversely affect our business, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition.

45.We may be unable to maintain or renew our statutory and regulatory permits, licences and approvals required to operate
our business.

We require certain statutory and regulatory permits and approvals to operate our business. We may not, at all points of time,
have all approvals required for our business. In the event that we are unable to comply with any or all of these terms and
conditions or seek waivers or extensions of time for complying with these terms and conditions, it is possible that the license
providers may revoke this licence or may place stringent restrictions on our operations. This may result in the interruption of
all or some of our operations. If we fail to obtain, renew or maintain the required permits, licences or approvals, including those
set out above, we could be subjected to penalties by the relevant regulatory authorities, which may result in the interruption of
our operations or delay or prevent our expansion plans and may have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

46. We have in the past entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future, which may potentially
involve conflicts of interest.

We have entered into various transactions with related parties. For the six month period ended September 30, 2023 and in the
Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021, the arithmetic aggregate absolute total of such related party transactions was X 1,143.60 lakhs,
18,682.78 lakhs, X 4,653.61 lakhs and % 1,198.95 lakhs, respectively, amounting to 2.43%, 22.58%, 7.51% and 2.23% of our
total income in the corresponding period/ years. For details please see “Related Party Transactions” on page 34.

While we believe that all such transactions have been conducted on an arm’s length basis and contain commercially reasonable
terms, we cannot assure you that we could not have achieved more favourable terms had such transactions been entered into
with unrelated parties. It is likely that we may enter into related party transactions in the future. While all related party
transactions that we enter into are subject to board or shareholder approval, as necessary under the Companies Act, 2013 and
the SEBI Listing Regulations, we cannot assure you that such future transactions, individually or in the aggregate, will not have
an adverse effect on our financial condition, cash flows and results of operations or that we could not have achieved more
favourable terms if such transactions had not been entered into with related parties. Accordingly, any future transactions with
our related parties could potentially involve conflicts of interest which may be detrimental to our Company. We cannot assure
you that such transactions, individually or in the aggregate, will always be in the best interests of our minority shareholders and
will not have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

47.We have contingent liabilities as per Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as on September
30, 2023. The realization of our contingent liabilities may adversely impact our profitability and may have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial condition

The following are the tax contingencies as per Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets on a
consolidated basis in our balance sheet, as at September 30, 2023:
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48.

49,

50.

(All amounts in  lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Sr. Particulars As at September 30, 2023
No.
Tax contingencies
1 Indirect tax matters for demands pending before various 1,098.76
appellate authorities
2. Direct tax matters under dispute/ pending before Income Tax 4,364.89
authorities

Our contingent liabilities may become actual liabilities and if a significant portion of these liabilities materialize, it could have
an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, cash flows and future prospects. Furthermore, there
can be no assurance that we will not incur similar or increased levels of contingent liabilities in the current Fiscal or in the
future. If any of these actually occur in the future, they may adversely impact our profitability and may have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and our results of operations.

Our failure to comply with anti-money laundering, anti-terrorist financing rules and regulations thereunder and applicable
Indian securities laws and related circulars and guidelines issued by various regulatory and government authorities could
result in criminal and regulatory fines and severe reputational damage.

We are required to comply with applicable anti-money laundering and anti-terrorist financing rules and regulations thereunder
(“AML Laws”) and the applicable Indian securities laws.

Although we seek to adhere to all requirements under applicable law, our business and reputation could suffer if we fail to fully
comply with applicable AML Laws and the applicable Indian securities laws. The relevant government agencies and regulatory
authorities, including the Stock Exchanges, may, from time to time, may seek to scrutinize our compliance with applicable laws
and may impose fines and other penalties against us or our Promoter, which could expose us or our Promoter to significant
monetary liabilities, regulatory challenges and adversely affect our business and reputation.

Penalties, if any, imposed by regulators on us or our Promoter may also generate adverse publicity for us and our business.
Such adverse publicity or any future scrutiny or investigation could result in damage to our reputation and involve significant
time and attention of our management and may materially adversely affect our business and financial results.

Industry information included in this Preliminary Placement Document has been derived from an industry report
exclusively commissioned by us for such purpose. There can be no assurance that such third-party statistical, financial and
other industry information is complete, reliable or accurate.

We have availed the services of an independent third-party research agency, Lattice Technologies Private Limited, to prepare
an industry report titled “Defense and ER&D Industry Report” dated January 2, 2024, for purposes of inclusion of such
information in this Preliminary Placement Document. This report is not exhaustive and is subject to various limitations and
based upon certain assumptions that are subjective in nature. Although we believe that the data may be considered to be reliable,
the accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed, and dependability cannot be assured. Due to
possibly flawed or ineffective collection methods or discrepancies between published information and market practice and other
problems, the statistics herein may be inaccurate or may not be comparable to statistics produced for other economies and
should not be unduly relied upon. Industry sources and publications are also prepared based on information as at specific dates
and may no longer be current or reflect current trends. Further, there is no assurance that they are stated or compiled on the
same basis or with the same degree of accuracy as may be the case elsewhere. Statements from third parties that involve
estimates are subject to change, and actual amounts may differ materially from those included in this Preliminary Placement
Document. You should consult your own advisors and undertake an independent assessment of information in this Preliminary
Placement Document based on, or derived from, the Lattice Report. You are advised not to place undue reliance on the Lattice
Report or extracts thereof as included in this Preliminary Placement Document, when making your investment decision.

We are subject to transfer pricing regulations in respect of transactions with our foreign Subsidiaries. If the income tax
authorities review any of our tax returns and determine that the transfer price applied was not appropriate, we may incur
increased tax liabilities, including accrued interest and penalties.

Indian transfer-pricing regulations require that any international transaction involving associated enterprises be at an arm’s
length price. Transactions among us and our Subsidiaries may be considered such transactions. Accordingly, we determine the
pricing among our foreign entities on the basis of detailed functional and economic analysis involving benchmarking against
transactions among entities that are not under common control and accordingly we have determined that all such transactions
are as per arms length as per provisions of Income Tax Act.

If the income tax authorities review any of our tax returns and determine that the transfer price applied was not appropriate, we
may incur increased tax liabilities, including accrued interest and penalties. The amount of taxes we pay in different jurisdictions
may depend on the application of the tax laws of the various jurisdictions, to our international business activities, changes in
tax rates, new or revised tax laws or interpretations of existing tax laws and policies, and our ability to operate our business in
a manner consistent with our corporate structure and intercompany arrangements. The taxing authorities of the jurisdictions in
which we operate may challenge our methodologies for pricing intercompany transactions pursuant to our intercompany
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arrangements or disagree with our determinations as to the income and expenses attributable to specific jurisdictions. If such a
challenge or disagreement were to occur, and our position was not sustained, we could be required to pay additional taxes,
interest and penalties, which could result in one-time tax charges, higher effective tax rates, reduced cash flows and lower
overall profitability of our operations.

Certain non-GAAP financial measures and certain other statistical information relating to our operations and financial
performance like EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin, PAT Margin, Return on Equity have been
included in this Preliminary Placement Document. These non-GAAP financial measures are not measures of operating
performance or liquidity defined by Ind AS and may not be comparable.

Certain non-GAAP financial measures and certain other statistical information relating to our operations and financial
performance like EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin, PAT Margin, Return on Equity, current ratio, interest coverage ratio,
net working capital have been included in this Preliminary Placement Document. We compute and disclose such non-GAAP
financial measures and such other statistical information relating to our operations and financial performance as we consider
such information to be useful measures of our business and financial performance and because such measures are frequently
used by security analysts, investors and others to evaluate the operational performance of companies in our industry, many of
which provide such non-GAAP.

These non-GAAP measures are supplemental measure of our performance and liquidity that is not required by, or presented in
accordance with, Ind AS, Indian GAAP, IFRS or US GAAP. Further, these non-GAAP Measures are not a measurement of our
financial performance or liquidity under Ind AS, Indian GAAP, IFRS or US GAAP and should not be considered in isolation
or construed as an alternative to cash flows, profit/ (loss) for the years/ period or any other measure of financial performance
or as an indicator of our operating performance, liquidity, profitability or cash flows generated by operating, investing or
financing activities derived in accordance with Ind AS, Indian GAAP, IFRS or US GAAP. In addition, these non-GAAP
measures are not standardised terms, hence a direct comparison of these non-GAAP Measures between companies may not be
possible. Other companies may calculate these non-GAAP Measures differently from us, limiting its usefulness as a
comparative measure.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS
Risks Related to India
Financial instability in other countries may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets.

The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries, particularly
emerging market countries in Asia. Although economic conditions are different in each country, investors’ reactions to
developments in one country can have adverse effects on the securities of companies in other countries, including India. A loss
of investor confidence in the financial systems of other emerging markets may cause increased volatility in Indian financial
markets and, indirectly, in the Indian economy in general. Any worldwide financial instability could also have a negative impact
on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may occur again and could harm our business, our future financial performance
and the prices of the Equity Shares.

We may be affected by competition laws, the adverse application or interpretation of which could adversely affect our
business.

The Competition Act, 2002, of India, as amended (“Competition Act”), regulates practices having an appreciable adverse
effect on competition in the relevant market in India (“AAEC”). Under the Competition Act, any formal or informal
arrangement, understanding or action in concert, which causes or is likely to cause an AAEC is considered void and may result
in the imposition of substantial penalties. Further, any agreement among competitors which directly or indirectly involves the
determination of purchase or sale prices, limits or controls production, supply, markets, technical development, investment or
the provision of services or shares the market or source of production or provision of services in any manner, including by way
of allocation of geographical area or number of customers in the relevant market or directly or indirectly results in bid-rigging
or collusive bidding is presumed to have an AAEC and is considered void. The Competition Act also prohibits abuse of a
dominant position by any enterprise.

On March 4, 2011, the Government notified and brought into force the combination regulation (merger control) provisions
under the Competition Act with effect from June 1, 2011. These provisions require acquisitions of shares, voting rights, assets
or control or mergers or amalgamations that cross the prescribed asset and turnover based thresholds to be mandatorily notified
to and pre-approved by the Competition Commission of India (the “CCI”). Additionally, on May 11, 2011, the CCI issued
Competition Commission of India (Procedure for Transaction of Business Relating to Combinations) Regulations, 2011, as
amended, which sets out the mechanism for implementation of the merger control regime in India.

The Competition Act aims to, among others, prohibit all agreements and transactions which may have an AAEC in India.
Consequently, all agreements entered into by us could be within the purview of the Competition Act. Further, the CCI has extra-
territorial powers and can investigate any agreements, abusive conduct or combination occurring outside India if such
agreement, conduct or combination has an AAEC in India. However, the impact of the provisions of the Competition Act on
the agreements entered into by us cannot be predicted with certainty at this stage. However, since we pursue an acquisition
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driven growth strategy, we may be affected, directly or indirectly, by the application or interpretation of any provision of the
Competition Act, or any enforcement proceedings initiated by the CClI, or any adverse publicity that may be generated due to
scrutiny or prosecution by the CCI or if any prohibition or substantial penalties are levied under the Competition Act, it would
adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and prospects.

The occurrence of natural or man-made disasters could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition. Hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence could adversely affect the financial markets
and our business.

The occurrence of natural disasters, including cyclones, storms, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, tornadoes, fires, explosions,
pandemic disease and man-made disasters, including acts of terrorism and military actions, could adversely affect our results
of operations, cash flows or financial condition. Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may adversely affect the
Indian securities markets. In addition, any deterioration in international relations, especially between India and its neighbouring
countries, may result in investor concern regarding regional stability which could adversely affect the price of the Equity Shares.
For instance, the current Russia - Ukraine and Israel-Palestine conflict if escalated and prolonged may cause disruptions in our
operating geographies of Europe and North America. In addition, India has witnessed local civil disturbances in recent years
and it is possible that future civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic or political events in India could have an
adverse effect on our business. Such incidents could also create a greater perception that investment in Indian companies
involves a higher degree of risk and could have an adverse effect on our business and the market price of the Equity Shares.

We are subject to regulatory, economic, social and political uncertainties and other factors beyond our control.

We are incorporated in India and our Equity Shares are listed on BSE and NSE. A significant share of our revenue comes from
our operations in India. Consequently, our business, operations, financial performance and the market price of our Equity Shares
is affected by interest rates, government policies, taxation, social and ethnic instability and other political and economic
developments affecting India.

Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of operations may include:

¢ any exchange rate fluctuations, the imposition of currency controls and restrictions on the right to convert or repatriate
currency or export assets;

e any scarcity of credit or other financing in India, resulting in an adverse effect on economic conditions in India and
scarcity of financing for our expansions;

e prevailing income conditions among Indian customers and Indian corporations;

e epidemic or any other public health emergencies in India or in countries in the region or globally, including in India’s
various neighbouring countries;

e macroeconomic factors and central bank regulation, including in relation to interest rates movements which may in
turn adversely impact our access to capital and increase our borrowing costs;

o volatility in, and actual or perceived trends in trading activity on, India’s principal stock exchanges;

o decline in India’s foreign exchange reserves which may affect liquidity in the Indian economy;

e downgrading of India’s sovereign debt rating by rating agencies; and

o difficulty in developing any necessary partnerships with local businesses on commercially acceptable terms and/or a
timely basis

Any slowdown or perceived slowdown in the Indian economy, or in specific sectors of the Indian economy or certain regions
in India, could adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition and the price of the Equity
Shares.

Significant differences exist between Ind AS, U.S. GAAP and IFRS, which may be material to investors’ assessments of our
financial condition. Accordingly, financial statements included in this Preliminary Placement Document might not provide
meaningful information to readers whose level of familiarity with Indian accounting practices is limited.

Our financial statements for the six-months period ended September 30, 2023 are prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standard 34, “Interim Financial Reporting” prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, have been prepared in
accordance with the Ind AS and Companies Act, 2013. We have not attempted to quantify the impact of US GAAP or IFRS on
the financial data included in this Preliminary Placement Document, nor do we provide a reconciliation of our financial
statements to those of US GAAP or IFRS. US GAAP and IFRS differ in significant respects from Ind AS. Accordingly, the
degree to which the financial statements included in this Preliminary Placement Document will provide meaningful information
is entirely dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting practices. In addition, some of our competitors
may not present their financial statements in accordance with Ind AS and their financial statements may not be directly
comparable to ours. Therefore, any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial disclosures
presented in this Preliminary Placement Document should accordingly be limited.
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If inflation were to rise in India, we might not be able to increase the prices of our services at a proportional rate in order
to pass costs on to our customers and our profits might decline.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future. India has experienced
high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase in interest rates and increased costs to our
business, including increased costs of salaries, and other expenses relevant to our business.

High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or control our costs. Any increase
in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to pass on to our customers, whether entirely or in
part, and the same may adversely affect our business and financial condition. In particular, we might not be able to reduce our
costs or increase our rates to pass the increase in costs on to our customers. In such case, our business, results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Further, the Government of India has previously initiated economic measures to combat high inflation rates, and it is unclear
whether these measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance that Indian inflation levels will not worsen in the
future.

Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian laws which limit our ability to attract foreign
investors, which may adversely impact the market price of our Equity Shares.

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between non-residents and residents are
freely permitted (subject to certain restrictions) if they comply with the pricing guidelines and reporting requirements specified
by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to be transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or
reporting requirements or falls under any of the exceptions referred to above, then the prior approval of the RBI will be required
for the transfer of shares. Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the Indian Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in
India into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/tax clearance certificate
from the income tax authority. We cannot assure investors that any required approval from the RBI or any other Indian
government agency can be obtained on any particular terms, or at all.

A downgrade in ratings of India, may affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Our borrowing costs and our access to the debt capital markets depend significantly on the credit ratings of India. Any adverse
revisions to India’s credit ratings for domestic and international debt by international rating agencies may adversely impact our
ability to raise additional financing and the interest rates and other commercial terms at which such financing is available,
including raising any overseas additional financing. A downgrading of India’s credit ratings may occur, for example, upon a
change of government tax or fiscal policy, which are outside our control. This could have an adverse effect on our ability to
fund our growth on favourable terms or at all, and consequently adversely affect our business and financial performance and
the price of our Equity Shares.

Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of tax laws, may adversely affect
our business, prospects, cash flows and results of operations.

Our business and financial performance could be materially adversely affected by changes in the laws, rules, regulations or
directions applicable to us and our general and microfinance businesses, or the interpretations of such existing laws, rules and
regulations, or the promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations.

The Government of India has announced the union budget for the Fiscal 2024, pursuant to which the Finance Bill, 2023
(“Finance Bill”) has introduced various amendments. The Finance Bill has received assent from the President of India on
March 31, 2023, and has been enacted as the Finance Act, 2023 (“Finance Act”). We have not fully determined the impact of
these recent and proposed laws and regulations on our business. We cannot predict whether any amendments made pursuant to
the Finance Act would have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Unfavourable
changes in or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of new, laws, rules and regulations including foreign investment
and stamp duty laws governing our business and operations could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws
and may require us to apply for additional approvals.

The Government has recently introduced (a) the Code on Wages, 2019 (“Wages Code”); (b) the Code on Social Security, 2020
(“Social Security Code™); (c) the Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2020; and (d) the Industrial
Relations Code, 2020, which consolidate, subsume and replace numerous existing central labour legislations. Except certain
portions of the Wages Code, which have come into force pursuant to notification by Ministry of Labour and Employment, the
rules for implementation under such codes are yet to be notified. Accordingly, we are yet to determine the impact of all or some
such laws on our business and operations which may restrict our ability to grow our business in the future. For example, the
Social Security Code aims to provide uniformity in providing social security benefits to employees which were previously
segregated under different acts and had different applicability and coverage. The Social Security Code has introduced the
concept of workers outside traditional employer-employee work-arrangements (including online and digital platforms), such as
‘gig workers’ and ‘platform workers’ and provides for the mandatory registration of such workers in order to enable these
workers to avail benefits of, among others, life and disability cover, health and maternity benefits and old age protection, under
schemes framed under the Social Security Code from time to time. The Social Security Code also provides that such schemes
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may, inter alia, be partly funded by contributions from online platforms. Further, the Wages Code limits the amounts that may
be excluded from being accounted toward employment benefits (such as gratuity and maternity benefits) to a maximum of 50%
of the wages payable to employees. The implementation of such laws have the ability to increase our employee and labour
costs, thereby adversely impacting our results of operations, cash flows, business and financial performance.

Any failure to comply may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects. Uncertainty in the applicability,
interpretation or implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law, regulation or policy, including by reason
of an absence, or a limited body, of administrative or judicial precedent may be time consuming as well as costly for us to
resolve and may impact the viability of our current businesses or restrict our ability to grow our businesses in the future.

A third party could be prevented from acquiring control of us post the Issue, because of anti-takeover provisions under
Indian law.

As a listed Indian entity, there are provisions in Indian law that may delay, deter or prevent a future takeover or change in
control of our Company. Under the Takeover Regulations, an acquirer has been defined as any person who, directly or
indirectly, acquires or agrees to acquire shares or voting rights or control over a company, whether individually or acting in
concert with others. Although these provisions have been formulated to ensure that interests of investors/shareholders are
protected, these provisions may also discourage a third party from attempting to take control of our Company subsequent to
completion of the Issue. Consequently, even if a potential takeover of our Company would result in the purchase of the Equity
Shares at a premium to their market price or would otherwise be beneficial to our Shareholders, such a takeover may not be
attempted or consummated because of Takeover Regulations.

Risks Related to the Equity Shares
After this Issue, the price of the Equity Shares may be volatile.

The Issue Price, which may include a discount of not more than 5% of the Floor Price in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, will be determined by our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers, based on the Bids
received in compliance with Chapter VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, and it may not necessarily be indicative of the market
price of the Equity Shares after this Issue is complete. The price of the Equity Shares on NSE and BSE may fluctuate after this
Issue as a result of several factors, including:

o volatility in the Indian and the global securities market or prospects for our business and the sectors in which we compete;
o the valuation of publicly traded companies that are engaged in business activities similar to us;

o volatility in the Rupee’s value relative to the U.S. dollar, the Euro and other foreign currencies;

e our Company’s profitability and performance;

e perceptions about our Company’s future performance or the performance of Indian banks in general;

o the performance of our Company’s competitors and the perception in the market about investments in the banking sector;
e adverse media reports about our Company or the Indian banking sector;

e acomparatively less active or illiquid market for the Equity Shares;

e changes in the estimates of our Company’s performance or recommendations by financial analysts;

o significant developments in India’s economic liberalization and deregulation policies;

e inclusion or exclusion of our Company in indices;

o significant developments in India’s fiscal regulations;

e any other political or economic factors; and

e COVID-19 related measures undertaken by the Government of India

We cannot assure you that you will be able to resell your Equity Shares at or above the Issue Price. There can be no assurance
that an active trading market for the Equity Shares will be sustained after this Issue, or that the price at which the Equity Shares
have historically traded will correspond to the price at which the Equity Shares will trade in the market subsequent to this Issue.

Holders of Equity Shares may be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under Indian law and thereby may
suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, a company having share capital and incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity shares pre-
emptive rights to subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of equity shares to maintain their existing ownership percentages
before the issuance of any new equity shares, unless the pre-emptive rights have been waived by adoption of a special resolution.
However, if the laws of the jurisdiction in which the investors are located in, do not permit the investors to exercise their pre-
emptive rights, without our filing an offering document or registration statement with the applicable authority in such
jurisdiction, the investors will be unable to exercise their pre-emptive rights unless we make such a filing. If we elect not to file
a registration statement, the new securities may be issued to a custodian, who may sell the securities for the investor’s benefit.
The value that the custodian receives on the sale of such securities and the related transaction costs cannot be predicted. In
addition, to the extent that the investors are unable to exercise pre-emptive rights granted in respect of the Equity Shares held
by them, their proportional interest in us would be reduced.
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An investor’s ability to acquire and sell Equity Shares offered in the Issue is restricted by the distribution, solicitation and
transfer restrictions set forth in this Preliminary Placement Document.

No actions have been taken to permit a public offering of the Equity Shares offered in the Issue in any jurisdiction. As such, an
investor’s ability to acquire Equity Shares offered in the Issue is restricted by the distribution and solicitation restrictions set
forth in this Preliminary Placement Document. For further information, see “Selling Restrictions” on page 398. Furthermore,
the Equity Shares offered in the Issue are subject to restrictions on transferability and resale. For further information, see
“Purchaser Representations and Transfer Restrictions” on page 405. You are required to inform yourself about and observe
these restrictions. Our representatives, our agents and us will not be obligated to recognize any acquisition, transfer or resale of
the Equity Shares offered in the Issue made other than in compliance with applicable law.

Investors to the Issue are not allowed to withdraw or revise their Bids downwards after the Bid /Issue Closing Date.

In terms of Regulation 179 (1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, investors in the Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Bids or
revise their Bids downwards after the Issue Closing Date. The Allotment of Equity Shares in this Issue and the credit of such
Equity Shares to the investors” demat account with the depository participant could take approximately seven (7) days and up
to ten (10) days from the Issue Closing Date. However, there is no assurance that material adverse changes in the international
or national monetary, financial, political or economic conditions or other events in the nature of force majeure, material adverse
changes in the business, results of operation or financial condition of our Company, or other events affecting the investor’s
decision to invest in the Equity Shares, would not arise between the Issue Closing Date and the date of Allotment of Equity
Shares in the Issue. Occurrence of any such events after the Issue Closing Date could also adversely impact the market price of
the Equity Shares. The investors shall not have the right to withdraw their Bids or revise their Bids downwards in the event of
any such occurrence. We may complete the Allotment of the Equity Shares even if such events may limit the investor’s ability
to sell the Equity Shares after the Issue or cause the trading price of the Equity Shares to decline.

Investors will be subject to market risks until the Equity Shares credited to the investor’s demat account are listed and
permitted to trade. There is no guarantee that the Equity Shares will be listed, or continue to be listed, on the Indian stock
exchanges in a timely manner, or at all, and prospective investors will not be able to immediately sell the Equity Shares held
by them on the Stock Exchange.

Investors can start trading the Equity Shares allotted to them only after they have been credited to an investor’s demat account,
are listed and permitted to trade. In accordance with Indian law and practice, final approval for listing and trading of our Equity
Shares will not be granted until after the Equity Shares have been issued and allotted. Such approval will require the submission
of all other relevant documents authorizing the issuance of the Equity Shares. Accordingly, there could be a failure or delay in
listing the Equity Shares on NSE and BSE, which would adversely affect your ability to sell the Equity Shares. Since the Equity
Shares are currently traded on the BSE and the NSE, investors will be subject to market risk from the date they pay for the
Equity Shares to the date when trading approval is granted for the same. Further, there can be no assurance that the Equity
Shares allocated to an investor will be credited to the investor’s demat account in a timely manner or that trading in the Equity
Shares will commence in a timely manner.

An investor will not be able to sell any of the Equity Shares subscribed in the Issue other than on a recognized Indian stock
exchange for a period of 12 months from the date of allotment of such Equity Shares.

Pursuant to Regulation 178 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, for a period of 12 months from the date of the allotment of the
Equity Shares in the Issue, Eligible QIBs subscribing to the Equity Shares may only sell their Equity Shares on the NSE or the
BSE and may not enter into any off-market trading in respect of these Equity Shares. Our Company cannot be certain that these
restrictions will not have an impact on the price of the Equity Shares. Further, allotments made to certain categories of Eligible
QIBs in the Issue are subject to the rules and regulations that are applicable to them, including in relation to lock - in
requirements. This may affect the liquidity of the Equity Shares purchased by such investors and it is uncertain whether these
restrictions will adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares purchased by investors.

An investment in the Equity Shares is subject to general risks related to investments in Indian Companies.

Our Company is incorporated in India and almost all of our assets and employees are located in India. Consequently, our
business, results of operations, financial condition and the market price of the Equity Shares will be affected by changes in
interest rates in India, policies of the Government of India, including taxation policies along with policies relating to industry,
political, social and economic developments affecting India.

Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.

Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares in an Indian
company is generally taxable in India. A securities transaction tax (“STT”) is levied on and collected by an Indian stock
exchange on which equity shares are sold. Any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares held for more than 12 months
may be subject to long-term capital gains tax in India at the specified rates depending on certain factors, such as STT paid, the
quantum of gains and any available treaty exemptions. Accordingly, you may be subject to payment of long-term capital gains
tax in India, in addition to payment of STT, on the sale of any Equity Shares held for more than 12 months. STT will be levied
on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on which the Equity Shares are sold. Further, any gain realized on the sale of
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our Equity Shares held for a period of 12 months or less will be subject to short-term capital gains tax in India. While non-
residents may claim tax treaty benefits in relation to such capital gains income, generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India’s
right to impose tax on capital gains arising from the sale of shares of an Indian company.

Investors are advised to consult their own tax advisors and to carefully consider the potential tax consequences of owning
Equity Shares.

Rights of shareholders under Indian laws may be more limited than under the laws of other jurisdictions.

Indian legal principles related to corporate procedures, directors’ fiduciary duties and liabilities, and shareholders’ rights may
differ from those that would apply to a company in another jurisdiction. Shareholders’ rights including in relation to class
actions, under Indian law may not be as extensive as shareholders’ rights under the laws of other countries or jurisdictions.
Investors may have more difficulty in asserting their rights as shareholder in an Indian company than as shareholder of a
corporation in another jurisdiction.

Fluctuation in the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies may have an adverse effect on the value
of our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

On listing, our Equity Shares will be quoted in Indian Rupees on the Stock Exchanges. Any dividends in respect of our Equity
Shares will also be paid in Indian Rupees and subsequently converted into the relevant foreign currency for repatriation, if
required. Any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during the time that it takes to undertake such conversion may
reduce the net dividend to foreign investors. In addition, any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during a delay in
repatriating outside India the proceeds from a sale of Equity Shares, for example, because of a delay in regulatory approvals
that may be required for the sale of Equity Shares may reduce the proceeds received by equity shareholders. For example, the
exchange rate between the Rupee and the U.S. dollar has fluctuated substantially in recent years and may continue to fluctuate
substantially in the future, which may have an adverse effect on the trading price of our Equity Shares and returns on our Equity
Shares, independent of our operating results.

Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend on our earnings, financial condition, working capital requirements,
capital expenditures and restrictive covenants of our financing arrangements.

Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend on our earnings, financial condition, cash flow, working capital
requirements, capital expenditure and restrictive covenants of our financing arrangements. Any future determination as to the
declaration and payment of dividends will be at the discretion of our Board in accordance with our dividend distribution policy
and will depend on factors that our Board deems relevant, including among others, our future earnings, financial condition,
cash requirements, business prospects and any other financing arrangements. We did not pay any dividends for Fiscal 2023,
Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2021 and we did not pay any interim dividend for the six-months period ended September 30, 2023.

Any future issuance of Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other equity linked securities by us may dilute your
shareholding and any sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or members of our Promoter Group may adversely affect the
trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares by us, may dilute your
shareholding in our Company, adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares and our ability to raise capital through an
issue of our securities. In addition, any perception by investors that such issuances or sales might occur could also affect the
trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that we will not issue additional Equity Shares. The disposal of Equity
Shares by our Promoter and Promoter Group, or the perception that such sales may occur may significantly affect the trading
price of the Equity Shares. Except as disclosed in “Capital Structure” on page 71, we cannot assure you that our Promoter or
Promoter Group will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares in the future.
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MARKET PRICE INFORMATION

As on the date of this Preliminary Placement Document, 38,508,081 Equity Shares are issued of which 38,456,981 Equity Shares are subscribed and fully paid up. The Equity Shares have
been listed and are available for trading on BSE and NSE.

On January 9, 2024 the closing price of the Equity Shares on BSE and NSE was ¥746.30 and ¥748.30 per Equity Share. Since the Equity Shares are available for trading on BSE and NSE,
the market price and other information for each of BSE and NSE has been given separately.

A The following tables set out the reported high, low and average of the closing prices of our Equity Shares on the NSE and the BSE and number of Equity Shares traded on the days
on which such high and low prices were recorded and the total trading turnover for the Financial Years 2023, 2022 and 2021:
NSE
Fiscal High (%) Date of High No. of Equity | Total Turnover of | Low (X) | Date of Low No. of Total Average Total no. of Total
Shares traded Equity Shares Equity Turnover of | price for | Equity Shares | Turnover of
on date of traded on date of Shares Equity Shares | the year traded in the | Equity Shares
high high (% in lakhs) traded on | traded on date ®) fiscal traded in the
date of low | of low (R in fiscal (R in
lakhs) lakhs)
Fiscal 2023 373.90 | November 15, 2022 587,520 2,242.39 113.15 | June 22, 2022 32,406 37.55 214.22 36,607,568 83,453.44
Fiscal 2022 127.70 | January 20, 2022 107,313 137.22 42.25 | April 5, 2021 47,328 19.94 86.24 46,650,922 39,657.85
Fiscal 2021 70.30 | August 28, 2020 84,780 60.81 28.85 | April 3, 2020 35,132 10.05 48.67 17,806,159 9,292.54
(Source: www.nseindia.com)
1. High, low and average prices are based on the daily closing prices.
2. In the case of a year, average represents the average of the closing prices of all trading days of each year presented.
3. In case of two days with the same high or low price, the date with the higher turnover has been chosen.
BSE
Fiscal High (}) Date of High No. of Equity | Total Turnover of | Low (%) | Date of Low |No. of Equity Total Average Total no. of Total
Shares traded Equity Shares Shares Turnover of | price for | Equity Shares | Turnover of
on date of traded on date of traded on | Equity Shares | the year traded in the | Equity Shares
high high (% in lakhs) date of low |traded on date ®) fiscal traded in the
of low (R in fiscal (R in
lakhs) lakhs)
Fiscal 2023 373.10 | November 15, 2022 87,865 333.73 113.55|June 22, 2022 7,205 8.31 214.07 6,117,195 14,174.17
Fiscal 2022 127.45|January 20, 2022 41,696 52.98 42.35| April 6, 2021 7,571 3.21 86.23 9,034,575 7,919.76
Fiscal 2021 70.35] August 28, 2020 13,428 9.55 28.20| April 1, 2020 12,210 3.46 48.70 2,990,896 1,583.33
(Source: www.bseindia.com)
1. High, low and average prices are based on the daily closing prices.
2. In the case of a year, average represents the average of the closing prices of all trading days of each year presented.
3. In case of two days with the same high or low price, the date with the higher turnover has been chosen.
B. The following tables set out the reported high and low closing prices of our Equity Shares recorded on the NSE and the BSE and the number of Equity Shares traded on the days on

which such high and low prices were recorded and the turnover of Equity Shares traded in each of the last six months preceding this Preliminary Placement Document:
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NSE

Month High (%) Date of High | No. of Equity | Total Turnover Low (%) Date of Low No. of Total Average | Equity Shares traded in the
Shares traded| of Equity Equity | Turnover of | price for month
on date of | Shares traded Shares Equity the month No. Turnover
high on date of high traded on |[Shares traded ®) ®in
(R in lakhs) date of low |on date of low lakhs)
(R in lakhs)
December, 2023 675.45|December 26, 1,88,441 1,274.43 535.75|December 5, 68,713 372.13 609.60 29,70,959| 18,555.02
2023 2023
November, 2023 586.10|November 22, 157,954 922.94 504.70{November 1, 8,915 45.26 546.48 1,220,782 6,884.77
2023 2023
October, 2023 576.15|October 9, 2023 118,585 651.30 496.10|October 23, 65,327 328.57 529.64 823,489| 4,418.30
2023
September, 2023 585.05(September 6, 2023 62,031 360.34 484.20|September 26, 20,448 100.49 533.62 820,664| 4,408.29
2023
August, 2023 579.70|August 16, 2023 29,464 170.44 469.50|August 2, 2023 29,269 138.10 533.20 1,089,538| 5,854.64
July, 2023 507.60{July 12, 2023 102,909 521.36 449.50|July 24, 2023 65,864 302.29 478.46 1,031,941 4,995.25
(Source: www.nseindia.com)
1. High, low and average prices are based on the daily closing prices.
2. In the case of a month, average represents the average of the closing prices of all trading days of each month presented.
3. In case of two days with the same high or low price, the date with the higher turnover has been chosen.
BSE
Month High (%) Date of High No. of Total Low () Date of Low No. of Total Average | Equity Shares traded in the
Equity Turnover of Equity Turnover of | price for month
Shares Equity Shares Shares Equity the No. Turnover (X
traded on | traded on date traded on Shares month in lakhs)
date of high | of high (R in date of low | traded on ®)
lakhs) date of low
(R in lakhs)
December, 2023 677.40 | December 26, 18,045 121.98 535.75 | December 5, 18,875 101.56 609.20 3,81,861 2,382.91
2023 2023
November, 2023 586.65 | November 22, 67,654 396.10 504.85 | November 1, 2,128 10.85 545.59 1,98,526 1,131.82
2023 2023
October, 2023 577.60 | October 9, 2023 43,320 244.30 494.70 | October 23, 3.859 19.31 529.69 1,52,518 830.42
2023
September, 2023 584.30 | September 6, 8,231 47.76 486.05 | September 26, 1,884 9.33 534.67 1,22,641 655.01
2023 2023
August, 2023 580.85 | August 16, 2023 19,090 110.81 470.05 | August 2, 2023 1,789 8.45 532.98 1,46,308 791.86
July, 2023 506.80 | July 12, 2023 3,930 19.90 451.55 | July 24, 2023 8,771 40.37 479.64 1,60,264 769.13

(Source: www.bseindia.com)
1. High, low and average prices are based on the daily closing prices.
2. In the case of a month, average represents the average of the closing prices of all trading days of each month presented.
3. Incase of two days with the same high or low price, the date with the higher turnover has been chosen.
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C.

The following table sets forth the market price on the Stock Exchanges on November 9, 2023, the first working day following the approval of our Board for the Issue:

BSE NSE
Open High Low Close Number of Turnover Open High Low Close Number of Turnover
®) ®) ®) ® Equity Shares| (X in lakhs) ® ® ® ® Equity Shares | (X in lakhs)
traded traded
527.05 544.35 514 518.05 1400 7.36 533.80 542.95 514.15 517.05 41,122 216.31

(Source: www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com)
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The gross proceeds of the Issue aggregates approximately up to X[ e] lakhs.

The net proceeds from the Issue, after deducting fees, commissions and expenses of the Issue (of approximately X [e] lakhs),
are approximately Z [®] lakhs (“Net Proceeds”).

Purpose of the Issue

Subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and as approved by the Board of Directors, we propose to utilise
the Net Proceeds for the following objects:

1. Repayment/ pre-payment, in full or in part, of certain outstanding borrowings availed by our Company; and
2. General corporate purposes.

(collectively, referred to hereinafter as the “Objects™).

Requirements of Fund

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be used in accordance with the details provided in the following table:

Sr. Use of proceeds Amount R in Tentative timelines for
No. lakhs) utilisation of Net
Proceeds

1. Repayment / pre-payment, in full or in part, of certain outstanding borrowings | Up to 22,000.00 | By December 31, 2024
availed by our Company
2. General corporate purposes® Upto[e] | By September 30, 2025
@ The amount to be utilised for general corporate purposes alone shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds.

Our main objects clause and objects incidental or ancillary to the main objects clause, as set out in our Memorandum of
Association, enable us to undertake our existing business activities for which the borrowings were availed by our Company,
and which are proposed to be repaid or prepaid from the Net Proceeds.

The fund requirements, the deployment of funds and the intended use of the Net Proceeds as described herein are based on our
internal management estimates, operating plans and the growth strategies of our Company and other commercial factors.
However, such fund requirements and deployment of funds have not been appraised by any bank, or financial institution. For
details, see “Risk Factors - Our funding requirements and proposed deployment of the proceeds from this Issue are based on
management estimates and have not been independently appraised.” on page 54. We currently propose to deploy the Net
Proceeds by September 30, 2025. We may have to revise our funding requirements and deployment on account of a variety of
factors such as our financial and market condition, business and strategy, competition and other external factors such as changes
in the business environment and interest or exchange rate fluctuations, which may not be within the control of our management
and obtaining necessary approvals/ consents, as applicable, in accordance with applicable law. This may entail rescheduling or
revising the planned expenditure and funding requirements, including the expenditure for a particular purpose at the discretion
of our management, subject to compliance with applicable laws.

In the event that the estimated utilization of the Net Proceeds and Issue related expenses in a scheduled fiscal year is not
completely met, due to the reasons stated above, the same shall be utilised in the next fiscal year or if required, the amount
scheduled for deployment in a specific Fiscal may be utilized in an earlier Fiscal, as may be determined by our Company, in
accordance with applicable laws. Subject to applicable laws, in the event of any increase in the actual utilization of funds
earmarked for the purposes set forth above, such additional funds for a particular activity will be met by way of means available
to us, including from internal accruals and any additional equity.

Details of Objects
1. Repayment/ pre-payment, in full or in part, of certain outstanding borrowings availed by our Company.

We avail fund-based and non-fund-based facilities in the ordinary course of business from various banks and financial
institutions. The borrowing arrangements entered into by us include, inter alia, term loans and working capital facilities and
non-convertible debentures. As of December 15, 2023, we had total outstanding borrowings of ¥33,835.20 lakhs, on a
standalone basis. We propose to utilise a portion of the Net Proceeds aggregating to 322,000.00 lakhs for repayment or
prepayment, in full or in part, of certain outstanding borrowings availed by our Company.

Our Company has obtained necessary consents, wherever required, from the lenders as per the requirements under the

borrowing arrangements. Further, pursuant to the terms of the borrowing arrangements, prepayment of certain indebtedness
may attract prepayment.
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charges as prescribed by the respective lender. Such prepayment charges, as applicable, will also be funded out of the Net Proceeds. The repayment/ prepayment, will help reduce our outstanding
indebtedness, assist us in maintaining a favourable debt - equity ratio. In addition, we believe that since our debt - equity ratio will improve, it will enable us to raise further resources at competitive
rates and additional funds/ capital in the future to fund potential business development opportunities and plans to grow and expand our business in the future. The details of the outstanding
borrowing availed by our Company, proposed for repayment or prepayment, in full or in part, from the Net Proceeds is set forth below:

Name of the lender

Nature of loan

Purpose of the loan

Sanctioned
amount
® in lakhs)

Amount
outstanding as at
December 15,
2023
® in lakhs)

Coupon rate

Tenor
and Repayment
schedule

Pre-payment penalty*

Whether the
loan has been
utilized for
the purpose
for which it
has been
availed

Investec Bank PLC &
Emerging India Credit
Opportunities

Fund 1

Debenture trustee:
Vistra ITCL (India)
Limited

Secured unlisted
redeemable non
convertible
debentures on
private placement

Towards refinancing
financial indebtedness
to Grand Anicut Fund
Capital
Financial Services and
Jupiter Capital Private

2, Tata

Limited

21,000.00

21,000.00

12.75%

48 months paid on a

monthly basis

(@)If debentures are
redeemed prior to expiry
of 9 months from the
deemed date of
allotment-  outstanding
debenture will include
the coupon rate payable
had the debenture been
redeemed at the expiry
of 9 months;

(b)If  debenture  are
redeemed after the
expiry of 9 months but
before the expiry of 15
months from the deemed
date of allotment and the
debenture being
redeemed exceeds 50%
of the total principal
amount, outstanding
debenture will include
the coupon rate payable
on the principal amount
of debentures had the
debenture been
redeemed at the expiry
of 15 months.

Yes

HDFC Bank Limited

Fund based working
capital facility

Working capital

3,000.00

1,892.59

Cash credit-
9.60%

Packing credit
- 6.88%

Yes
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RBL Bank Limited Fund based working | Working capital 2,500.00 2,467.71 Cash credit- Yes

capital facility 10.40%

Packing
credit-7.63%

*As certified by the JAA & Associates, Chartered Accountants vide their certificate dated January 10, 2024, the loan has been utilised for the purpose for which it has been availed by the Company.
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2. General corporate purposes.

Our Company proposes to deploy the balance Net Proceeds, aggregating up to X[ e] lakhs, towards general corporate purposes
as approved by our management from time to time, subject to such utilisation not exceeding 25% of the Gross Proceeds, in
compliance with applicable laws. The general corporate purposes for which our Company proposes to utilise Net Proceeds
include, without limitation, funding growth opportunities, meeting ongoing general corporate exigencies and contingencies,
expenses of our Company, and/or any other general purposes, as may be permissible under applicable laws, including provisions
of the Companies Act.

Interim use of Net Proceeds

Pending utilisation of the Net Proceeds our Company shall invest such proceeds in one or more scheduled commercial banks
included in the Second Schedule of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 or to temporarily invest the funds in creditworthy
instruments, including money market / mutual funds, as approved by the Board and/or a duly authorized committee of the
Board, from time to time, and in accordance with applicable laws. Provided that, in accordance with applicable laws, we
undertake to not utilize the proceeds from the Issue unless Allotment is made and the corresponding return of Allotment is filed
with the RoC and final listing and trading approvals are received from each of the Stock Exchanges.

Monitoring of utilisation of funds

Our Company has appointed CRISIL as the monitoring agency in accordance with Regulation 173A of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations for monitoring the utilisation of Proceeds as the size of our Issue exceeds 310,000 lakhs. The report of the
Monitoring Agency shall be placed before the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis, upon its receipt, until such time as the
Proceeds have been utilised in full. Such report, along with the comments (if any) of the Monitoring Agency shall be submitted
to the Stock Exchanges within 45 days from the end of each quarter or such other period as may be specified under applicable
law and uploaded on the website of our Company at www.axiscades.com.

Pursuant to Regulation 32(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, our Company shall, on a quarterly basis, disclose to the Audit
Committee the uses and applications of the Proceeds.

On an annual basis, our Company shall (i) prepare a statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in this
Preliminary Placement Document and place it before the Audit Committee and make other disclosures as may be required until
such time as the Net Proceeds remain unutilised; and (ii) disclose every year, the utilization of the Proceeds during that year in
its annual report. Such disclosure shall be made only until such time that all the Proceeds have been utilised in full.

Further, in accordance with Regulation 32(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, our Company shall furnish to the Stock
Exchanges on a quarterly basis, a statement indicating (i) deviations, if any, in the actual utilisation of the proceeds of the Issue
from the Objects as stated above; and (ii) details of category wise variations in the actual utilisation of the proceeds of the Issue
from the Objects as stated above or the Objects for which the Proceeds were raised, have been achieved. This information will
also be published on our website and our Company shall furnish an explanation for the deviations and category-wise variations
in the directors’ report in its annual report, after placing the same before the Audit Committee.

Other confirmations
As permissible under applicable laws, our Company’s management will have flexibility in deploying the Net Proceeds.

Neither our Promoter nor our Directors are making any contribution either as a part of the Issue or separately in furtherance of
the use of the Net Proceeds. Further, neither our Promoter nor our Directors shall receive any proceeds from the Issue, whether
directly or indirectly. Since the Issue is only made to Eligible QIBs, our Promoter, Directors or Senior Management are not
eligible to subscribe to the Issue. Further, since the Net Proceeds of the Issue are proposed to be utilised towards the purposes
set forth above, and not for implementing any specific project, the following disclosure requirements under Schedule V11 of the
SEBI ICDR Regulations are not applicable: (i) break-up of cost of the project, (ii) means of financing such project, and (iii)
proposed deployment status of the proceeds at each stage of the project.

There are no material existing or anticipated transactions in relation to the utilisation of the Net Proceeds entered into or to be

entered into by our Company with our Promoter, Promoter Group, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and/or Senior
Management.
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CAPITALISATION STATEMENT

The following table sets forth our capitalisation statement as at September 30, 2023, derived from the Unaudited Interim
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and as adjusted to give effect to the receipt of the gross proceeds of the Issue.
This table should be read in conjunction with the sections titled “Management ’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations” and “Financial Statements” on pages 292 and 76, respectively:

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As of September 30, 2023

As adjusted for the Offer”

Non-current borrowings 24,735.01 [e]
Current borrowings 10,931.11 [e]
Total Borrowings (A) 35,666.12 [e]
Equity share capital 1,924.38 [e]
Other equity 34,135.64 [e]
Non-controlling interest 599.97 [e]
Total Equity (B) 36,659.99 [e]
Total Capitalization (A+B) 72,326.11 [e]
Total Borrowings / Total equity (A/B) 0.97 [e]

*  To be updated upon finalisation of the Issue Price.

70



CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Equity Share capital of our Company as on the date of this Preliminary Placement Document is set forth below:

(in % lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Aggregate value at face value (except
for securities premium account)

A |AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

204,000,000 Equity Shares of face value %5 each 10,200.00

100,000 Preference Shares of face value 2100 each 100.00
B ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL BEFORE THE ISSUE

38,508,081 Equity Shares of face value 35 each 1,925.40
C |SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL SHARE CAPITAL BEFORE THE ISSUE®

38,456,981 Equity Shares of face value 35 each | 1,922.84"
D |PRESENT ISSUE IN TERMS OF THIS PRELIMINARY PLACEMENT DOCUMENT

Up to [e] Equity Shares of ¥5 each aggregating up to ¥[e] lakhs®@ | [o]
E ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL AFTER THE ISSUE

[#] Equity Shares of 5 each @ | [o]
F SECURITIES PREMIUM ACCOUNT

Before the Issue® 10,615.43

After the Issue@®@® [o]

~ On account of a technical error, the paid up capital on the portal of Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not been updated.

@
2
®3)
*)

®)

a)

Equity Share Capital History of our Company

The history of the Equity Share capital of our Company is set forth below:

The Issue has been authorised by our Board pursuant to a resolution dated November 8, 2023 and by our Shareholders on December 18, 2023 by way
of a postal ballot, the results of which were declared on December 19, 2023.
To be determined upon finalisation of the Issue Price.
As on the date of this Preliminary Placement Document.
The securities premium account after the Issue will be calculated on the basis of gross proceeds from the Issue. Adjustments do not include Issue related
expenses.
Pursuant to a resolution of Board dated July 31, 2002, a total of 51,100 Equity Shares allotted to certain shareholders of the Company were forfeited on
which our Company has received ¢3 per Equity Share, and accordingly are reduced from paid up equity share capital of our Company. For details, see
“Capital Structure - Equity Share capital history of our Company ” on page 71 of this Preliminary Placement Document.

Date of allotment | Number of |Face value Issue Cumulative Nature of Reason / Nature of allotment
equity per equity | price per | number of | consideration
shares share ) | equity Equity
allotted share (%) Shares
September 1, 1990 100 10 10 100 Cash Initial ~ subscription to the
Memorandum of Association
March 30, 1991/ 9,300 10 10 9,400 Cash Further allotment
April 1, 1993 M 40,600 10 10 50,000 Cash Further allotment
March 31, 1996 50,000 10 10 100,000 Cash Further allotment
March 27, 1997# 100,000 10 10 200,000 Cash Further allotment
March 31, 1999 800,000 10 - 1,000,000 - Bonus issue in the ratio of 1 for
every 4 equity shares
July 28, 1999* 317,000 10 27.30 1,317,000 Cash Further allotment
April 28, 2000 4,214,400 10 - 5,531,400 - Bonus issue in the ratio of 5 for
every 16 equity shares
May 4, 2000% 250,000 10 10 5,781,400 Cash Further allotment

Pursuant to a resolution of our Board passed in their meeting held on July 5, 2000 and a resolution of our Shareholders passed
in their extraordinary general meeting held on July 4, 2000, each fully paid up equity share of our Company of face value I10
was split into Equity Shares of 35 each, and accordingly, 5,781,400 equity shares of our Company of 10 each were split into
11,562,800 Equity Shares of T5 each.™

July 5, 2000 3,660 5 5| 11,566,460 Cash Allotment pursuant to the
employee stock purchase scheme

July 19, 2000 30,300 5 81| 11,596,760 Cash Preferential allotment

November 23, 2000 3,890,400 5 81| 15,487,160 Cash Initial public offering

July 31, 2002 (51,100) 5 -1 15,436,060 - Forfeiture of partly paid up
Equity Shares for non-payment
of allotment money

December 7, 20054 4,202,000 5 -1 19,638,060 - Allotment pursuant to the
scheme of amalgamation order
dated September 30, 2005

October 13, 2006 322,421 5 10.08| 19,960,481 Cash Preferential allotment
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Date of allotment | Number of |Face value Issue Cumulative Nature of Reason / Nature of allotment
equity per equity | price per | number of | consideration

shares share ®) | equity Equity
allotted share (%) Shares
July 9, 2014 7,229,112 5 -1 27,189,593 - Allotment pursuant to the

scheme of amalgamation order
dated March 10, 2014
December 30, 2016 10,569,937 5 -1 37,759,530 - Allotment pursuant to the
scheme of amalgamation order
dated November 4, 2016

January 14, 2022 75,000 5 52.95| 37,834,530 Cash Allotment under ESOP 2018-1
and ESOP 2018-2

January 14, 2022 79,500 5 52.65| 37,914,030 Cash Allotment under ESOP 2018-1
and ESOP 2018-2

May 17, 2022 89,000 5 52.65| 38,003,030 Cash Allotment under ESOP 2018-2

December 3, 2022 179,180 5 52.65| 38,182,210 Cash Allotment under ESOP 2018-2

December 3, 2022 17,100 5 52.95| 38,199,310 Cash Allotment under ESOP 2018-2

August 17, 2023 199,771 5 52.65| 38,399,081 Cash Allotment under ESOP 2018-2

August 17, 2023 57,900 5 52.95| 38,456,981 Cash Allotment under ESOP 2018-2

AThe Form -2 with respect to these allotments are not available. Accordingly, we have relied on the minutes of the meeting of the board of directors
of our Company and the search report dated January 9, 2024, prepared by Sameer Kishore Bhatnagar, Practicing Company Secretary. For details
see “Risk Factors - Our Company was incorporated in 1990 and we are unable to trace some of our historical records. We cannot assure you that
no legal proceedings or regulatory actions will be initiated against our Company in the future in relation to the missing filings and corporate
records, which may impact our financial condition and reputation ” on page 52.

" The Form -5 with respect to the split is not available. Accordingly, we have relied on the minutes of the meeting of the board of directors and
shareholders of our Company and the search report dated January 9, 2024, prepared by Sameer Kishore Bhatnagar, Practicing Company Secretary.
For details see “Risk Factors - Our Company was incorporated in 1990 and we are unable to trace some of our historical records. We cannot
assure you that no legal proceedings or regulatory actions will be initiated against our Company in the future in relation to the missing filings and
corporate records, which may impact our financial condition and reputation ” on page 52.

~MAThe Shareholders’ resolution with respect to the allotment is not available. Accordingly, we have relied on the minutes of the meeting of the
board of directors of our Company and scheme of amalgamation dated July 12,2005 filed in this regard and the search report dated January 9,
2024, prepared by Sameer Kishore Bhatnagar, Practicing Company Secretary. For details see “Risk Factors- Our Company was incorporated in
1990 and we are unable to trace some of our historical records. We cannot assure you that no legal proceedings or regulatory actions will be
initiated against our Company in the future in relation to the missing filings and corporate records, which may impact our financial condition and
reputation” on page 52.

*The Form -23, Board resolution approving the allotment and Shareholders’ resolution with respect to this allotment is not available. Accordingly,
we have relied on the minutes of the meeting of the board of directors of our Company approving the issuance and the Form-2 filed in this regard
and the search report dated January 9, 2024, prepared by Sameer Kishore Bhatnagar, Practicing Company Secretary. For details see “Risk
Factors- Our Company was incorporated in 1990 and we are unable to trace some of our historical records. We cannot assure you that no legal
proceedings or regulatory actions will be initiated against our Company in the future in relation to the missing filings and corporate records, which
may impact our financial condition and reputation ”” on page 52.

# Board resolution approving issuance with respect to these allotments is not available. Accordingly, we have relied on the minutes of the meeting
of the board of directors of our Company for allotment and the search report dated January 9, 2024, prepared by Sameer Kishore Bhatnagar,
Practicing Company Secretary. For details see “Risk Factors- Our Company was incorporated in 1990 and we are unable to trace some of our
historical records. We cannot assure you that no legal proceedings or regulatory actions will be initiated against our Company in the future in
relation to the missing filings and corporate records, which may impact our financial condition and reputation ” on page 52.

Employee Stock Option Scheme
ESOP 2018-1

Pursuant to a Board resolution dated February 13, 2018 and Shareholders’ resolution dated March 31, 2018, our
Company instituted the Axicades ESOP 2018-Series 1 (“ESOP 2018-1) to provide for the grant of options to
employees of our Company who meet the eligibility criteria under ESOP 2018-1. The objectives of ESOP 2018-1
include, inter alia, introducing a long-term incentive tool to motivate and retain talent, aligning key employee’s interest
with that of the shareholders and providing wealth creation opportunities to critical employees.

ESOP 2018-1 envisages option rights not exceeding 1,510,381 options of which each option upon exercise, grants its
holder the right to be allotted one Equity Share, upon payment of the exercise price. The quantum of options that can
be granted under the ESOP 2018 and the issue of Equity Shares upon its exercise are subject to corresponding fair and
reasonable adjustment in the event of corporate actions by our Company including capitalisation of profits or reserves.

As on the date of this Preliminary Placement Document, our Company has granted an aggregate of 1,510,381 options
under ESOP 2018-1, including lapsed stock options granted under the ESOP 2018-1, which were added back to the
pool. Out of the granted options, an aggregate of 214,728 stock options have vested, out of which no options have
been exercised, 127,532 options have lapsed and no options are outstanding as on the date of as on the date of this
Preliminary Placement Document.

ESOP 2018-2
Pursuant to a Board resolutions dated February 13, 2018 and August 7, 2021, and Shareholders’ resolutions dated

March 31, 2018 and September 28, 2021, our Company instituted the Axicades ESOP 2018-Series 2 (“ESOP 2018-
2”) to provide for the grant of options to employees of our Company who meet the eligibility criteria under ESOP
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2018. The objectives of ESOP 2018-2 include, inter alia, introducing a long-term incentive tool to motivate and retain
talent, aligning key employee’s interest with that of the shareholders and providing wealth creation opportunities to
critical employees.

ESOP 2018-2 envisages option rights not exceeding 4,153,548 options of which each option upon exercise, grants its
holder the right to be allotted one Equity Share, upon payment of the exercise price. The quantum of options that can
be granted under the ESOP 2018-2 and the issue of Equity Shares upon its exercise are subject to corresponding fair
and reasonable adjustment in the event of corporate actions by our Company including capitalisation of profits or
reserves.

As on the date of this Preliminary Placement Document, our Company has granted an aggregate of 4,802,863 options
under ESOP 2018-2, including lapsed stock options granted under the ESOP 2018-2, which were added back to the
pool. Out of the granted options, an aggregate of 1,178,758 stock options have vested, out of which 697,451 have been
exercised, 767,386 options have lapsed and 481,307 options are outstanding, as on the date of this Preliminary
Placement Document.

Proposed Allottees in the Issue

In compliance with the requirements of Chapter VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Allotment shall be made by our
Company, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers, to Eligible QIBs only, on a discretionary basis. For
details of the names of the proposed Allottees and the percentage of the post Issue Equity Share capital that may be
held by them, please, see “Proposed Allottees” on page 434.

Pre-Issue and post Issue shareholding pattern

The pre-lIssue and post Issue shareholding pattern of our Company is set forth below.

S. Category Pre-Issue” (As on December 31, 2023) Post-Issue”
No. No. of Equity % of shareholding No. of Equity % of shareholding
Shares held Shares held

1. Promoter’s holding**

1. |Indian
Individual - - [e] [e]
Bodies corporate 25,282,047 65.74
Sub-total 25,282,047 65.74 [e] [e]

2. |Foreign - - [e] [e]
Sub-total (A) 25,282,047 65.74 [e] [o]

2. Non — Promoter’s holding

1. | Institutional Investors 179,967 0.47 [e] [e]

2. | Non-Institutional Investors - - [e] [e]
Corporate bodies 1,595,609 4.15 [e] [e]
Directors and relatives 0 0 [e] [e]
Indian public  (Resident 10,390,811 27.02 [e] [e]
Individuals)
Others including Non-resident 1,008,547 2.62 [e] [o]
Indians (NRIs)
Sub-total (B) 13,174,934 34.26 [e] [e]
Grand Total (A+B) 38,456,981 100.00 [e] [o]

Based on beneficiary position data of our Company as on December 31, 2023.
*  The details of the post-Issue shareholding pattern will be filled in prior to filing of the Placement Document with the Stock Exchanges.
**  This includes shareholding of the members of the Promoter Group.

Other Confirmations

@ Except 481,307 outstanding options, there are no outstanding warrants, options or rights to convert
debentures, loans or other instruments convertible into the Equity Shares as on the date of this Preliminary
Placement Document.

(b) The Promoter, the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of our Company do not intend to participate
in the Issue.

(© No change in control in our Company will occur consequent to the Issue.

(d) Except as stated above, our Company has not made any allotment of Equity Shares or preference shares,

including for consideration other than cash, in the one year immediately preceding the date of filing of this
Preliminary Placement Document.
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(e) Our Company shall not make any subsequent qualified institutions placement until the expiry of two weeks
from the date of this Issue. Further, Equity Shares allotted pursuant to this Issue cannot be sold by the Allottee
for a period of one year from the date of allotment, except on recognised stock exchanges in India.
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DIVIDENDS

The declaration and payment of dividends by our Company is governed by applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Articles of Association. The Board has approved and adopted a formal dividend distribution policy in accordance with
Regulation 43A of the SEBI Listing Regulations on May 25, 2023. For further information, see “Description of the Equity
Shares” on page 410.

Our Company has not declared any dividend during the six month period ended September 30, 2023 and during Fiscals 2023,
2022 and 2021 and from October 1, 2023 till the date of this Preliminary Placement Document.

There is no guarantee that any dividends will be declared or paid or that the amount thereof will not decrease in the future. The
form, frequency and amount of future dividends declared by our Company will depend on a number of internal and external
factors, including, but not limited to, operating cash flow of our Company, profit earned during the year, profit available for
distribution, accumulated profits, free reserves, working capital requirement, capital expenditure requirement, business
expansion and growth, additional investment in subsidiaries of our Company, economic environment, changes in governmental
policies, regulatory changes and capital markets.

The Equity Shares to be issued in connection with this Issue shall qualify for all dividends, including interim dividend, if any,
that is declared in respect of the fiscal in which they have been allotted.

Also see “Risk Factors” on pages 35.

Prospective investors are cautioned not to rely on past dividends as an indication of the future performance of our Company or
for an investment in the Equity Shares issued in the Issue.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Statements Page Nos.
Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 77
Fiscal 2023 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 106
Fiscal 2022 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 171
Fiscal 2021 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 235
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Report on Review of Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Directors
AXISCADES Technologies Limited

We, S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP (“SRBA”) have reviewed the accompanying Interim
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of AXISCADES Technologies Limited (the
“Holding Company” or “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”) and its associate which comprise the Interim
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2023 and the related Interim
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Interim Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income), Interim Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Changes of Equity and Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the six-months period ended September 30, 2023, and an interim condensed summary of
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information (together hereinafter
referred to as “Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements”). Our responsibility is
to express a conclusion on the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements based on
our review.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

This Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the
Holding Company’s Management and have been approved by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company, has been prepared in accordance with the principles laid down in Indian
Accounting Standard 34, (Ind AS 34) “Interim Financial Reporting” prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”), read with relevant rules issued
thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. These Interim
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared solely in connection with
the proposed offering of equity shares by the Holding Company in a Qualified Institutions
Placement in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended (the “SEBI
ICDR Regulations™) and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised
2019) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”), as amended from
time to time (the “Guidance Note”).

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410,
“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”
issued by the ICAIL A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries,
primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical
and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an
audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.
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Conclusion

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the accompanying Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are not
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 34 prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2.2 to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements,
which describes the basis of accounting. These Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared for the purpose of the proposed offering of equity shares by the
Holding Company in a Qualified Institutional Placement as referred in Note 2.2 of the
accompanying Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. As a result, the financial
statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our conclusion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

Other matters

a. The Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements includes the unaudited interim
condensed financial statements and other financial information, in respect of:

e eleven subsidiaries, whose unaudited interim condensed financial statements include
total assets of Rs. Rs. 70,404.19 lakhs as at September 30, 2023 and total revenues of
Rs.22,458.03 lakhs and net cash outflows of Rs. Rs. 2,408.71 lakhs for the period ended
on that date, as considered in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
which have been reviewed by their respective independent auditors.

e one associate, whose unaudited interim condensed financial statements include Group’s
share of net loss of Rs. Nil for the six-months period ended September 30, 2023, as
considered in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements which have
been reviewed by their independent auditor.

The independent auditor’s reports on unaudited interim condensed financial statements
have been furnished to us by the Management and our conclusion on the Interim Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures in
respect of these subsidiaries and associate is based solely on the report of such auditors.

The unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements include the interim
condensed financial statements of one subsidiary which reflect total assets of Rs. 893 lakhs
as at September 30, 2023, total revenues of Rs 68 lakhs and net cash outflow amounting to
Rs. 313 lakhs for the period April 01, 2023 to September 30, 2023 and another subsidiary
whose interim condensed financial statements reflected total revenues of Rs. Nil and net
cash inflow amounting to Rs. 3 lakhs for the period April 01, 2023 to September 03, 2023
have not been reviewed or audited. These unaudited/ unreviewed interim condensed
financial statements have been furnished to the other auditor by the Management. Our
conclusion, in so far as it relates to amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries is based solely on such unaudited/ unreviewed financial statements.
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
Management, these unaudited/ unreviewed financial statements are not material to the
Group.

Our conclusion above on the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements is not
modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and
the reports of the other auditors.

b. We have not audited or reviewed the comparative financial information of the six-month
period ended September 30, 2022 in the accompanying Interim Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements for the six-months period ended September 30, 2023, which has been
presented solely based on the information compiled by the Management.

c. Ourreview report is intended solely for the information and use of the proposed offering
of equity shares by the Holding Company in a Qualified Institutional Placement and should
not be used by parties other than these specified parties. We do not accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose.

d. The Group has prepared separate Statement of Unaudited Consolidated Financial Results
(the “Consolidated Financial Results”) for the quarter and half year ended September 30,
2023 in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian
Accounting Standard 34 (Ind AS 34), “Interim Financial Reporting” on which we have
issued a separate auditor’s review report dated November 08, 2023. These Unaudited
Consolidated Financial Results are prepared for submission by the Holding Company
pursuant to the requirements for Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

per Sunil Gaggar
Partner
Membership No.: 104315

UDIN: 24104315BKEXGZ9150

Place: Bengaluru
Date: January 10, 2024
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AXISCADES Technologies Limited

Interim Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2023

(All amounts in  lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 6,887.51 5,683.68
Capital work in progress 42.43 -
Right-of-use assets 15,131.07 11,568.96
Goodwill 13,466.00 11,347.76
Other intangible assets 5 3,251.50 2,619.85
Investment in an associate 6 627.71 -
Financial assets
Investments 7 124.24 446.19
Other financial assets 1,621.06 975.53
Deferred tax assets, net 2,232.23 1,980.33
Non-current tax asset, net 2,228.04 1,969.68
Other non-current assets 77.29 42.27
45,689.08 36,634.25
Current assets
Inventories 8 7,052.09 6,585.39
Financial assets
Investments 7 3,243.36 2,899.98
Trade receivables 22,237.53 17,902.93
Cash and cash equivalent 9 5,115.43 7,506.73
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 10 2,205.21 2,456.16
Other financial assets 5,411.56 5,876.19
Other current assets 11,817.97 10,576.82
57,083.15 53,804.20
Total assets 1,02,772.23 90,438.45
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 1,924.38 1,911.50
Other equity 34,135.64 31,895.57
Attributable to equity holders of the Company 36,060.02 33,807.07
Non-controlling interests 599.97 579.20
Total equity 36,659.99 34,386.27
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1" 24,735.01 17,091.32
Lease Liabilities 6,249.13 2,248.00
Other financial liabilities 1,021.49 -
Provisions 1,287.61 984.57
Deferred tax liabilities, net 377.44 -
33,670.68 20,323.89
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1" 10,931.11 14,309.03
Lease Liabilities 1,437.68 947.85
Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 276.88 295.89
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 9,066.76 7,213.44
Other financial liabilities 1,635.10 3,636.45
Provisions 2,113.42 1,690.12
Current tax liability, net 1,222.62 1,131.26
Other current liabilities 5,757.99 6,504.25
32,441.56 35,728.29
Total liabilities 66,112.24 56,052.18
Total equity and liabilities 1,02,772.23 90,438.45
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number : 101049W/E300004

per Sunil Gaggar
Partner
Membership Number : 104315

Place : Bengaluru
Date : January 10, 2024
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

AXISCADES Technologies Limited
CIN NO : L72200KA1990PLC084435

Arun Krishnamurthi

Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

DIN : 09408190

Place : Bengaluru
Date : January 10, 2024

Shashidhar SK
Group Chief Financial Officer

Place : Bengaluru
Date : January 10, 2024

Mr. Venkatraman Venkitachalam

Non - Executive Director
DIN : 05008694

Place : Bengaluru
Date : January 10, 2024

Sonal Dudani
Company Secretary
Membership No.: 40415

Place : Bengaluru
Date : January 10, 2024



AXISCADES Technologies Limited

Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the six-months period ended 30 September 2023
(All amounts in % lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Period ended Period ended
30 September 2023 30 September 2022
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 12 46,510.10 37,693.95
Other operating income 198.00 301.78
Other income 284.01 689.69
Total income 46,992.11 38,685.42
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 9,963.66 7,653.80
Employee benefits expense 23,269.80 17,771.24
Finance costs 3,175.00 1,025.88
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,577.89 1,346.57
Other expenses 6,398.45 6,259.19
Total expenses 44,384.80 34,056.68
Profit before share in loss of an associate, exceptional items and tax 2,607.31 4,628.74
Share in loss of an associate, net of tax - (4.41)
Profit before exceptional items and tax 2,607.31 4,624.33
Exceptional items 13 - (4,444.98)
Profit before tax 2,607.31 179.35
Income tax expense:
(i) Current tax 1,140.85 905.20
(ii) Deferred tax (credit)/charge (221.69) 334.94
Total income tax expense 919.16 1,240.14
Profit/(loss) after tax for the period 1,688.15 (1,060.79)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement losses on defined benefit plans (230.01) (59.49)
Income tax effect 61.90 15.95
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: (168.11) (43.54)
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
a) Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges, net 49.94 (171.72)
Income tax effect (12.52) 47.74
37.42 (123.98)
b) Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 212.93 288.16
Income tax effect - -
212.93 288.16
Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: 250.35 164.18
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 82.24 120.64
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 1,770.39 (940.15)
Total profit/(loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 1,667.38 (1,082.10)
Non-controlling interests 20.77 21.31
Other preh ive income attril to:
Equity holders of the Company 82.24 120.64
Non-controlling interests - -
Total prehensive i /(loss) attril le to:
Equity holders of the Company 1,749.62 (961.46)
Non-controlling interests 20.77 21.31
Earning/(loss) per equity share attributable to equity holders of the Company
in ¥ [nominal value of shares ¥ 5 (30 September 2022: ¥ 5)]*
Basic 14 4.36 (2.85)
Diluted 3.96 (2.85)
* not annualised
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date.
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants AXISCADES Technologies Limited
ICAI Firm Registration number : 101049W/E300004 CIN NO : L72200KA1990PLC084435
per Sunil Gaggar Arun Krishnamurthi Mr. Venkatraman Venkitachalam
Partner Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director Non - Executive Director
Membership Number : 104315 DIN : 09408190 DIN : 05008694
Place : Bengaluru Place : Bengaluru Place : Bengaluru
Date : January 10, 2024 Date : January 10, 2024 Date : January 10, 2024
Shashidhar SK Sonal Dudani
Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 40415
Place : Bengaluru Place : Bengaluru
Date : January 10, 2024 Date : January 10, 2024
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AXISCADES Technologies Limited

Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the six-months period ended 30 September 2023

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares

Equity shares of ¥ 5 each, fully paid-up Number

(in lakhs) Amount
As at 1 April 2023 381.99 1,911.50
Add: Issued and subscribed during the period* 2.58 12.88
As at 30 September 2023 384.57 1,924.38

Equity shares

Equity shares of Z 5 each, fully paid-up Number

(in lakhs) Amount
As at 1 April 2022 379.14 1,897.23
Add: Issued and subscribed during the period* 0.89 4.45
As at 30 September 2022 380.03 1,901.68

* During the period, the Company allotted 257,671 (30 Septebmer 2022: 89,000) equity shares of ¥ 5 each aggregating ¥ 12.88 lakhs (30 September 2022: % 4.45 lakhs), consequent to the exercise of stock options by employees of the Company under the "AXISCADES ESOP 2018

— Series 1" and "AXISCADES ESOP 2018 — Series 2".

B. Other equity

Reserves and surplus

Items of other comprehensive

- - ncome Total Non-controlling
. Capital Share based Foreign currency . . Total
General Securities . . P . N Hedge other equity interests
reserve premium Retained earnings Contribution payment Capital reserve translation reserve
Reserve reserve reserve
Balance as at 1 April 2023 3.39 10,416.51 12,944.91 107.68 1,364.83 5,698.31 1,402.03 (42.09) 31,895.57 579.20 32,474.77
Profit for the period - - 1,657.92 - - - - B 1,657.92 30.23 1,688.15
Add/(less): Reclass for non-controlling interest - - 9.46 - - - - - 9.46 (9.46) 0.00
Less: Change in fair value of non-controlling interest liability (refer note 19) - - (12.20) - - - - - (12.20) - (12.20)
Fair value changes on derivatives designated as cash flow hedge, net of tax - - - - - - - 37.42 37.42 - 37.42
Re-measurement losses in defined benefit plans, net of tax - - (168.11) - - - - - (168.11) - (168.11)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations N - - - - = 212.93 - 212.93 - 212.93
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 1,487.07 - - - 212.93 37.42 1,737.42 20.77 1,758.19
Exercise of share options - 198.92 - - (75.97) - - - 122.95 - 122.95
Share based payment expenses N - N - 379.70 = N - 379.70 = 379.70
Balance as at 30 September 2023 3.39 10,615.43 14,431.98 107.68 1,668.56 5,698.31 1,614.96 (4.67) 34,135.64 599.97 34,735.61
Balance as at 1 April 2022 3.39 10,197.93 13,464.21 107.68 904.69 5,698.31 873.35 (20.48) 31,229.08 534.76 31,763.84
(Loss)/profit for the year - - (1,082.10) - - - - - (1,082.10) 21.31 (1,060.79)
Fair value changes on derivatives designated as cash flow hedge, net of tax - - N - N N N (123.98) (123.98) N (123.98)
Re-measurement gains in defined benefit plans, net of tax - - (43.54) - N N N - (43.54) N (43.54)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - - - - - - 288.16 - 288.16 - 288.16
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period - - (1,125.64) - - - 288.16 (123.98) (961.46) 21.31 (940.15)
Exercise of share options - 68.00 - - (25.32) - - - 42.68 - 42.68
Share based payment expenses - - N - 70.38 N N - 70.38 b 70.38
Balance as at 30 September 2022 3.39 10,265.93 12,338.57 107.68 949.75 5,698.31 1,161.51 (144.46) 30,380.68 556.07 30,936.75

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number : 101049W/E300004

per Sunil Gaggar
Partner
Membership Number : 104315

Place : Bengaluru
Date : January 10, 2024
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Date : January 10, 2024

Shashidhar SK
Group Chief Financial Officer

Place : Bengaluru
Date : January 10, 2024

Mr. Venkatraman Venkitachalam
Non - Executive Director
DIN : 05008694

Place : Bengaluru
Date : January 10, 2024

Sonal Dudani
Company Secretary
Membership No.: 40415

Place : Bengaluru
Date : January 10, 2024



AXISCADES Technologies Limited

Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the six-months period ended 30 September 2023

(All amounts in % lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Period ended Period ended
30 September 2023 30 September 2022
(Unaudited)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 2,607.31 179.35
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Exceptional item 13 - 4,444 .98
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,577.89 1,346.57
Impairment of property, plant and equipment - 203.79
Loss incurred on loss of control on subsidiary 6 317.34 -
Interest income (including fair value change in financial instruments) (126.67) (176.61)
Gain on sale of investment in mutual funds (55.87) -
Net gain on financial asset measured at fair value through profit and loss - (48.41)
Dividend income from mutual funds (14.73) (15.57)
Finance costs 3,175.00 1,025.88
Gain on lease modification - (4.30)
Gain on sale of investment in associate - (39.56)
Share of loss of an associate 6 - 4.41
Provision/liabilities no longer required written back (36.08) (31.47)
Recovery of bad debts (1.27) -
Provision for doubtful debts and advances and bad debts written off 76.35 165.25
Share based payment expense 379.70 70.38
Provision for foreseeable loss on contracts - 8.36
Loss on export incentive receivable - 17.28
Loss/(profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment 2.72 (3.45)
Unrealised fair value gain on derivative (565.18) -
Net unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) 33.94 (119.10)
Operating profit before working capital changes 7,370.45 7,027.78
Movements in working capital
(Increase) in trade receivables (3,056.25) (5,367.97)
(Increase) in inventories (462.06) (748.71)
(Increase) in other assets including financial assets (666.95) (1,063.67)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, other liabilities and financial liabilities (790.24) 1,651.19
Increase in provisions 238.86 193.66
Cash generated from operating activities 2,633.81 1,692.28
Direct taxes paid, net (1,249.52) (761.15)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 1,384.29 931.13
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and (819.18) (544.10)
intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 8.97 6.63
Interest received 81.96 113.92
Payment of deferred purchase consideration (66.92) (13,220.82)
Redemption/(investment) in mutual funds 6.50 (260.26)
Proceeds from sale of investment in associate - 222.55
Investment in fixed deposits (432.89) (3,741.12)
Dividend received - 16.57
Investment in shares of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 19 (3,024.36) -
Net cash used in investment activities (B) (4,245.92) (17,407.63)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of principal portion and interest portion of lease liabilities (891.95) (687.30)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 20,882.30 10,012.45
Repayment of long-term borrowings (20,845.18) -
Proceeds from short term borrowings, net 3,822.19 4,454.51
Proceeds from issue of equity shares and preference shares 139.98 46.86
Interest paid (2,639.58) (1,386.58)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 467.76 12,439.94
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C) (2,393.87) (4,036.56)
Effect of exchange rate changes, net 2.57 147.01
Cash and cash equivalent as at beginning of the period 9 7,506.73 7,109.49
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period 9 5,115.43 3,219.94

83




Notes:

a) Cash and cash equivalent include:
Cash on hand
Balances with banks

- in current accounts

- in cash credit accounts

b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

Balance as at 1 April 2023
Additions to lease liability

Deletions

Cash flows

Other Adjustments

Balance as at 30 September 2023

Balance as at 1 April 2022
Additions to lease liability

Deletion

Cash flows

Other Adjustments

Balance as at 30 September 2022

As at As at
30 September 2023 30 September 2022
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
3.1 0.96
4,898.87 3,170.58
213.45 48.40
5,115.43 3,219.94
Loan from
banks and Inter-
financial corpora_te Lease liabilities Total
institutions deposit
20,875.02 10,525.33 3,195.85 34,596.20
- - 5,850.81 5,850.81
- - (474.98) (474.98)
8,501.31 (4,642.00) (891.95) 2,967.36
153.30 253.16 7.08 413.54
29,529.63 6,136.49 7,686.81 43,352.93
4,881.11 - 2,324.54 7,205.65
- - 981.95 981.95
- - (53.92) (53.92)
9,324.96 5,142.00 (687.30) 13,779.66
(110.00) (68.17) 13.43 (164.74)
14,096.07 5,073.83 2,578.70 21,748.60

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number : 101049W/E300004

per Sunil Gaggar
Partner

Membership Number : 104315

Place : Bengaluru
Date : January 10, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

AXISCADES Technologies Limited
CIN NO : L72200KA1990PLC084435

Arun Krishnamurthi

Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

DIN : 09408190

Place : Bengaluru
Date : January 10, 2024

Shashidhar SK
Group Chief Financial Officer

Place : Bengaluru
Date : January 10, 2024
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AXISCADES Technologies Limited
Notes to Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial S as at and for the six-months period ended 30 September 2023
(All amounts in  lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information:

AXISCADES Technologies Limited (‘the Company' / 'the Holding Company' / 'ACTL') is a public limited company and incorporated on 24 August 1990 under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The Group operates in the business of Technology Services and Solutions and Strategic Technology Solutions. The Company’s shares are listed for
trading on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited in India.

The Registered Office of the Company is "Block C, Second Floor, Kirloskar Business Park, Bengaluru - 560024, Karnataka, India".

The Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements comprise of interim condensed financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, "the Group") and an
associate listed below:

Information about idiaries:
Name of the subsidiaries Country of Ownership interest (%)

incorp i 30 2023 30 2022
AXISCADES, Inc. USA 100% 100%
AXISCADES UK Limited, Subsidiary of AXISCADES Inc. (AXISCADES UK') UK 100% 100%
AXISCADES Technology Canada Inc. (‘AXISCADES Canada') Canada 100% 100%
Axis Mechanical Engineering Design (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. (‘Axis China') China 100% 100%
AXISCADES GmbH Germany 100% 100%
Cades Studec Technologies (India) Private Limited (‘Studec') India 76% 76%
AXISCADES Aerospace & Technologies Private Limited ('ACAT') India 100% 100%
Enertec Controls Limited, subsidiary of ACAT ('Enertec’) India 100% 100%
AXISCADES Aerospace Infrastructure Private Limited, subsidiary of ACAT (‘AAIPL') India 100% 100%
Mistral Solutions Private Limited (MSPL) India 100% 100%
Aero Electronics Private Limited, subsidiary of MSPL (AEPL) (till 4 Septemer 2023)* India 74% 100%
Mistral Technologies Private Limited, subsidiary of MSPL (MTPL) India 100% 100%
Mistral Solutions Inc.,subsidiary of MSPL (MSI) USA 100% 100%
Explosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited ("Explosoft") (subsidiary with effect from 22 December 2022)** India 100% -
Add Solution GmbH ('Add Solution') (with effect from August 01, 2023)* Germany 94% -
Information about associates

Name of the associate Country of Ownership interest (%)

incorporati 30 Sep 2023 30 Sep 2022
Aero Electronics Private Limited, subsidiary of MSPL ('AEPL') (with effect from 4 Septemer 2023)* India 74% 100%
ASSYSTEMS AXISCADES Engineering Private Limited (‘AAEPL') (till 11 July 2022)@ India - -

* As per the Shareholders’ Agreement and Share Subscription Agreement (“Share Agreements”) between the Company, Mistral Solutions Private Limited, Aero Electronics Private
Limited and third-party Investor (“Investor”), it is agreed between the parties to issue 67,900 Equity Shares and 89,486 Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of AEPL to the
Investor for a purchase consideration aggregating ¥ 1,397.59 lakhs and the Investor is entitied to appoint and remove the majority of directors on the Board of Directors of AEPL.
Accordingly, the Group has lost control over AEPL. The Group continues to exercise significant influence over AEPL and account for the investments in AEPL under equity method as an
associate in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group (refer note 6).

**On 22 December 2022, consequent to non-approval of the scheme of amalgamation, the Company has acquired 100% shares of Explosoft in cash.

A During the period ended 30 September 2023, AXISCADES GmbH, acquired 94% of shareholding in Add Solution GmbH. Further, Axiscades GmbH has an option to purchase and the
shareholders of Add Solution have an option to sell remaining 6% shares of Add Solution (refer note 19 for further details).

@ 0On 11 July 2022, the Company has sold the investment in its associate ASSYSTEMS AXISCADES Engineering Private Limited for a consideration of  222.55 lakhs (refer note 6).

2. Basis of Preparation and Interim d material ing policy information

2.1 Basis of Prep of Interim C Ci i Fi it and It with Indian A ing Standards ("Ind AS")

The Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group and its associate have been prepared in accordance with the principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard
34, (Ind AS 34) "Interim Financial Reporting" prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under historical cost convention and on
accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets/liabilities measured at fair value as described in accounting policies regarding financial instruments. These Interim
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in INR which is the Group's functional and presentation currency and all values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs (INR
1,00,000), except when otherwise indicated. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Interim Condensed Consolidated Flnancial Statements are consistent with those
followed in preparation of the audited consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023.

2.2 Purpose of Interim C C i Fi

These Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements do not include all the information and disclosures required in the annual consolidated financial statements and should be
read in conjunction with the Group's latest audited annual consolidated financial statements. These Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared solely in
connection with the proposed offering of equity shares by the Holding Company in a Qualified Institutional Placement in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Issue of Captial and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended (the "SEBI ICDR Regualtions") and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company
Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"), as amended from time to time (the "Guidance Note").

These Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the six-months period ended 30 September 2023 of the Group and it's associate were approved in accordance with the
resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company on 9 January 2024.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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2.3 Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

« Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

« Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

« Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Al other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

« It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

« It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalent. The Group has evaluated and considered its operating
cycle as 12 months.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

2.4 Basis of consolidation

The Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the interim condensed financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 30 September 2023. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

» Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

» Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

» The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of
an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

» The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

» Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

» The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights; and

» The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed off during the period are included in the Interim condensed Consolidated Financial Statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the
group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’s interim condensed financial statements in preparing the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements to ensure
conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The interim condensed Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., six-months
period ended on 30 September 2023. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes,
additional interim condensed financial information as of the same date as the interim condensed financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the interim
condensed financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:
(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the
subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements at the acquisition date.
(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how
to account for any related goodwill.
(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition
in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. Ind AS 12, Income Taxes, applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting
from intragroup transactions.
(d) Non-controlling interest represents that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by
the parent company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity shareholders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the interim condensed financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

» Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

» Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;

» Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

» Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

» Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

» Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and

» Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.5 Investment in associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associate are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost. The carrying
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date.

The Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate . Any change in OCI of those investees is
presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate ,the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the Interim Condensed Statement of Changes in Equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the
extent of the interest in the associate .

If an entity's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its
share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on the face of the Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

The interim condensed financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting
policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its associate . At each reporting date, the Group
determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate in the Interim Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.6 Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition
date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include
contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

» Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12, Income Tax, and
Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits respectively.

» Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangement of the acquiree or share-based payments arrangement of the Group entered into to replace share-based
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-based Payments at the acquisition date

» Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, are measured in
accordance with that standard.

» Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the
reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in Interim Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109 it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest
held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-
assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the
same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in Interim Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items
for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These
adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

Business combinations between entities under common control is accounted for at carrying value under the provisions of Ind AS 103, Business Combinations.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination such as finders’ fees, legal fees, due diligence fees, and other professional and consulting fees are
expensed as and when incurred.

Liability for Non-Controlling Interests

Liability for put option issued to non-controlling interests which do not grant present access to ownership interest to the Group is recognised at present value of the redemption amount
and is reclassified from equity. At the end of each reporting period, the non-controlling interests subject to put option is derecognised and the difference between the derecognised and
present value of the redemption based on the valuation, which is recorded as a financial liability, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalised until the property, plant
and equipment are ready for use, as intended by management. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the
cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains
or losses are recognised in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value
less cost to sell.

The Group depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Useful lives
(in years)

Computers * 3-6
Furniture and fixtures * 7-10
Office equipment * 5-7
Plant and machinery * 7-15
Electrical installations * 7

Office buildings * 61

Vehicles * 5-6
Test equipments 6

* Based on an internal assessment, the management believes that the useful lives as given above represents the period over which management expects to use the assets. Hence, the
useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Group has evaluated the applicability of component accounting as prescribed under Ind AS 16, Property plant and equipment, and Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the
management has not identified any significant component having different useful lives. Schedule Il requires the Group to identify and depreciate significant components with different
useful lives separately.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically and updated as required, including at each financial year end.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over its lease period including renewable period or estimated useful life, whichever is shorter, on a straight-line basis.
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2.8 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. Advances paid towards
the acquisition of intangible assets outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed as other non-current assets and the cost of intangible assets not ready for their intended use
before such date are disclosed as intangible assets under development.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Process manuals are amortised over the remaining project term or the useful life of the process manual, whichever is shorter. Softwares are amortised over the period of 3 - 6 years Non-
compete fee and customer contract are amortised over a period 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangibles under development
Capitalised costs that are directly attributable to the development phase are recognised as intangible assets provided that they meet the following recognition requirements:

- demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective product or processes for sale;

- the intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits through sale;

- sufficient technical, financial and other resources are available for completion; and

- the intangible asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets represent cost incurred for the creation of engineering and design manuals (‘process manuals').

2.9 Revenue recognition
The Group earns revenue from contract with customer primarily from sale of engineering design services, system integration and other services.
The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal
in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Sale of goods and services:

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, except for the agency
services below, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from professional engineering services is either on time-and-material basis or fixed price contracts. Revenue on time-and-material basis is recognised as the related services
are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contracts, where performance obligation are satisfied over time and where there is no uncertainity as to the measurement or collectibility of
consideration, is recognised as per the percentage of completion method. When there is uncertainity as to measurement or ultimate collectibility, revenue recognition is postponed until
such uncertainity is resolved. Costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

Revenue from sale of products and system engineering and traded sales is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods. Revenue from the sale of goods and services is
measured at the transaction price net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue from sale of products, where the performance obligations are satisfied
over time and where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration, is recognised as per the percentage-of-completion method. When there is uncertainty as
to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion
as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

Variable Consideration:

Rights of return, volume discounts, or any other form of variable consideration is estimated using either the sum of probability weighted amounts in a range of possible consideration
amounts (expected value), or the single most likely amount in a range of possible consideration amounts (most likely amount), depending on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration realizable. Transaction price includes variable consideration only to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of revenues recognized will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved. Our estimates of variable consideration and determination of whether to include estimated amounts in the transaction
price may involve judgment and are based largely on an assessment of our anticipated performance and all information that is reasonably available to us.

n
Significant financing component :

The Group receives short-term advances from its customer Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, it does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a
significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for
that good or service will be one year or less.

Warranty obligations:
It provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as required by law. These assurance-type warranties are accounted for under Ind AS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. Refer to the accounting policy on warranty provisions in use of judgements, estimates & assumptions.

Finance income:

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a
financial liability. When calculating EIR, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend Income:
Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Rental Income:

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms unless the payments are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases and is included in revenue in the Statement of Profit and Loss due to its operating
nature.

Contract balances

Contract assets:

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by providing services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we refer to as Unbilled Revenue). Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting
policies on impairment of financial assets in section 2 (s) Impairment of financial assets.

Trade receivables:
A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer
to accounting policies of financial assets in section 2 (r) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.
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2.10 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (including prime cost, non-refundable taxes and duties and other overheads incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition) and estimated net realisable value, after providing for obsolescence, where appropriate. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. The
net realisable value of materials in process is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished goods. Raw materials, packing materials and other supplies held for use in
production of inventories are not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined, and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their
net realisable value.. The method of determination of cost is as follows:

Raw materials/ components and traded goods are valued at first in first out method

Finished goods/ work in progress - Cost of materials including costs of conversion, where cost of material is determined under first in first out method. Cost of conversion is considered at
actuals.

Goods in transit are valued at actual cost.

The Group periodically assesses the inventory for obsolesence and slow moving stocks
2.11 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or it
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

Contingent assets
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, related asset is recognised.

Onerous contracts
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Group has a contract under which
the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

2.12 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i. Debt instruments at amortised cost;

ii. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

iii. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
iv. Equity investments

i. Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Interim Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

ii. Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Interim Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the Interim Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

iii. Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing
so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in
other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition
and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of
the amounts from OCI to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

a. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b. The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (i) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities like non
convertable debenutures are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred
to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such
liability are recognised in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cost that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified party fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of expected loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements
of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and Hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks arising from highly probable future forecasted sales. This
derivative financial instrument are designated in a cash flow hedge relationship. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Group’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/
economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective
in achieving offsetting changes in cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods
for which they were designated.

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss and is reclassified to underlying hedged item.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when
the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occur

2.13 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable;
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurements as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined the classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabilities and
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Involvement
of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Management decides, after discussions with the Group’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.
On an interim basis, the Management present the valuation results to the Audit Committee and the Group’s independent auditor This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used
in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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2.14 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consists of cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

2.15 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Group has two business segments, 'Technology
Services and Solutions' and 'Strategic technology solutions'.

2.16 Earnings/ (loss) per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Group (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares, if any) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the
dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential
equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

3.1 Changes in ing policies and di:
There are no new accounting policies applied during the reporting period

3.2 Amendments in Ind AS

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are
effective from 01 April 2023. However, these amendments does not have any impact on the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements including material accounting policy
information.

(i) Ind AS 8 - Definition of

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a "change in accounting estimates" has been replaced with a
definition of "accounting estimates". Under the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainity”. Entities
develop accounting estimates if accounting policies requires items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainity.

(ii) Ind AS 1 - Disclosure of material accounting policies

The amendments related to shifting of disclosure of erstwhile "significant accounting policies” to "material accounting policies"in the notes to the financial statements requiring companies
to reframe their accounting policies to make them more "entity specific".

(iii) Ind AS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

These amendments narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exception in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12. At the date of transition to Ind ASs, a first time adopter shall recognise a
deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Similarly, a deferred tax liability for
all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with: a) right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, b) decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the corresponding

amounts recognised as part of the cost of the related asset. Therefore, if a Group has not yet recognised deferred tax on right-of-use assets and lease liabilities or has recognised
deferred tax on net basis, the same need to recognise on gross basis based on the carrying amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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AXISCADES Technologies Limited

Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the six-months period ended 30 September 2023

(All amounts in % lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4

-

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Cost or valuation

Balance as at 1 April 2022

Additions

Disposals

Other adjustments (refer note 1 below)
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Additions

Disposals

Acquired in a business combination (refer note 19)

Other adjustments (refer note 1 below)
Balance as at 30 September 2023

Depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2022

Charge for the year

Impairment (refer note 5 below)
Disposals

Other adjustments (refer note 1 below)
Balance as at 31 March 2023

Charge for the year

Disposals

Other adjustments (refer note 1 below)
Balance as at 30 September 2023

Net book value

As at 31 March 2023
As at 30 September 2023

Notes

Furniture and Test Office Electrical . Office Leasehold Plant and
Freehold land Computers ) . N . . Vehicles - . . Total
fixtures equipments equipments installations building improvements machinery

3,370.50 1932.50 291.70 335.25 319.23 12.18 380.62 621.38 384.78 1,910.61 9,558.75
- 297.57 40.30 34.83 82.19 - 186.75 - 177.15 10.15 828.94
- (334.29) (86.44) - (37.55) (10.09) (28.83) - (13.24) (49.00) (559.44)

- 8.44 2.04 - 0.85 - - - - - 11.33
3,370.50 1,904.22 247.60 370.08 364.72 2.09 538.54 621.38 548.69 1,871.76 9,839.58
- 354.48 27.17 32.94 9.93 - 172.24 - 23.63 0.76 621.15
- (0.48) - - (1.95) - (11.95) - (5.50) - (19.88)
64.68 228.98 - - - - - 658.59 - - 952.25
- (23.81) 0.23 - (0.22) - - (11.15) - - (34.95)
3,435.18 2,463.39 275.00 403.02 372.48 2.09 698.83 1,268.82 566.82 1,872.52 11,358.15
- 1,451.83 212.19 256.36 216.92 10.51 142.09 63.04 101.82 1,323.26 3,778.02

- 252.69 35.74 27.42 39.70 0.15 66.40 11.35 111.70 152.01 697.16

- - - - - - - - - 203.79 203.79
- (331.26) (80.25) - (36.81) (10.09) (22.91) - (3.21) (49.00) (533.53)

- 8.14 1.86 - 0.46 - - - - - 10.46

- 1,381.40 169.54 283.78 220.27 0.57 185.58 74.39 210.31 1,630.06 4,155.90

- 162.40 1217 14.77 17.49 0.07 41.98 19.60 55.41 20.42 344.31
- (0.43) - - (3.33) - (3.32) - - - (7.08)
- (17.75) 0.28 - (0.12) - - (4.90) - - (22.49)

- 1,525.62 181.99 298.55 234.31 0.64 224.24 89.09 265.72 1,650.48 4,470.64
3,370.50 522.82 78.06 86.30 144.45 1.52 352.96 546.99 338.38 241.70 5,683.68
3,435.18 937.77 93.01 104.47 138.17 1.45 474.59 1,179.73 301.10 222.04 6,887.51

Represents adjustments consequent to foreign exchange translation of property, plant and equipment in foreign geographies.

Capitalised borrowing cost

No borrowing costs are capitalised during the period/year ended 30 September 2023 (31 March 2023: Nil).

Property, plant and equipment pledged as security
Details of properties pledged are as per note 11

Decommissioning cost

A provision has been recognised for decommissioning costs associated with the premises taken on lease. The Group is committed to decommissioning the premises as a result of leasehold improvements made to the premises.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

During the period/year ended, the impairment loss of  nil lakhs (31 March 2023:% 203.79 lakhs) represented the write-down value of certain plant and machinery as a result of technological obsolescence. This was recognised in profit and loss.
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AXISCADES Technologies Limited

Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the six-months period ended 30 September 2023

(Al amounts in % lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5 Other intangible assets
Computer Non-compete fee = Customer contract Order Backlog Process Total
software manuals
Cost
Balance as at 1 April 2022 1,911.21 1,500.87 3,127.52 - 1,849.38 8,388.98
Additions 384.36 - - - - 384.36
Disposals during the year (8.05) - - - - (8.05)
Other adjustments (refer note 1 below) 0.46 - - - - 0.46
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,287.98 1,500.87 3,127.52 - 1,849.38 8,765.75
Additions 175.98 - - - - 175.98
Disposals - - - - - -
Acquired in a business combination (refer note 19) 1.1 - 815.72 72.51 - 889.34
Other adjustments (refer note 1 below) 1.76 - - - - 1.76
Balance as at 30 September 2023 2,466.83 1,500.87 3,943.24 72.51 1,849.38 9,832.83
Amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2022 1,635.73 650.35 1,355.29 - 1,849.38 5,490.75
Charge for the year 200.00 150.08 312.76 - - 662.84
Disposals (8.05) - - - - (8.05)
Other adjustments (refer note 1 below) 0.36 - - - - 0.36
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,828.04 800.43 1,668.05 - 1,849.38 6,145.90
Charge for the year 136.92 75.04 189.25 34.22 - 435.43
Disposals - - - - - -
Other adjustments (refer note 1 below) - - - - - -
Balance as at 30 September 2023 1,964.96 875.47 1,857.30 34.22 1,849.38 6,581.33
Net book value
As at 31 March 2023 459.94 700.44 1,459.47 - - 2,619.85
As at 30 September 2023 501.87 625.40 2,085.94 38.29 - 3,251.50

Notes:
1 Represents adjustments consequent to foreign exchange translation of other intangible assets in foreign geographies.
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AXISCADES Technologies Limited

Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the six-months period ended 30 September 2023
(All amounts in % lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

U]

(i)

Investment in an associate

As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
(Unaudited) (Audited)

Non-current

Investment in equity shares of ASSYSTEM AXISCADES Engineering Private Limited [refer

note (i) below] . .
Investment in equity shares of Aero Electronics Private Limited [refer note (ii) below] 627.71 -

627.71 -

Notes:

ASSYSTEM AXISCADES Engineering Private Limited

The Company entered into a agreement on 10 April 2018 with ASSYSTEM Engineering and Operation Services SAS to form ASSYSTEM AXISCADES Engineering
Private Limited (AAEPL) for providing engineering services in the field of energy, building and infrastructure and nuclear sector. Accordingly, AAEPL was
incorporated with an equity participation in the ratio of 50:50. The Company invested % 227.50 lakhs in 455,000 equity shares of % 50 each fully paid in cash. The
Group's interest in AAEPL is accounted for using the equity method in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

On 11 July 2022, the Company has sold the investment in its associate, for an amount of ¥ 222.55 lakhs. The Group has recorded the gain on sale of an associate of
% 39.55 lakhs being the differential amount of the carrying amount and sale proceeds in its Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Group's investment in AAEPL:

As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Current assets - -
Non-current assets - -
Current liabilities - -
Non-current liabilities - -
Equity - -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership - -
Carrying amount of the investment - -

Period ended For the period ended from

30 September 2023 1 April 2022 to 11 July 2022

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Revenue from contracts with customers - -
Other Income - 3.02
Depreciation and amortisation expense - (3.77)
Employee benefits expense - (0.69)
Other expenses - (7.38)
Loss before tax - (8.82)
(i) Current tax - -
(ii) Deferred tax - -
Loss for the year - (8.82)
Group'’s share of loss for the year - (4.41)

Aero Electronics Private Limited

Aero Electronics Private Limited had entered into a Shareholders’ agreement and a Share subscription agreement (“Transaction documents”) signed on 03 May
2023, with a new investor (Investor). During the six-months period ended 30 September 2023, the Investor subscribed to the first tranche of 24,837 equity shares
(Initial Subscription Shares) and basis the terms of agreement, the composition of the Board of Directors of AEPL was amended.

The Group has evaluated the implications thereof and determined that these changes have resulted in cessation of control over the subsidiary. Accordingly, following
the principles in Ind AS 110: Consolidated Financial Statements, the Group fair valued its retained investment in AEPL (based on an independent valuers report) on
the date of loss of control and derecognised the assets and liabilities related to AEPL and recorded a loss of disposal of subsidiary of ¥ 317.34 lakhs in the Interim
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss of the Group grouped under other expenses. The Group continues to exercise significant influence over AEPL
and account for the investments in AEPL under equity method as an associate in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group. There
were no revenue and expense transactions during the period from 4 September 2023 to 30 September 2023.in AEPL and hence no profit or loss is attributable to the
Group in the Interim Condensed Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed C lidated Fil ial as at and for the six-months period ended 30 September 2023
(Al amounts in % lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

7 Investments
As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
( i i

)

Non-current

Ungquoted
i) Investments (at amortised cost)
National savings certificate 0.05 0.05
Total investment carried at amortised cost 0.05 0.05

ii) Investment in equity shares of other companies (at FVTPL)
Axis Cogent Global Limited - -
946,822 (31 March 2023: 946,822) equity shares of % 10 each, fully paid up

Datum Technology Limited - -
50,000 (31 March 2023: 50,000) equity shares of Z 10 each, fully paid up

Raaga Axis Avicom Private Limited - -
1,000 (31 March 2023: 1,000) equity shares of 10 each, fully paid up

iii) Other Investment (at FVTPL)

Investment in real estate fund 124.19 200.75
Quoted
iv) Other Investment (at FVTPL)
Investment in mutual funds* - 245.39
Total investment carried at fair value through profit or loss 124.19 446.14
Total Investment 124.24 446.19
Current
Ungquoted
i) Other investments (at FVTPL)
Investment in mutual funds 541.50 446.77
Quoted
i) Other investments (at FVTPL)
Investment in mutual funds 2,701.86 2,453.21
Total investment carried at fair value through profit or loss 3,243.36 2,899.98
Aggregate book value of quoted (current and non-current) investments 2,701.86 2,698.60
Aggregate market value of quoted (current and non-current) investments 2,701.86 2,698.60
Aggregate book value of unquoted (current and non-current) investments 665.74 647.57

* Refer note 11 for details of assets pledged as security for borrowings.

As at As at
8 Inventories * (lower of cost or net realisable value) 30 September 2023 31 March 2023
(L i (Audited)
Raw material/components [including goods-in-transit of ¥ 173.24 lakhs (31 March 2023: % 112.44 lakhs)] 5,937.75 4,871.13
Project work-in-progress 159.37 909.59
Finished goods 735.16 656.90
Traded goods [including goods-in-transit of ¥ 38.03 lakhs (31 March 2023: ¥ 28.96 lakhs)] 219.81 147.77
7,052.09 6,585.39

During the period/year ended 30 September 2023, Inventories is net of provision for obsolescence in respect of raw material ¥ 590.44 lakhs (31 March 2023: % 684.08 lakhs), Project work-in-progress  nil
lakhs (31 March 2023: % 127.64 lakhs), finished goods % 370.02 lakhs (31 March 2023: % 355.36 lakhs) and stock-in-trade % 37.98 lakhs (31 March 2023: % 53.33 lakhs)

* Refer note 11 for details of assets pledged as security for borrowings.

9 Cash and cash equivalent *
As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
" . .

)

Cash on hand 31 2.84
Balances with banks

- in current accounts 4,898.87 7,121.49

- in cash credit accounts 213.45 382.40

5,115.43 7,506.73

(i) Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods for few days, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

(i) As at 30 September 2023, the Group has % 1,368.31 lakhs (31 March 2023: ¥ 5,758.23 lakhs) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.

* Refer note 11 for details of assets pledged as security for borrowings.

Note: As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
( i i

(
4 )

a) For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent comprises the following:

Cash and cash equivalent 5,115.43 7,506.73
5,115.43 7,506.73

10 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent*

As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
" . (Audi

)

Bank deposits (with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) 2,205.21 2,456.16
Bank deposits (with original maturity of more than 12 months) 789.31 105.47
2,994.52 2,561.63
Less: Amounts disclosed as other non-current financial assets . (785.31) (105.47)
Less: Amounts disclosed as other current financial assets (4.00) -
2,205.21 2,456.16

(i) Fixed deposits of a carrying amount % 2,870.32 lakhs (31 March 2023: ¥ 2,274.36 lakhs) have been deposited as margin money against the packing credit facility, bank guarantees, letter of credit, buyers
credit facility availed from various banks.

(i) Deposits of a carrying amount % 74.18 lakhs (31 March 2023: % 121.06 lakhs) have been deposited as bank guarantee in favour of various government authorities and customers.
(iii) Refer note 11 for assets pledged as security for borrowings.
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1"

Borrowings
Non-current

Debentures
12.75% unrated unlisted redeemable non-convertible debentures (secured) [refer note (a)(i) below]*

15.75% unrated unlisted non-convertible debentures (secured)* [refer note (a)(ii)
below]*
13% Cumulative, optionally convertible redeemable debentures (unsecured) [refer note (f) below]

Term loan

Term loan from banks (secured) [refer note (a)(iii) below]

Term loan from financial institution (secured) [refer note (a)(iv) below]*
Vehicle loan from financial institution (secured) [refer note (a)(v) below]

Current

Debentures
12.75% unrated unlisted redeemable non-convertible debentures (secured) [refer note (a)(i) below]*

16% unrated unlisted non-convertible debentures (secured) [refer note (a)(ii) below]*

Working capital loan
Working capital loan from bank (secured) [refer note (a)(vi) and (g) below]
Cash credit (secured) [refer note (a)(vii) (c)(i) and (d)(i) below]

Short term loan from financial institution (secured) [refer note (h) below]

Loan from related parties
Intercorporate term loan from holding company (unsecured) [refer note (a)(viii)
below]*

Current maturities of long term borrowings

Term loan from banks (secured) [refer note (a)(iii) below]

Term loan from financial institution (secured) [refer note (a)(iv) below]*
Vehicle loan from financial institution (secured) [refer note (a)(v) below]

Aggregate Secured loans
Aggregate Unsecured loans

* refer note VI below

Effective interest Maturity As at As at
rate (Financial year ending) 30 September 2023 31 March 2023
( ited) (Audited)
13.63% 2027

17.40%-17.95%

13%

6.27% - 9.8%
16.49%
8.01%

13.63%

18.93%

SOFR+2.20%
SOFR+1.5%- 2.2%

9%

13%

6%-6.27%
16.49%
8.01%
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2025 and 2026

2025

2025 and 2029

2025 and 2026
2025

2027

2024

on demand
on demand

2024

2024

2029
2024
2024

18,306.38 -

- 9,755.29

6,136.49 5,908.37

284.74 35.49

- 1,377.53

7.40 14.64

24,735.01 17,091.32
2,310.00 -

- 4,489.45
5,601.53 3,339.34
1,410.90 1,279.05
1,450.82 -

- 4,616.96

143.66 -
- 570.59
14.20 13.64
10,931.11 14,309.03
29,529.63 20,875.02
6,136.49 10,525.33



AXISCADES Technologies Limited
Notes to the Interim Condensed Cc lidated Fi ial S as at and for the six-months period ended 30 September 2023
(All amounts in % lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

I AXISCADES Technologies Limited

a) Details of security for borrowings
(i) The 12.75% unrated unlisted redeemable non-convertible debentures of ¥ 21,000 lakhs is secured and repayable in 14 quarterly installments starting from March 2024. It is secured by first pari-passu charge over
all assets (including movable and immovable PPE, intangible assets & intellectual rights, current assets and non-current assets) of the Company, ACAT and MSPL, land and building of the Company situated at D-
30, Sector 3, Noida, UP, property owned by step down subsidiary, Enertec at Electronic City, Bangalore, pledge of 100% shares of MSPL and Corporate guarantee from MSPL, ACAT, Enertec and Explosoft (refer
note VI below).

(i) The 15.75% unrated unlisted non-convertible debentures of ¥ 10,000 lakhs was secured and repayable in 12 equal monthly installments of % 833 lakhs starting from August 2024. and 16% unrated unlisted non-
convertible debentures of ¥ 4,500 lakhs was secured and repayable on December 2023. The Debentures were secured by exclusive charge on the movable assets, intangible assets of the Company and MSPL,
pledge of 100% shares of MSPL and corporate guarantee by Jupiter Capital Private Limited (the Parent Company) and this was fully repaid during the period ended 30 September 2023 (refer note VI below).

(iii) During the six-months period ended 30 September 2023, the Company has borrowed a term loan of ¥ 348 lakhs from a bank and is secured by exclusive charge on current assets, movable PPE, land and
building of the Company situated at D-30, Sector 3, Noida, UP, property owned by Enertec at Electronic City, Bangalore, fixed deposits of 200 lakhs, pledge of 26% shares of MSPL, and corporate guarantee from
Enertec. Additionally, 10% cash margin in the form of fixed deposits lien to be maintained. Further, shortfall undertaking and letter of responsibility is backed by board resolution from Jupiter Capital Private Limited,
the Parent Company.

(iv) Term Loan of % 2,000.00 lakhs from financial institution was secured and repayable in equal quarterly installment of ¥ 200.00 lakhs starting from August 2023, carries an interest rate of 14.50%. The loan was
secured by exclusive charge on current assets, movable assets of the Company and ACAT, land and bulidings of the Company and Enertec and pledge of shares of the Company with minimum cover of 1.15x of the
loan amount. Further, unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee of Jupiter Capital Private Limited, ACAT and Enertec and this was fully repaid during the period ended 30 September 2023 (refer note VI
below).

(v) Vehicle loan of % 40.99 lakhs from financial institution is secured against the vehicle and repayable in equal monthly installment of % 1.28 lakhs from April 2022.

(vi) Packing credit facility in foreign currency ("PCFC") and Cash credit from banks are secured by exclusive charge on current assets, movable PPE, land and building of the Company situated at D-30, Sector 3,
Noida, UP, property owned by step down subsidiary, Enertec Controls Limited at Electronic City, Bangalore, fixed deposits of ¥ 200.00 lakhs, pledge of 26% shares of the subsidiary company, Mistral Solutions
Private Limited, and corporate guarantee from step down subsidiary, Enertec Controls Limited. Additionally, 10% cash margin in the form of fixed deposits lien to be maintained. Further, shortfall undertaking and
letter of responsibility is backed by board resolution from Jupiter Capital Private Limited, the Parent Company.

(vii) Cash credit in India currency from bank bearing an interest rate of 3-month SOFR+1.5%/ SOFR +2.2%(HDFC) (31 March 2023: 3-month SOFR+1.5%/ SOFR +2.2%(HDFC)) are payable on demand.

(viii) Loan from related parties includes intercorporate deposits of ¥ 5,142 lakhs from Jupiter Capital Private Limited is unsecured and repayable on July 2023 and was fully repaid during the period ended 30
September 2023.

b) Loan covenants
The above financial arrangements contains certain financial covenants such as debt service coverage ratio, total debt as a percentage of total net-worth etc. The Company has satisfied the debt covenants
prescribed in the above facilities.

I AXISCADES Aerospace & Technologies Private Limited

c) Terms of borrowings and rate of interest
(i) Cash credit in india currency from bank bearing an interest rate of 3-month SOFR+1.5%/ SOFR +2.2%(HDFC) [(March 31, 2023: SOFR+1.5%/ SOFR +2.2%(HDFC)] are payable on demand.

d) Details of security of borrowings
(i) Cash credit facility (inclusive of post shipment credit facility and packing credit ) from bank are secured by first exclusive charge on all current assets (present and future), equitable mortgage on property owned by
Enertec situated at 14-15, 1st Phase, Electronic city, Bangalore and D-30, sector 3,Noida,Uttarprdesh property owned by the Company, Exclusive fixed deposit of ¥ 700 lakhs is kept under lien and corporate
guarantee given by Enertec & AXISCADES Technologies Limited.

€) Loan covenants
Cash credit from banks contain certain financial covenants such as debt service coverage ratio, total liabilities divide by adjusted net-worth,interest coverage ratio etc. ACAT has satisfied all other debt covenants
prescribed in the terms of bank loan.

Il Explosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited
) The 13% Unsecured Cumulative optionally convertible redeemable debentures of % 3,500 lakhs and intrest thereon ¥2,636.49 lakhs is unsecured and redeemable by Jupiter Capital Private Limited (the Parent
Company) as on 24 December 2024.

IV AXISCADES Inc

g) The working capital loan carries variable interest rate per annum of Wall Street Journal Prime Rate + 2.00% with a floor of 7.50% per annum. Interest and Maintenance Fees shall be calculated on the higher of the
actual average monthly loan balance from the prior month or a minimum average loan balance of USD 500,000. The loan is repayable on demand. The working capital loan is secured by a perfected security interest
in all the assets including a first security interest in accounts receivable and contract rights.

V  AXISCADES GmbH
h) During the year, AXISCADES GmbH borrowed secured term loan from financial institution amounting to ¥ 1,450.82 lakhs (EUR 16.5 lakhs) and carries interest rate of 9% per annum. The loan along with accrued

interest is repayable on 31 October 2023 and secured by pledge of shares.of AXISCADES GmbH held by the Company.

VI The 15.75% and 16% unrated unlisted secured non-convertible debentures along with other borrowings which were outstanding on 31 March 2023 have been refinanced at a lower interest rate of 12.75% per annum
through the issuance of unrated unlisted redeemable non-convertible debentures mentioned in I(a)(i) above.
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12

121

12.3

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of services
Technology Services and Solutions
Strategic Technology Solutions

Sale of goods
Technology Services and Solutions
Strategic Technology Solutions

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with
customers:

India
Outside India
Total revenue from contracts with customers

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods or services transferred at point in time
Goods or services transferred over time

Contract balances

Trade receivables

Contract Assets - Unbilled revenue
Contract liability - Unearned revenue
Contract liability - Advance from customer

Period ended
30 September 2023
(Unaudited)

Period ended
30 September 2022
(Unaudited)

22,529.48 22,099.04
9,161.07 5,371.46
10,644.35 5,759.54
4,175.20 4,463.91
46,510.10 37,693.95

Period ended
30 September 2023
(Unaudited)

Period ended
30 September 2022
(Unaudited)

14,644.30 13,992.45
31,865.80 23,701.50
46,510.10 37,693.95

Period ended
30 September 2023
(Unaudited)

Period ended
30 September 2022
(Unaudited)

14,146.86 9,174.68
32,363.24 28,519.27
46,510.10 37,693.95

Period ended

Period ended

30 September 2023 30 September 2022
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
22,237.53 17,902.93
12,238.49 8,373.99
904.51 2,418.58
3,120.53 1,677.19

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 120 days. The Group has provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables of ¥ 233.71 lakhs as at
30 September 2023 (31 March 2023: % 263.69 lakhs).

The Group classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue. A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon
passage of time. Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenue are classified as contract liabilities (unearned
revenues).

Contract assets relates to revenue earned from engineering design services and strategic technology solutions rendered within the period and for which invoicing happens subsequent to
the period end. As such, the balances of this account vary and depend on the quantum of engineering design services and strategic technology solutions at the end of the period. During
the period ended 30 September 2023, % 4,968.85 lakhs of contract assets as at 31 March 2023 has been reclassified to receivables on completion of performance obligation. During the
year ended 31 March 2023, % 4,484.54 lakhs of contract assets as at 31 March 2022 has been reclassified to receivables on completion of performance obligation. As at 30 September
2023, the Group has provision for expected credit losses on contract assets of ¥ 104.97 lakhs (31 March 2023: % 104.97 lakhs).

Performance Obligation
Revenue to be recognised for performance obligations not satisfied or partially satisfied at the end of the current period in respect of contracts with customer that are in place (i.e. signed
agreements/POs/WOs,etc) :
Period ended
30 September 2022
(Unaudited)

Period ended
30 September 2023
(Unaudited)

Within one year 5,610.03 7,778.68
More than one year 2,595.79 1,515.07
8,205.82 9,293.75
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12.4 Reconcillation of revenue from contracts with customers

Period ended Period ended
30 September 2023 30 September 2022

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Revenue from contracts with customers as per contract price 45,977.88 36,775.02
Adjustments made to contract price on account of:
a) liquidated damages. (220.18) (115.20)
b) Deferrment of revenue. (423.83) (1,418.25)
c) Recognition of revenue from contract liability out of opening balance of contract
liability 1,176.23 2,452.38
Revenue from contracts with customers as per the Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 46,510.10 37,693.95

Note: The amount of  198.00 lakhs (30 September 2022: % 301.78 lakhs) pertaining to other operating revenue has not been considered in the above revenue disclosure.

Period ended Period ended
30 September 2023 30 September 2022
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Exceptional Items
Additional purchase consideration - 1,500.00
Interest on purchase consideration - 2,944.98
- 4,444.98

The Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (‘SPA’) on 1 December 2017, to acquire 100% stake in Mistral Solutions Private Limited along with its subsidiaries (‘MSPL
Group’) in a phased manner. MSPL Group is headquartered in Bengaluru, India and is engaged in rendering end to end services for product design and development in the embedded
space. The Company acquired control on MSPL effective 1 December 2017.

Pursuant to the requirements of SPA, during the quarter ended 30 June 2018, the Company has filed an application with National Company Law Tribunal ('NCLT') for amalgamation of
Explosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited, a shareholder of Mistral with the Company, on receipt of observation letter conveying 'no objection' from BSE Limited and the National Stock
Exchange. Further, vide order dated 8 March 2019, NCLT, Bengaluru bench has approved the scheme of amalgamation (‘Scheme’). As the registered office of the Explosoft is situated in
the state of Maharashtra, the Scheme has also been filed by Explosoft on 15 May 2018, with NCLT, Mumbai for approval.

During the quarter ended 30 June 2020, the shareholders of MSPL have demanded for discharge of purchase consideration of Phase Il of SPA along with interest as the scheme of merger
has not yet been approved. The Company believes that Explosoft did not take steps that were required by Explosoft to diligently prosecute the application for merger before the NCLT
Mumbai so as to bring it to completion and accordingly the claim for interest by Explosoft is not tenable. The Company, thereafter initiated arbitration proceedings against the shareholders
of MSPL and MSPL contesting the aforesaid claims and seeking Arbitral Tribunal to direct for the completion of acquisition in accordance with the SPA.

The Company has received the Interim Arbitration Award (‘Interim Award’) on 26 May 2022, dated 21 May 2022, from the Arbitral Tribunal, directing all parties for specific performance of
their obligations under the SPA and other definitive agreements, so as to ensure completion of acquisition of 100% of shares of MSPL by the Company. In accordance with the Interim
Award, the Company has discharged the purchase consideration for the phases which have fallen due. Pursuant to further directions contained in the Interim Award, the Company had also
recorded an additional charge of % 4,444.98 lakhs (including interest of ¥ 2,944.98 lakhs and additional consideration of ¥ 1,500 lakhs) as an exceptional item during the six-months period
ended 30 September 2022.

Earnings per share (EPS) (basic and diluted) Period ended Period ended
30 September 2023 30 September 2022
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
a) Profit/(loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders (%) 1,667.38 (1,082.10)
b) Weighted average number of shares outstanding (in lakhs) 382.63 380.03
c) Nominal value of shares (%) 5.00 5.00
d) Basic earnings per share (%) 4.36 (2.85)
e) Number of equity shares used to compute diluted earnings per share (in lakhs) (refer note below) 421.17 380.03
f) Diluted earnings per share (%)* 3.96 (2.85)
Note:
Period ended Period ended
30 September 2023 30 September 2022
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (in lakhs) 382.63 380.03
Effect of dilution:
Share options* 38.54 -
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 42117 380.03

*For the purpose of computation of diluted EPS for the period ended 30 September 2022, the effect of stock options granted under ESOP scheme have not been considered as the effect
of these potentially diluted equity shares are anti-dilutive . Hence basic and diluted EPS are same.
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15 Segment information
Management currently identifies the Group’s two service lines as its operating segments. These operating segments are monitored by the Group’s chief operating decision maker and
strategic decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment operating results.
The activities undertaken under Engineering design segment is involved in providing product design, engineering, research and development services.

Under the Strategic technology solutions segment, integration services are provided for defence & offsets business. It includes partnering with major original equipment manufacturers
(OEM's) in the areas of strategic electronics, avionics, radar data processing and electronic warfare etc.

The Group Chief Financial Officer is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) and monitor the results of the operating segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment. Performance is internally assessed and evaluated based on the segment revenues and segment profits.

Segment information as at and for the six-months period ended 30 September 2023 is as follows:

Period ended
30 September 2023

Period ended
30 September 2022

A Segment revenues and profits

Revenue*
From external customers

Segment revenues

Segment results
Segment results

Reconciliation of profit

Segment profit

Share in net loss of associate (refer note 6)
Exceptional items (refer note 13)

Finance costs

Unallocable income net of unallocable expenditure net of other income

Profit before tax

(Unaudited)

(Unaudited)

Technology Services Strategic Technology

Technology Services and

Strategic Technology

and Solutions Solutions Solutions Solutions
33,173.83 13,336.27 27,858.58 9,835.37
33,173.83 13,336.27 27,858.58 9,835.37
4,009.01 2,386.44 4,671.39 865.78
4,009.01 2,386.44 4,671.39 865.78

Period ended
30 September 2023
(Unaudited)

Period ended
30 September 2022
(Unaudited)

6,395.45 5,537.17
) (4.41)

- (4,444.98)
(3,175.00) (1,025.88)
(613.14) 117.45
2,607.31 179.35

*The amount of ¥ 198.00 lakhs (30 September 2022: ¥ 301.78 lakhs) pertaining to other operating revenue has not been considered in the above revenue disclosure.

B Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets
Segment liabilities

B1 Reconciliation of Segment assets

Total reportable segment assets
Unallocable assets

Total Assets

B2 Reconciliation of Segment liabilities

Total reportable segment liabilities
Unallocable liabilities

Total liabilities

As at 30 September 2023
(Unaudited)

As at 31 March 2023
(Audited)

Technology Services Strategic Technology

Technology Services and

Strategic Technology

and Solutions Solutions Solutions Solutions
45,792.05 36,664.36 38,056.91 31,914.02
24,765.50 39,500.85 16,694.93 37,311.97

C The Group’s revenues from external customers are divided into the following geographical areas:

India (country of domicile)
Outside India

As at 30 September 2023

As at 31 March 2023

(Unaudited) (Audited)
82,456.41 69,970.93
20,315.82 20,467.52

1,02,772.23 90,438.45

As at 30 September 2023

As at 31 March 2023

(Unaudited) (Audited)
64,266.35 54,006.90
1,845.89 2,045.28
66,112.24 56,052.18

Period ended
30 September 2023
(Unaudited)

Period ended
30 September 2022
(Unaudited)

14,644.30 13,992.45
31,865.80 23,701.50
46,510.10 37,693.95

Revenues from external customers in the Group’s domicile, India, as well as its major markets, Europe and the USA, have been identified on the basis of the customer’s geographical

location.

D The Group’s non-current assets are divided into the following geographical areas (refer note below):

India (country of domicile)
Outside India

As at 30 September 2023

As at 31 March 2023

(Unaudited) (Audited)
41,218.97 33,098.29
492.58 133.92
41,711.55 33,232.21

Non current assets of the Group are used interchangeably amongst geographical segments and are not allocable to any of the geographical segments. Assets have been therefore
identified on the basis of their geographic location and not on the basis of usage.

Reportable assets for the purpose of this note constitute non-current assets other than financial assets and deferred tax assets.
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16 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Capital and other commitments

As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Capital commitment* 120.29 72.51
* mainly pertains to commitment towards purchase of capital assets of ¥ 120.29 lakhs (31 March 2023: ¥ 72.51 lakhs)
Bank guarantees
As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Bank guarantees to government authorities and others 1,631.74 1,477.96
Bank guarantees are issued in favor of government authorities and others towards financial, peformance guarantees and earnest money deposit as part of bidding process.
Tax contingencies
As at As at
30 September 2023 31 March 2023
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Direct tax matters under dispute/pending before Income Tax Authorities 4,364.89 5,409.71
Indirect tax matters for demands pending before various appellate authorities 1,098.76 1,098.76
5,463.65 6,508.47

Notes:

The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where
applicable, in its Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. The Group does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its

financial position. The Group does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.
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17

(a)
(b

(c)

Related party disclosures
Nature of relationship
Parties where control exists:
Holding Company

Name of Party

Jupiter Capital Private Limited (‘'JCPL’)

Name of other related parties as per Ind AS 24 with whom transactions have taken place during the six-month period ended:
Indian Aero Infrastructure Private Limited (step down subsidiary of JCPL)

Fellow subsidiary

Associates

Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director
Chairman and Non - Executive Director
Chairman and Non - Executive Director
Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Non - Executive Director

Non - Executive Director

Non - Executive Director

Non - Executive Director

Non - Executive Director

Non - Executive Director

Non - Executive Director

ASSYSTEMS AXISCADES Engineering Private Limited (upto 11 July 2022)
Aero Electronics Private Limited (with effect from 4 September 2023)

Mr. Arun Krishnamurthi

Mr. Abidali Neemuchwala (appointed with effect from 4 October 2023)

Mr. David Bradley(upto 28 September 2023)
Mrs. Mariam Mathew

Mr. Desh Raj Dogra

Mr. Dhiraj Mathur

Mr. Harold David Walker(upto 28 June 2023)
Mr. Sudhakar Gande (upto 5 January 2023)
Mr. Sharadhi Chandra Babu Pampapathy
Mr. Abhishek Kumar (upto 3 June 2022)

Mr. David Abikzir

Mr. Venkataraman Venkitachalam (appointed with effect from 6 January 2023)
Mr. S Christopher (appointed with effect from 30 June 2023)

Additional related parties as per Companies Act, 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during the six-months period ended

Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Company Secretary

Company in which Director is a member

Transactions with related parties:

Mr. Shashidhar SK
Ms. Sonal Dudani

Lexicon Infotech Limited

Nature of transactions Relationship Period ended Period ended
30 September 2023 30 September 2022
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Remuneration (Refer note (IV) (a) below)
Mr. Shashidhar SK (refer note b below) Key Management Personnel 233.66 179.59
Mr. Arun Krishnamurthi (refer note b below) Key Management Personnel 405.80 306.24
Ms. Sonal Dudani Key Management Personnel 8.85 7.62
Service received from
Lexicon Infotech Limited Company in which Director is a member - 173
Sitting fees paid to directors
Mr. Dhiraj Mathur Independent Director 8.50 6.00
Mr. Desh Raj Dogra Independent Director 9.00 6.50
Mrs. Mariam Mathew Independent Director 8.00 5.50
Mr. Harold David Walker Non - Executive Director 3.30 1.20
Mr. David Bradley Chairman and Non - Executive Director 7.30 2.10
Mr. Sharadi Chandra Babu Pampapathy Non - Executive Director - 1.50
Mr. Sudhakar Gande Non - Executive Director - 1.80
Mr. Abhishek Kumar Non - Executive Director - 0.30
Mr. David Abikzir Non - Executive Director 6.30 1.20
Mr. Venkataraman Venkitachalam Non - Executive Director 4.80 -
Mr. S Christopher Non - Executive Director 2.00 -
Reimbursement of expenses by
Mr. Sudhakar Gande Non - Executive Director - 35.05
Corporate Guarantee received from
Jupiter Capital Private limited Holding Company - 14,000.00
Interest expense
Jupiter Capital Private limited Holding Company 446.09 196.00

As the future liability for gratuity is provided on an actuarial basis for the Group as a whole, the amount pertaining to individual is not ascertainable and therefore not included above.

Total employee benefit expense includes employee stock compensation expense of ¥ 198.14 lakhs (30 September 2022 - ¥157.99 lakhs) for Mr.Arun Krishnamurthi and ¥ 148.60
lakhs (30 September 2022 - ¥ 118.49 lakhs) for Mr. Shashidhar SK, respectively included in the employee stock option scheme expense in the Interim Condensed Consolidated

Statement of Profit and Loss account.

Refer note 11 for details of security provided for borrowings.

Balances outstanding:

As at As at
Nature of transactions Relationship 30 September 2023 31 March 2023
(Unaudited) (Audited)

Remuneration payable (refer note (IV) (a) above)*
Mr. Shashidhar SK Key Management Personnel 17.81 33.13
Mr. Arun Krishnamurthi Key Management Personnel 70.31 224.53
Ms. Sonal Dudani Key Management Personnel 0.56 221
Investment in equity shares
Aero Electronics Private Limited Associate 627.71 -
Trade payables
Indian Aero Infrastructure Private Limited Fellow subsidiary 6.23 6.23
Lexicon Infotech Limited Company in which Director is a member - 4.95
Corporate guarantee received from - outstanding
Jupiter Capital Private limited Holding Company 4,000.00 20,500.00
Loans from related parties

Particulars Opening Loans taken | Repayment | Interest accumulation Loans outstanding
Jupiter Capital Private Limited
30 September 2023 10,525.33 - 4,642.00 253.16 6,136.49
31 March 2023 - 11,025.33 500.00 - 10,525.33

* Remuneration payable does not include amount payable on employee stock option scheme

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances at the period/year end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related
party receivables or payables. For the period ended 30 September 2023, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31
March 2023: Nil lakhs). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party
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(i)

(ii)

Financial instruments

Financial instr by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 30 September 2023 were as follows:

Particulars

Assets:

Investments (Current and Non Current)

Trade receivables (Current)

Other financial assets (Current and Non Current)

Cash and cash equivalent (refer note 9)

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent (refer note 10)

Total

Liabilities:

Borrowings

Lease liability

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Total

as at and for the six-months period ended 30 September 2023

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 31 March 2023 were as follows:

Particulars

Assets:

Investments (Current and Non Current)

Trade receivables (Current)

Other financial assets (Current and Non Current)

Cash and cash equivalent (refer note 9)

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent (refer note 10)
Total

Liabilities:

Borrowings

Lease liability

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Total

Amortised Financial assets/ Financial assets/ Carrying value Fair value
cost liabilities at FVTPL liabilities at FVTOCI
0.05 3,367.55 - 3,367.60 3,367.60
22,237.53 - - 22,237.53 22,237.53
7,032.01 - 0.61 7,032.62 7,032.62
5,115.43 - - 5,115.43 5,115.43
2,205.21 - - 2,205.21 2,205.21
36,590.23 3,367.55 0.61 39,958.39 39,958.39
35,666.12 - - 35,666.12 35,666.12
7,686.81 - - 7,686.81 7,686.81
9,343.64 - - 9,343.64 9,343.64
1,576.88 1,079.71 - 2,656.59 2,656.59
54,273.45 1,079.71 - 55,353.16 55,353.16
Amortised Financial assets/ Financial assets/ Carrying value Fair value
cost liabilities at FVTPL liabilities at FVTOCI

0.05 3,346.12 - 3,346.17 3,346.17
17,902.93 - - 17,902.93 17,902.93
6,851.72 - - 6,851.72 6,851.72
7,506.73 - - 7,506.73 7,506.73
2,456.16 - - 2,456.16 2,456.16
34,717.59 3,346.12 - 38,063.71 38,063.71
31,400.35 - - 31,400.35 31,400.35
3,195.85 - - 3,195.85 3,195.85
7,509.33 - - 7,509.33 7,509.33
2,896.81 690.31 49.33 3,636.45 3,636.45
45,002.34 690.31 49.33 45,741.98 45,741.98

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, loans, other financial assets (excluding security deposits), trade payables and working capital loans approximate the
carrying amount largely due to short-term maturity of this instruments. The fair values for security deposits forming part of other financial assets were calculated based on discounted cash flows using a current

lending rate.

The fair values of borrowings and lease liabilities were calculated based on cash flow discounted using a current lending/ borrowing rate and other relevant assumptions.
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability

of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data rely as little as possible on

entity specific estimates.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Quantative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy as at 30 September 2023 :

Quoted price in

Significant observable

Significant

Particulars Date of valuation Carrying value active market (Level . unobservable inputs
input (Level 2)
1) (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value:
Investments (Current and Non Current) 30 September 2023 3,367.55 2,701.86 665.69 -
Derivative contracts 30 September 2023 0.61 - 0.61 -
Liabilities measured at fair value:
Derivative contracts 30 September 2023 - - - -
Purchase consideration payable (Current and Non Current) 30 September 2023 1,079.71 - - 1,079.71
There have been no transfer among level 1, Level 2 and level 3 during the period.
Quantative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy as at 31 March 2023:
Quoted price in Significant

Particulars

Date of valuation

Carrying value

active market (Level

Significant observable
input (Level 2)

unobservable inputs

1) (Level 3)
Assets carried at amortised cost, cost , FVTPL and FVTOCI for which fair values are disclosed
Investments (Current and Non Current) 31 March 2023 3,346.12 2,698.60 647.52 -
Liabilities measured at fair value:
Derivative contracts 31 March 2023 49.33 - 49.33 -
Derivative liability on share warrants 31 March 2023 565.18 - - 565.18
Purchase consideration payable 31 March 2023 125.13 - - 125.13
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(iii) Valuation techniques and significant unobservable input

Significant Inter-relationship between significant

Type Valuation technique unobservable inputs Range unobservable inputs and fair value measurement
Purchase consideration payable Best estimates of earnings for Adjusted earnings of
Adjusted earnings as per the acquired entity % 0 lakhs - ¥ 1205.44 These inputs would result in determing the contingent consideration
terms of share purchase lakhs payable to the shareholders of acquired entity.
agreement
Derivative contracts Binomial option pricing model Exercise price per % 969.10 lakhs These inputs would result in fair value loss on derivative by ¥ 565.18
share 71% lakhs
Risk free rate 50.6% - 51.8%

Sigma range

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

i) Derivative contracts: The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally financial institutions with investment grade credit ratings. Interest rate swaps, foreign exchange
forward contracts and Currency options are valued using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and
swap models, using present value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of the respective
currencies, currency basis spreads between the respective currencies, interest rate curves and forward rate curves of the underlying commodity. As at 30 September 2023, the mark-to-market value of other
derivative asset positions is net of a credit valuation adjustment attributable to derivative counterparty default risk. The changes in counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the hedge effectiveness
assessment for derivatives designated in hedge relationships and other financial instruments recognised at fair value.

ii) Investments in liquid and short-term mutual funds which are classified as FVTPL are measured using net assets value at the reporting date multiplied by the quantity held.

iii) Investments in equity shares which are classified as FVTPL are measured using market price of share at the reporting date multiplied by the quantity held.

(iv) Valuation processes

The Corporate finance team has requisite knowledge and skills. The team headed by group CFO directly reports to the audit committee to arrive at the fair value of financial instruments.

19 Business Combination
Acquisitions during the period ended 30 September 2023
Acquisition of Add Solution GmbH (‘'Add Solution’)

The Group, has acquired Add Solution, GmbH through its subsidiary, AXISCADES GmbH. Add Solution is a company based out of Wolfsburg, Germany which is engaged in automotive design and development.
They are engaged in services such as wiring systems, testing and automation for global automotive OEMs. On 16 June 2023, AXISCADES GmbH has entered into a Share Purchase Agreement ("SPA") with Add
Solution and the Selling Shareholders of Add Solution to acquire 100% paid-up share capital of Add Solution in the following manner:

1 Purchase consideration for acquisition of 94% shareholding of Add Solution in the following manner:
- Tranche I: Fixed purchase consideration of % 4,556.29 lakhs (EUR 5.0 million)
- Tranche Il purchase consideration will be determined based on 40% of EBITDA of Add Solution for the period between 1 July 2023 to 31 December 2024. Maximum amount of Tranche Il consideration should
be less than or equal to ¥ 453.17 lakhs (EUR 0.5 million).
All ancillary rights relating to 94% of the shares of Add Solution are transferred with the rights to participate in the profits.

2 Put and call option to purchase remaining 6% of the shareholding in two tranches for a period from 1 July 2023 to 31 Decemer 2025:
- Tranche | purchase consideration will be determined based on 40% of EBITDA of Add Solution for the period between 1 July 2023 to 31 December 2024.
- Tranche Il purchase consideration will be determined based on 40% of EBITDA of Add Solution for the period between 1 July 2025 to 31 December 2025.
Purchase consideration payable for both Tranche | and Tranche Il together should not exceed ¥ 752.27 lakhs (EUR 0.83 million).

The Company has used services of an external independent expert to carry out a detailed Purchase Price Allocation ("PPA") of the purchase consideration paid/payable to the shareholders of Add Solution.
Based on such PPA, the fair value of the identifiable net assets arising from the transaction are as follows:

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Add Solution as at the date of acquisition were:
Fair Value
recognized on
acquisition

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment (note 4) 952.25
Right-of-use assets 3,524.15
Intangible assets (note 4) 889.34
5,365.74
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables 1,241.69
Cash and cash equivalent 1,531.93
Other financial assets 5.54
Other current assets 76.63
2,855.79
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 3,364.00
Deferred tax liabilities p 398.67
3,762.67
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 84.57
Lease laibilites 160.15
Trade payables 448.12
Provisions 137.23
Other current liabilities 154.42
984.49
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 3,474.37
Goodwill arising on acquisition 2,091.10
Purchase consideration transferred 5,565.47

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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The deferred tax liability mainly comprises the tax effect of the temporary differences on account of Business combination.

The Group acquired this business to bring synergies from the business operation of Add Solution and accordingly concluded this transaction as a business combination as per Ind AS 103. The goodwill of ¥
2,091.10 lakhs comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition. Goodwill is allocated entirely to the Technology Services and Solutions segment. None of the goodwill recognised is

expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

From the date of acquisition, Add Solution has contributed ¥ 1,175.26 lakhs of revenue and % 157.70 lakhs to the net profit of the Group. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the year, revenue

contribtuion would for the Group have been  3,662.48 lakhs and the net profit contribution for the Group would have been ¥ 292.01 lakhs.

Purchase consideration

Fixed purchase consideration

Financial liability (refer note a below)

Contingent consideration payable (refer note b below)
Total consideration

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition

Net cash acquired with the subsidiary (included in cash flow from investing activities)
Purchase consideration paid

Net cashflows on acquisition

Note
a. Financial liability

4,531.77
640.01
393.69

5,565.47

1,531.93
(4,556.29)
(3,024.36)

The obligation to acquire remaining stake in Add Solution has been recorded as financial liability amounting to ¥ 640.01 lakhs. The Group recorded transferred identifiable assets (tangible and intangible) basis a
fair valuation and non-controlling interest on the date of acquistion is recognised at fair value. Consequent to this business acquisition, Add Solution results were consolidated effective 1 August 2023. Pending
acquisition of remaining stake, the Group has attributed the profit and each component of OCI (if any) to non-controlling interests, which is included in financial liability for future acquisition. This financial liability
has been measured at the date of acquisition, basis a fair valuation report, in accordance with Ind AS 109. At the end of each reporting period, the non-controlling interests subject to put option is derecognised
and the difference between the derecognised and present value of the redemption based on the valuation, which is recorded as a financial liability, is accounted for as an equity transaction. The Group has
accounted for the NCl liability equivalent to the estimated settlement and has reversed the NCI liability of ¥ 12.20 lakhs for the period ended 30 September 2023 through retained earnings in respect of the Non-

controlling interests liability.

b. Contingent Consideration

As per the Share Purchase Agreement, the amount of purchase consideration for acquisition of 94% shares of Add Solution is based on 40% of EBITDA of Add Solution for the period between 1 July 2023 to 31

December 2024. Maximum amount for this contingent consideration should not exceed ¥ 453.17 lakhs (EUR 0.5 million)
As at the acquisition date, the fair value of the purchase consideration payable is ¥ 1,033.70 lakhs.

Opening balance of purchase consideration payable
Add: Additions during the period

Less: Fair value gain recognised during the period
Closing balance as at 30 September 2023

20 Events after the reporting period

As at 30 September 2023 As at 31 March 2023

393.69
(24.41)

369.28

There are no events or transactions which have occured since the balance sheet date which would have a material effect and require adjustments in the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

21 The Group had prepared separate Statement of Unaudited Consolidated Financial Results (the “Consolidated Financial Results”) for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2023, in accordance with the
recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34, (Ind AS 34) “Interim Financial Reporting”. These Consolidated Financial Results were prepared for submission by the Holding

Company pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

22 The Code on Social Security, 2020 (the “Code”) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits, received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in
the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect is yet to be notified and the final rules/ interpretation are yet to be issued. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it

comes into effect and will record any related impact accordingly.

23 The figures for the corresponding previous period have been regrouped/ reclassified, where necessary, to confirm to current period’s presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of AXISCADES Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of AXISCADES Technologies
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) and its associate comprising of the consolidated
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other
comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries and associate, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate as at March 31, 2023, their
consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group and associate in
accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of audit
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procedures performed by us and by other auditors of components not audited by us, as reported by them
in their audit reports furnished to us by the Management, including those procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Key audit matters | How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Assessment of impairment of Goodwill and other intangible assets (as described in note
2(i)(c), 2(i)(e) and note 4 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Group’s Balance Sheet includes Rs.
13,967.61 lakhs of goodwill and other
intangible assets representing 15.44% of
total Group assets.

Goodwill and other intangible assets must be
tested for impairment at least on an annual
basis. The determination of recoverable
amounts requires judgement on the part of
the Management in both identifying and then
valuing the relevant Cash Generating Units
(CGUs).

Recoverable amounts are based on
Management’s assumptions of variables and
market conditions such as volume growth
rates, future operating expenditure, discount
rates and long-term growth rates.

The annual impairment testing is a
significant accounting estimate as the

Our audit procedures included the following:

e We understood, evaluated and tested Holding
Company’s Management key controls over the
impairment assessment process;

e We assessed the Group’s methodology applied in
determining the CGUs recoverable value. In
making this assessment, we also evaluated the
objectivity and independence of Holding
Company’s expert involved in the process.

e We engaged expert to assess the assumptions
around the key drivers of the cash flow forecasts
including discount rates, expected growth rates
and terminal growth rates and methodologies used
by the Holding Company’s Management to
determine the recoverable amount;

e We tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
impairment testing model; and

assumptions on which such estimates are
based are judgmental and affected by future | We have assessed the disclosures in  the

market and economic conditions which are consolidated financial statements as per the
inherently uncertain. Accordingly, we have relevant accounting standards.

determined this area to be a key audit matter
in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group including its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of their respective companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective
companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.
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» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group and its associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associate of which we are the independent auditors, to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of eleven
subsidiaries, whose financial statements include total assets of Rs. 54,057.28 lakhs as at March 31,
2023, and total revenues of Rs. 35,409.90 lakhs and net cash inflows of Rs. 917.26 lakhs for the year
ended on that date. These financial statement and other financial information have been audited by
other auditors, which financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports have
been furnished to us by the Management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our
report in terms of Sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

(b) The accompanying consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss of
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Rs. 4.41 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2023, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements, in respect of one associate, whose financial statements, other financial information have
not been audited and whose unaudited financial statements, other unaudited financial information
have been furnished to us by the Management. Our opinion, in so far as it relates amounts and
disclosures included in respect of this associate, and our report in terms of Sub-sections (3) of Section
143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is based solely on such unaudited
financial statements and other unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements and other
financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(€)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and
on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other
financial information of the subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other
Matter’ paragraph we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraph
3(xxi) of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries,
as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

Welthe other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and reports of the other auditors except that with respect to one subsidiary as
disclosed in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements, the backup of the books of account
and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers
physically located in India on daily basis;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies, none of the directors of the Group’s companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified
as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(9)

(h)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India,
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to
this report;

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the
subsidiaries, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid /
provided by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India to their directors in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph (b) above;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group in its consolidated financial statements —
Refer note 35 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2023;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, incorporated in India
during the year ended March 31, 2023;

iv.  a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 48(Vv) to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company
or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 48(vi) to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been received by the respective Holding Company or any of
such subsidiaries from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (‘“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the
other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material mis-statement.

v) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries companies, incorporated in India.

vi)  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable only w.e.f.
April 1, 2023 for the Holding Company and its subsidiaries companies incorporated in
India, hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Sunil Gaggar

Partner

Membership Number: 104315
UDIN: 23104315BGXPYR9143

Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: May 25, 2023
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AXISCADES Technologies Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts in  lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Assets
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 5,683.68 5,780.73
Right-of-use assets 34 11,568.96 8,745.61
Goodwill 4 11,347.76 11,157.93
Other intangible assets 5 2,619.85 2,898.23
Investment in an associate 6 - 187.41
Financial assets
Investments 7 446.19 203.81
Other financial assets 8 975.53 925.31
Deferred tax assets, net 37 1,980.33 2,802.94
Non-current tax asset, net 9 1,969.68 1,462.77
Other non-current assets 10 42.27 2,034.58
36,634.25 36,199.32
Current assets
Inventories 1" 6,585.39 5,157.70
Financial assets
Investments 7 2,899.98 1,526.59
Trade receivables 12 17,902.93 14,516.65
Cash and cash equivalent 13 7,506.73 7,109.49
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 14 2,456.16 3,427.40
Other financial assets 8 5,876.19 3,411.45
Other current assets 10 10,576.82 8,091.60
53,804.20 43,240.88
Total assets 90,438.45 79,440.20
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 15 1,911.50 1,897.23
Other equity 16 31,895.57 31,229.08
Non-controlling interests 579.20 534.76
Total equity 34,386.27 33,661.07
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 17,091.32 45.32
Lease Liabilities 34 2,248.00 1,109.87
Provisions 18 984.57 1,055.56
20,323.89 2,210.75
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 14,309.03 4,835.79
Lease Liabilities 34 947.85 1,214.67
Trade payables 19
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 295.89 218.16
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 7,213.44 6,735.00
Other financial liabilities 20 3,636.45 22,968.90
Provisions 18 1,690.12 1,310.60
Current tax liability, net 21 1,131.26 161.10
Other current liabilities 22 6,504.25 6,124.16
35,728.29 43,568.38
Total liabilities 56,052.18 45,779.13
Total equity and liabilities 90,438.45 79,440.20

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number : 101049W/E300004

per Sunil Gaggar
Partner
Membership Number : 104315

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 25 May 2023
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
AXISCADES Technologies Limited
CIN NO : L72200KA1990PLC084435

Arun Krishnamurthi
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
DIN : 09408190

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 25 May 2023

Shashidhar SK
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Date : 25 May 2023

David Bradley
Chairman and Non -
Executive Director
DIN : 08380717

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 25 May 2023

Sonal Dudani
Company Secretary
Membership No.: 40415

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 25 May 2023



AXISCADES Technologies Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 23 81,360.47 60,840.77
Other operating income 24 801.74 189.82
Other income 25 595.84 909.43
Total income 82,758.05 61,940.02
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 26 17,918.63 11,666.82
Employee benefits expense 27 36,089.20 31,214.39
Finance costs 28 3,589.98 1,575.41
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 2,651.83 2,506.06
Other expenses 30 13,597.86 11,085.78
Total expenses 73,847.50 58,048.46
Profit before share in loss of an associate, exceptional items and tax 8,910.55 3,891.56
Share in loss of an associate, net of tax 6 (4.41) (45.82)
Profit before exceptional items and tax 8,906.14 3,845.74
Exceptional items 31 (6,803.74) (169.34)
Profit before tax and non-controlling interests 2,102.40 3,676.40
Income tax expense: 37
(i) Current tax 2,085.61 1,297.33
(i) Adjustment of current tax relating to earlier years (368.00) 62.81
(iii) Deferred tax charge 864.61 48.35
Total income tax expense 2,582.22 1,408.49
(Loss)/profit after tax for the year (479.82) 2,267.91
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 40 5.50 (15.67)
Income tax effect (1.43) 3.03
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: 4.07 (12.64)
a) (Losses)/gains on cash flow hedges, net 39 (28.72) 53.39
Income tax effect 8.00 (14.87)

(20.72) 38.52

b) Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 528.68 298.08
Income tax effect - -

528.68 298.08
Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: 507.96 336.60
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 512.03 323.96
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 32.21 2,591.87
Total (loss)/profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (523.25) 2,223.32
Non-controlling interest 43.43 44.59
Other comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 511.02 323.96
Non-controlling interest 1.01 -
Total compr ive (loss)/i attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (12.23) 2,548.33
Non-controlling interests 44.44 44.59
(Loss)/earning per equity share in ¥ [nominal value of shares ¥ 5 (31 March 2022: ¥ 5)] 32
Basic (1.37) 5.86
Diluted (1.37) 5.76

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number : 101049W/E300004

per Sunil Gaggar

Partner
Membership Number : 104315

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 25 May 2023

lace : Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

Arun Krishnamurthi

Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

DIN : 09408190

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 25 May 2023

Shashidhar SK
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

Date : 25 May 2023
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CIN NO : L72200KA1990PLC084435

David Bradley

Chairman and Non - Executive Director

DIN : 08380717

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 25 May 2023

Sonal Dudani
Company Secretary
Membership No.:
40415

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 25 May 2023



AXISCADES Technologies Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares
Equity shares of ¥ 5 each (31 March 2022 : ¥ 5 each), fully paid-up Number Amount
(in lakhs)
As at 1 April 2021 377.60 1,889.51
Add: Issued and subscribed during the year* 1.54 7.72
As at 31 March 2022 379.14 1,897.23
Add: Issued and subscribed during the year* 2.85 14.27
As at 31 March 2023 381.99 1,911.50

* During the year, the Company allotted 285,280 (31 March 2022 - 154,000 ) equity shares of ¥ 5 each aggregating ¥ 14.27 lakhs (31 March 2022 - % 7.72 lakhs), consequent to the exercise of stock options by employees of the Company under the "AXISCADES ESOP 2018 — Series

1" and "AXISCADES ESOP 2018 — Series 2".

B. Other equity (refer note 16)

Reserves and surplus Items of other comprehensive

s . Capital Share based Foreign currlgr‘:g;(ne Total N NOIT-CO"UO"I"Q Total
General Securities Retained P B N Hedge other equity interests
reserve premium earnings Contribution payment Capital reserve translation reserve
Reserve reserve reserve
Balance as at 1 April 2021 3.39 10,077.23 11,253.53 107.68 315.03 5,698.31 575.27 (59.00) 27,971.44 490.17 28,461.61
Profit for the year - - 2,223.32 - - - - - 2,223.32 44.59 2,267.91
Fair value changes on derivatives designated as cash flow hedge, net of tax - - - - - - - 38.52 38.52 - 38.52
Re-measurement losses in defined benefit plans, net of tax - - (12.64) - - - - - (12.64) - (12.64)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - - - - - - 298.08 - 298.08 - 298.08
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2,210.68 - - - 298.08 38.52 2,547.28 44.59 2,591.87
Exercise of share options - 120.70 - - (46.67) - - - 74.03 - 74.03
Share based payment expenses (refer note 42) - - - - 636.33 - - - 636.33 - 636.33
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3.39 10,197.93 13,464.21 107.68 904.69 5,698.31 873.35 (20.48) 31,229.08 534.76 31,763.84
Loss/(profit) for the year - - (523.25) - - - - - (523.25) 43.43 (479.82)
Fair value changes on derivatives designated as cash flow hedge, net of tax - - - - - - - (21.61) (21.61) 0.89 (20.72)
Re-measurement gain in defined benefit plans, net of tax - - 3.95 - - - - - 3.95 0.12 4.07
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - - - - - - 528.68 - 528.68 - 528.68
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - (519.30) - - - 528.68 (21.61) (12.23) 44.44 32.21
Exercise of share options - 218.58 - - (82.61) - - - 135.97 - 135.97
Share based payment expenses (refer note 42) - - - - 542.75 - - - 542.75 - 542.75
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3.39 10,416.51 12,944.91 107.68 1,364.83 5,698.31 1,402.03 (42.09) 31,895.57 579.20 32,474.77

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number : 101049W/E300004

per Sunil Gaggar
Partner
Membership Number : 104315

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 25 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
AXISCADES Technologies Limited
CIN NO : L72200KA1990PLC084435

Arun Krishnamurthi
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
DIN : 09408190

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 25 May 2023

Shashidhar SK
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Date : 25 May 2023
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AXISCADES Technoloagies Limited

Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 2,102.40 3,676.40
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Exceptional items, net 31 6,803.74 169.34
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 2,651.83 2,506.06
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 30 203.79 -
Interest income 25 (322.13) (334.15)
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 25 (88.77) (136.45)
Dividend income from mutual funds 25 (32.51) (17.89)
Finance costs 28 3,589.98 1,575.41
Fair value loss on derivative 30 565.18 -
Gain on lease modification/rental concession 25 (7.05) (137.04)
Gain on sale of investment in associate 25 (39.55) -
Share of loss of an associate 6 4.41 45.82
Provision/liabilities no longer required written back 25 (6.44) (62.39)
Recovery of bad debts written off 25 (25.12) -
Advances written off 30 13.40 -
Provision for doubtful debts and advances and bad debts written off 30 153.44 134.35
Share based payment expense 27 542.75 636.33
Provision for foreseeable losses on contracts 18 19.37 -
Loss on export incentive receivable 17.29 -
(Gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 25,30 (1.50) 22.81
Net unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss (126.96) 127.60
Operating profit before working capital changes 16,017.54 8,206.20
Movements in working capital
(Increase) in trade receivables (3,223.48) (2,659.92)
(Increase) in inventories (1,396.02) (2,827.40)
(Increase) in other assets including financial assets (4,129.35) (2,857.31)
Increase in trade payables, other liabilities and financial liabilities 871.96 4,234.31
Increase in provisions 189.35 325.63
Cash generated from operating activities 8,330.00 4,421.51
Direct taxes paid, net (1,266.32) (1,303.72)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 7,063.68 3,117.79
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (1,088.13) (1,361.69)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 27.31 2.20
Interest received 111.81 364.71
Payment of deferred purchase consideration (19,036.36) -
(Investment)/redemption in units of mutual funds and other funds (1,497.10) 3,171.34
Proceeds from disposal of stake in associate 222.55 -
Redemption of fixed deposits, net 1,179.04 763.57
Dividend received - 17.89
Net cash (used in)/generated from investment activities (B) (20,080.88) 2,958.02
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of principal portion and interest portion of lease liabilities 34 (1,441.81) (1,325.38)
Proceeds of long term borrowings 16,081.40 1,078.88
Repayment of long term borrowings (2,252.34) (3,116.30)
Proceeds/(repayment) of short term borrowings, net 6,463.38 (364.17)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 150.25 81.56
Interest paid (5,720.82) (584.72)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (C) 13,280.06 (4,230.13)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C) 262.86 1,845.68
Effect of exchange rate changes, net 134.38 (6.12)
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 7,109.49 5,269.93
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 13 7,506.73 7,109.49

Refer Note 17 for Change in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number : 101049W/E300004

per Sunil Gaggar
Partner
Membership Number : 104315

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 25 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
AXISCADES Technologies Limited
CIN NO : L72200KA1990PLC084435

Arun Krishnamurthi
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

David Bradley

DIN : 09408190

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 25 May 2023

Shashidhar SK
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Date : 25 May 2023
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AXISCADES Technologies Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts in % lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
1. Corporate Information:

AXISCADES Technologies Limited (‘the Company' / 'the Holding Company' / 'ACTL'), a public limited company, operates in the business of Technology Services and Solutions and
Strategic Technology Solutions. The Company’s shares are listed for trading on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited in India.

The Registered Office of the Company is "Block C, Second Floor, Kirloskar Business Park, Bengaluru - 560024, Karnataka, India".

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries ('the Group') and an associate listed below:
Information about subsidiaries:

Name of the subsidiaries Country of Ownership interest (%)

incorporation 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
AXISCADES, Inc. USA 100% 100%
AXISCADES UK Limited, Subsidiary of AXISCADES Inc. (AXISCADES UK") UK 100% 100%
AXISCADES Technology Canada Inc. ('AXISCADES Canada') Canada 100% 100%
Axis Mechanical Engineering Design (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. (‘Axis China') China 100% 100%
AXISCADES GmbH Germany 100% 100%
Cades Studec Technologies (India) Private Limited ('Studec’) India 76% 76%
AXISCADES Aerospace & Technologies Private Limited ('ACAT') India 100% 100%
Enertec Controls Limited, subsidiary of ACAT ('Enertec') India 100% 100%
AXISCADES Aerospace Infrastructure Private Limited, subsidiary of ACAT (‘AAIPL") India 100% 100%
Mistral Solutions Private Limited (MSPL) India 100% 100%
Aero Electronics Private Limited, subsidiary of MSPL (AEPL) India 100% 100%
Mistral Technologies Private Limited, subsidiary of MSPL (MTPL) India 100% 100%
Mistral Solutions Inc.,subsidiary of MSPL (MSI) USA 100% 100%
Mistral Solutions Pte Limited, subsidiary of MSPL (MSP) (dissolved during the previous year)* Singapore 0% 0%
Explosoft Tech Solutions Private Limited (Subsidiary with effect from 22 December 2022)** India 100% 0%

Associate
On 11 July 2022, the ACTL has sold the investment in its associate ASSYSTEMS AXISCADES Engineering Private Limited (AAEPL) for a consideration of ¥ 222.55 lakhs (refer note

*During the previous year the MSP has dissolved through Member's voluntary winding up where it's final meeting was held on 12 November 2021 at the Corporate office of the MSPL,
the notice of which was published in 4 local (Singapore) newspapers on 11 October 2021. The liquidators made the necessary filings with Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority (ACRA) on 19 November 2021 and the MSP was dissolved on the expiration of 3 months from the date of filing i.e., 19 February 2022.

**On 22 December 2022, consequent to non-approval of the scheme of amalgamation, the Company has acquired 100% shares of Explosoft in cash (refer note 20).

2 (i) Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule lll), as
applicable to the consolidated financial statements. The aforesaid financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on 25 May 2023.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in X and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh (¥ 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.
The Group has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an
investee if and only if the Group has:

» Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

» Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

» The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

» The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

» Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

» The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights; and

» The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of
a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March 2023.

When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the
same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.
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AXISCADES Technologies Limited

Consolidated Financial Statements
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont'd)
(Al amounts in % lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

b) Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Consolidation procedure:
(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the
subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.
(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains
how to account for any related goodwill.
(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires
recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12, Income Taxes, applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from
intragroup transactions.
(d) Non-controlling interest represents that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by
the parent company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity shareholders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

» Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

» Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;

» Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

» Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

» Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

» Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and

» Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

c) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include
contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

» Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12, Income Tax, and
Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits respectively.

» Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangement of the acquiree or share-based payments arrangement of the Group entered into to replace share-
based arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-based Payments at the acquisition date

» Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, are measured in
accordance with that standard.

» Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of
the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109 it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-
measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous
interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilites assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be
recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital
reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,

from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the acquiree are assigned to those units.
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A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items
for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These
adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

Business combinations between entities under common control is accounted for at carrying value under the provisions of Ind AS 103, Business Combinations.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination such as finders’ fees, legal fees, due diligence fees, and other professional and consulting fees are
expensed as and when incurred.

d) Investment in associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associate are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost. The carrying
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate . Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate ,the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate .

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate . If the associate subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after
its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on the face of the statement of profit and loss.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with
those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its associate . At each reporting date, the
Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

e) Use of Judgements, Estimates & Assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The Group bases its estimates and assumptions on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur.

Significant management judgements
The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Group that have the most significant effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and tax loss carry forward can be utilised. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits or uncertainties in
various tax jurisdictions.
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Recoverability of advances / receivables
At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding receivables and
advances.

Useful lives of depreciable / amortisable assets
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable / amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these
estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of certain items of property, plant and equipment.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)
Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, medical cost trends, mortality, discount rate and
anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves
developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible
but this is not always available. In that case management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s
length transaction at the reporting date.

Contingent considerations, resulting from business combinations, is valued at fair value at the acquisition date as part of the business combination. When the contingent consideration
meets the definition of financial liability, it is subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss at each reporting date. The determination of the
fair value is based on discounted cash flows. The key assumptions take into consideration the probability of meeting each performance target and the discount factor.

Provision for litigations and contingencies

The provision for litigations and contingencies are determined based on evaluation made by the management of the present obligation arising from past events the settlement of which
is expected to result in outflow of resources embodying economic benefits, which involves judgements around estimating the ultimate outcome of such past events and measurement of
the obligation amount.

Impairment of non-financial assets including Goodwill

Impairment exists when the carrying value of a cash generating unit or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the
next three to six years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the
CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Group. The key assumptions used to determine
the recoverable amount for the different CGUs, including a sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further explained in Note 4.

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of non cash-settled transactions with employees using a Black sholes model valuation to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair
value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate
also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions
about them. For the measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the Group uses Black sholes model valuation for executives and
senior management employees.The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 42.

f) Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

« Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

« Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

« It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

« It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalent. The Group has evaluated and considered its operating
cycle as 12 months.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalised until the property, plant
and equipment are ready for use, as intended by management. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the
cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

The Group depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Useful lives
(in years)

Computers * 3-6
Furniture and fixtures * 7-10
Office equipment * 5-7
Plant and machinery * 7-15
Electrical installations * 7

Office buildings * 61

Vehicles * 5-6
Test equipments 6

* Based on an internal assessment, the management believes that the useful lives as given above represents the period over which management expects to use the assets. Hence, the
useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Group has evaluated the applicability of component accounting as prescribed under Ind AS 16, Property plant and equipment, and Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the
management has not identified any significant component having different useful lives. Schedule Il requires the Group to identify and depreciate significant components with different
useful lives separately.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically and updated as required, including at each financial year end.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over its lease period including renewable period or estimated useful life, whichever is shorter, on a straight-line basis.
h) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. Advances paid towards
the acquisition of intangible assets outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed as other non-current assets and the cost of intangible assets not ready for their intended use
before such date are disclosed as intangible assets under development.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Process manuals are amortised over the remaining project term or the useful life of the process manual, whichever is shorter. Softwares are amortised over the period of 3 - 6 years
Non-compete fee and customer contract are amortised over a period 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangibles under development
Capitalised costs that are directly attributable to the development phase are recognised as intangible assets provided that they meet the following recognition requirements:

- demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective product or processes for sale;

- the intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits through sale;

- sufficient technical, financial and other resources are available for completion; and

- the intangible asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets represent cost incurred for the creation of engineering and design manuals (‘process manuals').

i) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, based on internal or external factors If any such indication exists, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating unit. If such recoverable amount of the asset or cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If, at
the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable
amount. Impairment losses previously recognised are accordingly reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.
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j) Revenue recognition
The Group earns revenue from contract with customer primarily from sale of engineering design services, system integration and other services.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group has generally concluded that it is the
principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Sale of goods and services:

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, except for the agency
services below, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from professional engineering services is either on time-and-material basis or fixed price contracts. Revenue on time-and-material basis is recognised as the related services
are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contracts, where performance obligation are satisfied over time and where there is no uncertainity as to the measurement or collectibility of
consideration, is recognised as per the percentage of completion method. When there is uncertainity as to measurement or ultimate collectibility, revenue recognition is postponed until
such uncertainity is resolved. Costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

Revenue from sale of products and system engineering and traded sales is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods. Revenue from the sale of goods and services is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue from sale of products, where the
performance obligations are satisfied over time and where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration, is recognised as per the percentage-of-completion
method. When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Costs expended have been used to
measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

Variable Consideration:

Rights of return, volume discounts, or any other form of variable consideration is estimated using either the sum of probability weighted amounts in a range of possible consideration
amounts (expected value), or the single most likely amount in a range of possible consideration amounts (most likely amount), depending on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration realizable. Transaction price includes variable consideration only to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of revenues recognized will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved. Our estimates of variable consideration and determination of whether to include estimated amounts in the transaction
price may involve judgment and are based largely on an assessment of our anticipated performance and all information that is reasonably available to us.

Significant financing component :

The Group receives short-term advances from its customers Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, it does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a
significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for
that good or service will be one year or less.

Warranty obligations:
It provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as required by law. These assurance-type warranties are accounted for under Ind AS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. Refer to the accounting policy on warranty provisions in use of judgements, estimates & assumptions.

Finance income:

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised
cost of a financial liability. When calculating EIR, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider
the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend Income:
Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Rental Income:

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms unless the payments are structured to increase in
line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases and is included in revenue in the Statement of Profit and Loss due to its operating
nature.

Contract balances

Contract assets:

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by providing services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we refer to as Unbilled Revenue). Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting
policies on impairment of financial assets in section 2 (s) Impairment of financial assets.

Trade receivables:
A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer
to accounting policies of financial assets in section 2 (r) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.
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k) Employee benefits

Expenses and liabilities in respect of employee benefits are recorded in accordance with Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits.

Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group
recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Defined benefit plan

Gratuity

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets (if any). The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Compensated absences

The Group provides benefit of compensated absences under which unavailed leave are allowed to be accumulated to be availed in future. The compensated absences comprises of
vesting as well as non vesting benefit. The cost of short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absence costs are provided for
based on actuarial valuation using the project unit credit method. The Group presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional
right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in ¥ is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

Service cost on the Group’s defined benefit plan is included in employee benefits expense. Employee contributions, all of which are independent of the number of years of service, are
treated as a reduction of service cost. Net interest expense on the net defined benéefit liability is included in finance costs.

Gains and losses through re-measurements of the defined benefit plans are recognized in other comprehensive income, which are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in a
subsequent period. Further, as required under Ind AS compliant Schedule Ill, the Group transfers those amounts recognized in other comprehensive income to retained earnings in the
statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Overseas social security
The Group contributes to social security charges of countries to which the Group deputes its employees on employment or has permanent employees. The plans are defined
contribution plan and contributions paid or payable is recognised as an expense in these periods in which the employee renders services in those respective countries.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonus etc. is recognized on the basis of the amount paid or payable for the period during which services are
rendered by the employee.

I) Leases

The Group has lease contracts for buildings used in its operations. Lease terms generally ranges between 3 and 9 years
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
The Group adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial application on 1 April 2019.

i) Right-of-use assets
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2(i) Impairment of non-financial assets.

(ii) Lease Liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,

the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to
be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

m) Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the Holding Group’s functional currency. For each entity the Group determines the
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and on
disposal of a foreign operation the gain or loss that is reclassified to profit or loss reflects the amount that arises from using this method.

Transactions and balances

- Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
Statement of Profit or Loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment
in a foreign operation. A monetary item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future is considered as a part of the entity’s net investment in that
foreign operation.

- Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains/ (losses).

- Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are
translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income and expense items, if the average
rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Any goodwill arising in the acquisition/ business combination of a foreign operation on or after 1 April 2016 and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Any goodwill or fair value adjustments arising in business combinations/ acquisitions, which occurred before the date of transition to Ind AS (1 April 2016), are treated as assets and
liabilities of the entity rather than as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation. Therefore, those assets and liabilities are non-monetary items already expressed in the functional
currency of the parent and no further translation differences occur.

n) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

o) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (including prime cost, non-refundable taxes and duties and other overheads incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition) and estimated net realisable value, after providing for obsolescence, where appropriate. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
The net realisable value of materials in process is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished goods. Raw materials, packing materials and other supplies held for
use in production of inventories are not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined, and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed
their net realisable value.. The method of determination of cost is as follows:

Raw materials/ components and traded goods are valued at first in first out method

Finished goods/ work in progress - Cost of materials including costs of conversion, where cost of material is determined under first in first out method. Cost of conversion is considered
at actuals.

Goods in transit are valued at actual cost.

The Group periodically assesses the inventory for obsolesence and slow moving stocks
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p) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes,
except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Group relies on the same forecast assumptions
used elsewhere in the financial statements.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and
liabilities is recognised as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised. The Group offsets current tax assets and current
tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to setoff the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT):

MAT payable for a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Group recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing
evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Group
recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the
said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ under Deferred Tax. The Group reviews the same at each reporting date
and writes down the asset to the extent the Group does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

q) Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or it
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent assets
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, related asset is recognised.

Onerous contracts
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Group has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

r) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i. Debt instruments at amortised cost;

ii. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

iii. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
iv. Equity investments

i. Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is

included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to
trade and other receivables.
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ii. Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

iii. Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing
so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present
in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by- instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of
the amounts from OCI to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

a. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b. The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (i) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities like non
convertable debenutures are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.

Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cost that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified party fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of expected loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and Hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks arising from highly probable future forecasted sales. This
derivative financial instrument are designated in a cash flow hedge relationship. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Group’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/
economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective
in achieving offsetting changes in cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods
for which they were designated.

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI

and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss and is reclassified to underlying hedged item.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when
the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs

s) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.

The Group tracks credit risk and changes thereon for each customer. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However,
if the credit risk has increased significantly, life time ECL is used. If in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

- All contractual terms of the financial instrument over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be
estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

- Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
The Group uses default rate for credit risk to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

a. Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment
allowance from the gross carrying amount.

b. Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

c. Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.

Trade receivables
The Group applies approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of receivables.

Other financial assets
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition and if credit risk has increased significantly, impairment loss is provided.
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t) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable;
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurements as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined the classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabilities and
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration.
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Management decides, after discussions with the Group’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.
On an interim basis, the Management present the valuation results to the Audit Committee and the Group’s independent auditors This includes a discussion of the major assumptions
used in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

u) Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consists of cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

v) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Group has two business segments, 'Technology
Services and Solutions' and 'Strategic technology solutions'.

w) Earnings/ (loss) per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number of equity
shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Group (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares, if any) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive
potential equity shares into equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity
shares are determined independently for each period presented.

x) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure
CSR expenditure as per provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, is charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss as expense as and when incurred.

y) Share-based payments
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised, together with a

corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.
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2 (ii) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
There are no new accounting policies applied during the current year

2 (iii) New and amended standards

The Group applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022. The Group has not early adopted any
other standard or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective:

(i) Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated 23 March 2022, which is effective from 01 April 2022 to amend
the Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly
attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022. These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
as there were no sales of such items produced by property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

(ii) Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated 23 March 2022, which is effective from 1 April 2022 to amend the
Ind AS 109 to clarify the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022.These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
as there were no modifications/exchange's of the Group financial instruments during the period.

(i) Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated 23 March 2022, which is effective from 01 April 2022 to clarify
that an onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable of meeting the obligations under the contract costs (i.e., the costs that the Company cannot avoid because it has the
contract) exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it.

The amendments specify that when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making, an entity needs to include costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or
services including both incremental costs (e.g., the costs of direct labour and materials) and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities (e.g., depreciation of equipment
used to fulfil the contract and costs of contract management and supervision). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are

explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022.These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
as there were no contracts for which the Group has not yet fulfilled all of its obligations.

(iv) Ind AS 103 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments replaced the reference to the ICAI's “Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements under Indian Accounting Standards” with the reference
to the “Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standard” without significantly changing its requirements.

The amendments also added an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Business Combinations to avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities
and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, if incurred separately.
The exception requires entities to apply the criteria in Ind AS 37 or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, respectively, instead of the Conceptual Framework, to determine whether a present
obligation exists at the acquisition date.

The amendments also add a new paragraph to Ind AS 103 to clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there were no contingent assets, liabilities or contingent liabilities within the scope of these
amendments that arose during the period.

2(iv) Standards notified but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are
effective from 01 April 2023.

(i) Ind AS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors It has also been clarified how entities
use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that
occur on or after the start of that period.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

(ii) Ind AS 1 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies
with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy
disclosures.

The amendments to Ind AS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 107.

The Group is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended requirements.
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(i) Ind AS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning obligations. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101. The amendments to Ind AS 12 are
applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.
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3 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Furniture and Test Office Electrical . Office Leasehold Plant and
Freehold land Computers ) . N . . Vehicles - . . Total
fixtures equipments equipments installations building improvements machinery
Cost or valuation
Balance as at 1 April 2021 3,370.50 1,629.05 243.99 292.44 289.57 12.18 158.08 621.38 261.21 1,692.47 8,470.87
Additions - 408.11 46.87 42.81 32.89 - 223.32 - 177.08 318.68 1,249.76
Disposals - (107.83) - - (3.61) - (0.78) - (53.51) (0.54) (166.27)
Other adjustments (refer note 1 below) - 3.17 0.84 - 0.38 - - - - - 4.39
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,370.50 1,932.50 291.70 335.25 319.23 12.18 380.62 621.38 384.78 1,910.61 9,558.75
Additions - 297.57 40.30 34.83 82.19 - 186.75 - 177.15 10.15 828.94
Disposals - (334.29) (86.44) - (37.55) (10.09) (28.83) - (13.24) (49.00) (559.44)
Other adjustments (refer note 1 below) - 8.44 2.04 - 0.85 - - - - - 11.33
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3,370.50 1,904.22 247.60 370.08 364.72 2.09 538.54 621.38 548.69 1,871.76 9,839.58
Depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2021 - 1,353.66 183.51 228.52 186.49 10.12 115.67 51.36 77.47 1,064.02 3,270.82
Charge for the year - 202.97 27.92 27.84 33.61 0.39 2713 11.68 39.03 259.68 630.25
Disposals - (107.56) (0.01) - (3.45) - (0.71) - (14.68) (0.44) (126.85)
Other adjustments (refer note 1 below) - 2.76 0.77 - 0.27 - - - - - 3.80
Balance as at 31 March 2022 - 1,451.83 212.19 256.36 216.92 10.51 142.09 63.04 101.82 1,323.26 3,778.02
Charge for the year - 252.69 35.74 27.42 39.70 0.15 66.40 11.35 111.70 152.01 697.16
Impairment (refer note 5 below) - - - - - - - - - 203.79 203.79
Disposals - (331.26) (80.25) - (36.81) (10.09) (22.91) - (3.21) (49.00) (533.53)
Other adjustments (refer note 1 below) - 8.14 1.86 - 0.46 - - - - - 10.46
Balance as at 31 March 2023 - 1,381.40 169.54 283.78 220.27 0.57 185.58 74.39 210.31 1,630.06 4,155.90
Net book value
As at 31 March 2022 3,370.50 480.67 79.51 78.89 102.31 1.67 238.53 558.34 282.95 587.35 5,780.73
As at 31 March 2023 3,370.50 522.82 78.06 86.30 144.45 1.52 352.96 546.99 338.38 241.70 5,683.68

Notes

N

N

Capitalised borrowing cost

No borrowing costs are capitalised during the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: Nil).

w

Property, plant and equipment pledged as security
Details of properties pledged are as per note 17.

4 Decommissioning cost

Represents adjustments consequent to foreign exchange translation of property, plant and equipment in foreign geographies.

A provision has been recognised for decommissioning costs associated with the premises taken on lease. The Group is committed to decommissioning the premises as a result of leasehold improvements made to the premises (refer note 18).

(5]

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the impairment loss of ¥ 203.79 lakhs represented the write-down value of certain plant and machinery as a result of technological obsolescence. This was recognised in the statement of profit and loss (refer

note 30).
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4

(@)

(b

~

(M)
(i
(iii)

=

Goodwill
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Gross carrying value at the beginning of the year 15,823.29 15,823.29
Accumulated Impairment loss and foreign exchange translation differences on goodwill (4,475.53) (4,665.36)
Net carrying value at the end of the year 11,347.76 11,157.93

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase consideration over net asset value of acquired subsidiaries on the date of such acquisition. Such goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently, if there are indicators for impairment.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the cash generating units (CGU) or groups of CGU’s, which
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. The chief operating decision maker reviews the goodwill for any impairment at the operating segment level, which
is represented through groups of CGU’s.

The carrying value of goodwill, net of impairment loss and foreign exchange translation differences, as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is as below:

Allocated operating segment

Entity As at As at

fcau 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

AXISCADES UK Limited 130.95 128.14
AXISCADES Inc. Technology Services and Solutions 2,406.02 2,219.00
Cades Studec Technologies India Private Limited 446.07 446.07
AXISCADES Aerospace & Technologies Private Limited Strateaic Technoloav Solutions 1,419.98 1,419.98
Mistral Solutions Private Limited 9 9y 6,944.74 6,944.74
11,347.76 11,157.93

The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The Group has engaged an
independent external valuer to carry out an assessment of any impairment on goodwill and other intangibles. The Group considers the relationship between its
market capitalisation and its book value, among other factors, when reviewing for indicators of impairment. The recoverable amount of all CGUs has been
determined based on value in use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by senior
management covering a period of three to six years.

Key assumptions used for value in use calculations:

The calculation of value in use is most sensitive to the following assumptions:
Revenue growth rates, operating margins

Discount rates

Terminal growth rates

Revenue growth rates, operating margins — Revenue growth rates and operating margins are determined based on the past trend of the revenue growth and
operating margins and based on future expectations.

Discount rates - Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks, taking into consideration the time value of money. The discount rate
calculation is derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The WACC takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from
the expected return on investment by the Group’s investors The cost of debt is based on the interest-bearing borrowings the Group is obliged to service. The
beta factors are evaluated annually based on publicly available market data. Adjustments to the discount rate are made to factor in the specific amount and
timing of the future tax flows in order to reflect a pre-tax discount rate. The group has used discount rates in the range of 11.40% to 16.20% ( 31 March 2022 -
11.60% to 16.50%) for computation of value in use of different CGUs. These estimates are likely to differ from future actual results of operations and cash flows.

Terminal growth rate estimates — The cash flow projections include specific estimates for three to six years and a terminal growth rate thereafter. The terminal
growth rate has been determined based on management’s estimates of the long-term compound annual EBITDA growth rate, consistent with the assumptions
that a market participant would make. The group has assumed a growth rate ranging from 1% to 5% ( 31 March 2022 - 1% to 5%) for computation of value in
use.

The Group assesses where climate risks could have a significant impact, such as the introduction of emission-reduction legislation that may increase the
operating costs. These risks in relation to climate-related matters are included as key assumptions where they materially impact the measure of recoverable
amount, These assumptions have been included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value-in-use amounts.
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5 Other intangible assets

Computer Non-compete Customer Process Total

software fee contract manuals
Cost
Balance as at 1 April 2021 1,859.81 1,500.87 3,127.52 1,849.38 8,337.58
Additions 49.88 - - - 49.88
Other adjustments (refer note 1 below) 1.52 - - - 1.52
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,911.21 1,500.87 3,127.52 1,849.38 8,388.98
Additions 384.36 - - - 384.36
Disposals (8.05) - - - (8.05)
Other adjustments (refer note 1 below) 0.46 - - - 0.46
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,287.98 1,500.87 3,127.52 1,849.38 8,765.75
Amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2021 1,420.41 500.27 1,042.53 1,849.38 4,812.59
Charge for the year 214.74 150.08 312.76 - 677.58
Other adjustments (refer note 1 below) 0.58 - - - 0.58
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,635.73 650.35 1,355.29 1,849.38 5,490.75
Charge for the year 200.00 150.08 312.76 - 662.84
Disposals (8.05) - - - (8.05)
Other adjustments (refer note 1 below) 0.36 - - - 0.36
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,828.04 800.43 1,668.05 1,849.38 6,145.90
Net book value
As at 31 March 2022 275.48 850.52 1,772.23 - 2,898.23
As at 31 March 2023 459.94 700.44 1,459.47 - 2,619.85

Notes:
1 Represents adjustments consequent to foreign exchange translation of other intangible assets in foreign geographies.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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6 Ir t it in an

The Company entered into a agreement on 10 April 2018 with ASSYSTEM Engineering and Operation Services SAS to form ASSYSTEM
AXISCADES Engineering Private Limited (AAEPL) for providing engineering services in the field of energy, building and infrastructure and
nuclear sector. Accordingly, AAEPL was incorporated with an equity participation in the ratio of 50:50. The Company invested ¥ 227.50 lakhs
in 455,000 equity shares of ¥ 50 each fully paid in cash. The Group's interest in AAEPL is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements.

On 11 July 2022, the Company has sold the investment in its associate ASSYSTEMS AXISCADES Engineering Private Limited (AAEPL) for a
consideration of ¥ 222.55 lakhs. The Company has recognised a gain of ¥ 39.55 lakhs on sale of the aforesaid investment in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (refer note 25).

The following table gives the summarised financial information of the Group's investment in AAEPL:

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current assets - 392.97
Non-current assets - 14.61
Current liabilities - (32.76)
Non-current liabilities - -
Equity - 374.82
Proportion of the Group’s ownership - 50%
Carrying amount of the investment - 187.41

o heri 202210 Yoar nded

11 July 2022 31 March 2022
Revenue from contracts with customers - 535.28
Other Income 3.02 1.29
Depreciation and amortisation expense (3.77) (26.79)
Employee benefits expense (0.69) (268.57)
Other expenses (7.38) (326.40)
Loss before tax (8.82) (85.19)
(i) Current tax - (1.28)
(i) Deferred tax - (5.17)
Loss for the year (8.82) (91.64)
Group’s share of loss for the year (4.41) (45.82)
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7 Investments

Non-current
Unquoted

i) Investments (at amortised cost)
National savings certificate
Total investment carried at amortised cost

i) Investment in equity shares of other companies (at FVTPL)

Axis Cogent Global Limited
946,822 (31 March 2022: 946,822) equity shares of ¥ 10 each, fully paid up

Datum Technology Limited
50,000 (31 March 2022: 50,000) equity shares of 10 each, fully paid up

Raaga Axis Avicom Private Limited
1,000 (31 March 2022: 1,000) equity shares of % 10 each, fully paid up

iii) Other Investment (at FVTPL)
Investment in real estate fund

Quoted
iv) Other Investment (at FVTPL)
Investment in mutual funds

Total investment carried at fair value through profit or loss

Total Investment

Current

Unquoted

i) Other investments (at FVTPL)
Investment in mutual funds

Quoted
ii) Other investments (at FVTPL)
Investment in mutual funds

Investment in other funds

Total investment carried at fair value through profit or loss

Aggregate book value of quoted (current and non-current) investments
Aggregate market value of quoted investments
Aggregate book value of unquoted (current and non-current) investments

8 Other financial assets

Non-current

(carried at amortised cost)

(Unsecured, considered good)

Bank deposits (with original maturity of more than 12 months) (refer note 14)*
Loans to employees

Security deposits

Current *

(carried at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Bank deposits (with original maturity of more than 12 months) (refer note 14)
Security deposits

Government incentive receivable
Loans to employees

Export incentives receivable
Contract assets - Unbilled revenue
Others

(Unsecured, considered doubtful)
Contract assets - Unbilled revenue
Security deposits

Less :
Allowance for Contract assets - Unbilled revenue
Allowance for doubtful security deposit

(carried at FVTOCI)
(Unsecured, considered good)
Hedge asset
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As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

0.05 0.05
0.05 0.05
200.75 203.76
245.39 -
446.14 203.76
446.19 203.81
446.77 974.55
2,453.21 309.34
- 242.70
2,899.98 1,526.59
2,698.60 552.04
2,698.60 552.04
647.57 1,178.36

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

105.47 293.08
32.03 -

838.03 632.23
975.53 925.31
44.94 49.52

- 25.08
55.66 133.13

- 68.77
52.60 76.97
1,619.83 365.04
4,022.92 2,518.44
80.24 155.37
5,876.19 3,392.32
104.97 104.97
45.34 45.34
150.31 150.31
(104.97) (104.97)
(45.34) (45.34)
(150.31) (150.31)
- 19.13

- 19.13
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5,876.19 3,411.45

* Refer note 17 for details of assets pledged as security for borrowings.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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9 Non-current tax assets

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance income tax (net of provision for tax) 1,969.68 1,462.77
1,969.68 1,462.77
10 Other assets
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Duties and taxes recoverable 29.73 58.02
Prepaid expenses 12.54 16.35
Capital advances (refer note 34) - 1,960.21
42.27 2,034.58
(Unsecured, considered doubtful)
Capital advances 178.38 178.38
178.38 178.38
Less : Allowance for capital advances (178.38) (178.38)
(178.38) (178.38)
42.27 2,034.58
Current *
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advance to employees 58.41 40.24
Duties and taxes recoverable 1,790.32 1,854.21
Prepaid expenses 1,310.36 829.02
Advance to suppliers 627.52 1,100.97
Export incentive receivable 72.79 76.14
Deferred rent 0.96 0.79
Unbilled revenue 6,691.08 4,183.90
Other advances 25.38 6.33
10,576.82 8,091.60
(Unsecured, considered doubtful)
Duties and taxes recoverable 27.67 27.67
27.67 27.67
Less : Allowance for duties and taxes recoverable (27.67) (27.67)
(27.67) (27.67)
10,576.82 8,091.60
* Refer note 17 for details of assets pledged as security for borrowings.
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
11 Inventories * (lower of cost or net realisable value)
Raw material/components [including goods-in-transit of ¥ 112.44 lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 127.31 lakhs)] 4,871.13 3,311.62
Project work-in-progress 1,037.23 1,359.38
Finished goods 656.90 428.07
Traded goods [including goods-in-transit of ¥ 28.96 lakhs (31 March 2022: % 59.71 lakhs)] 147.77 174.71
6,713.03 5,273.78
Less: Provision for slow/ non-moving inventory (refer note below) (127.64) (116.08)
6,585.39 5,157.70

During the year ended 31 March 2023, ACAT has recognised ¥ 127.64 lakhs (31 March 2022 : % 116.08 lakhs) as provision for slow, non-moving and obsolete inventory in respect of write-down of
inventory to net realisable value.

* Refer note 17 for details of assets pledged as security for borrowings.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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12 Trade receivables

Current *

(a) Trade receivables from other parties
(b) Trade receivable from related parties (refer note 33)

Break-up for security details:

Trade receivables (Current)

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total trade receivables

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023

(i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered good

(i) Undisputed trade receivables - which has signiifcant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired

(iv) Disputed trade receivables - considered good

(v) Disputed trade receivables - which has signiifcant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired

Total

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022

(i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered good

(i) Undisputed trade receivables - which has signiifcant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired

(iv) Disputed trade receivables - considered good

(v) Disputed trade receivables - which has signiifcant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired

Total

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

17,902.93 14,516.65

17,902.93 14,516.65

17,902.93 14,516.65

257.93 1,568.26

5.76 60.51

18,166.62 16,145.42
(257.93) (1,568.26)
(5.76) (60.51)
(263.69) (1,628.77)

17,902.93 14,516.65

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Current but
Less than 6 6 months - Total
not due 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years
months 1 year

13,310.97 3,854.75 714.64 8.92 11.37 2.28 17,902.93
6.59 29.65 60.60 33.43 29.22 65.36 224.85

- - - 0.43 - 5.33 5.76

- - - - - 33.08 33.08
13,317.56 3,884.40 775.24 42.78 40.59 106.05 18,166.62

Current but - (t)hutst:n:mg fc:l: following periods from due date of payment Total
not due ess than months =4 5 years 2-3years More than 3 years
months 1 year

10,622.04 3,676.50 113.47 40.04 34.48 30.12 14,516.65
2.05 0.94 - 73.51 20.80 20.25 117.55

- - - 24.